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14

15

Inc.

16

17
18
19

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

I'd like to call to order the

20

Council's Budget and Finance Committee meeting

21

for Wednesday, April 19th, 2006.

22

record, we have in attendance this morning,

23

Members Anderson, Mateo, Molina, Pontanilla,

24

Tavares, Kane.

25

Good morning, Members.

For the

We are here to
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1

continue our discussions with the respective

2

Departments.

3

Department of Public Works and Environmental

4

Management.

5

Details will be starting on 16-1, and your

6

Program Budget will be starting on 18-1.

7

First, we will be with the

For your reference points, your

Before we get into the discussions and

8

the Q and A, we do have a gentleman signed up to

9

testify, Mr. Richard Ellis.

As Mr. Ellis is

10

heading forward -- Mr. Ellis, you will have a

11

total of four minutes.

12

ground rules.

13

name for the record.

14

I think you know the

If you can, please state your

If there's anybody who has a cell phone

15

or pager, if you can turn it to the silent or

16

off mode, we would appreciate that.

17

go ahead and go from there.

18

And we will

And Mr. Ellis, when you are done with

19

your testimony, if there's any questions, we

20

will entertain them at that point in time.

21

MR. ELLIS:

22

CHAIR KANE:

25

Good morning,

Slr.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

23
24

Thank you.

MR. ELLIS:

Good morning.

Distinguished Council

Members, ladies and gentlemen, good morning.
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ALL:

2

MR. ELLIS:

5

Good morning.
Yesterday,

I was giving some -- sharing

3

with you some information, and I was at the

4

point of sharing with you some of the statements

5

that appeared in The Maui News In support of a

6

increase in timeshare taxes, and also I think

7

basically to get some kind of a rate

8

established.

9

I had read a statement, but I didn't get

10

a chance to answer, so I am going to back up and

11

start there this morning.

12

Finance officials told Council Members that the

13

rate of $21 would about equal what timeshare

14

projects would pay if -- if the State hotel tax

15

could be charged on all payments made by a

16

timeshare owner for use of a unit.

17

It was Item No.2.

My response to that is that we do not

18

pay -- timeshare owners do not pay for the use

19

of a unit.

20

belongs to us.

21

Association is to cover the cost of maintaining

22

the utilities, taxes,

23

contribution to the master association for the

24

upkeep of the building and the grounds.

25

We have a deed to that property.

It

And what we pay to the

insurance, and some

Item No.3, timeshare owners make higher
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1

profits than hotels while employing fewer

2

people.

3

greater impact on County parks, beaches, roads,

4

and sewers.

Guests tend to stay longer, having a

5

To that,

6

non-profit organization.

7

non-profit organization, so there is no profit.

8

I don't know how you could come up with a figure

9

that says that we make more profit.

10

first of all, we are a
Timeshare owners are a

We are managed by a Board of Directors

11

who serve at no pay.

12

amenities that hotels have,

13

service, room service and so forth.

14

ourselves just as full-time resident owners do.

15

We do not have the
like daily maid
We do for

According to ARDA 2004, timeshare owners

16

stay two-tenths of a day longer than hotel

17

guests.

18

This is about two and a half hours.
Most timeshare owners -- in regarding to

19

using roads, most timeshare owners rent a car

20

when they are here, and we pay a $3 a day tax

21

for the use of that car.

22

Last year,

I paid $81.

As far as using the beaches and the

23

parks and so forth,

24

personally have been paying a real property tax.

25

Hotel guests have not paid a dime in hotel

for 25 years, my --
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7

tax -- in property tax.

2

So those items sort of point out the

3

discrepancies or the lack of meaning in making

4

that statement.

5

appears to be just a little bit of nitpicking.

And it also seems to me that it

6

A rate of 9 -- Item No.4,

7

9.50 would equal what the County tax would

8

actually be receiving if the hotel tax could be

9

charged.

10

MS. REVELS:

11

MR. ELLIS:

a rate of

Three minutes.
None of the four statements pertain to

12

real property tax, but mostly relate to hotel

13

room tax.

14

Finally, having been glven the

15

inaccurate statements, and the if statements,

16

comparing timeshares and hotels, the Council

17

ignored the 9.50 rate and passed the timeshare

18

tax rate of $14.

19

real property tax rate.

20

be called a potpourri tax.

21

is not a real property tax rate.

22

The 14 is supposed to be a
It is not.
I repeat,

It should
$14 rate

If memory serves me correctly, the real

23

property tax rate is achieved by dividing a

24

dollar requirements as approved in the budget by

25

the total assessed values of all the properties
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1

In the County.

2

each parcel to generate the real property tax.

3

This is equitable tax treatment.

4

MS. REVELS:

5

MR. ELLIS:

6

CHAIR KANE:

This rate is then applied to

Four minutes.
Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Ellis.

7

Members, do you have any questions for

8

Mr. Ellis?

He is reading off of his written

9

testimony that he's submitted.

And he continues

10

for about another page on some information that

11

he wanted to express to us.

12

Mr. Ellis?

13

Any questions for

Hearing none, Mr. Ellis, thank you very

14

much, and again, we have your information with

15

us.

16

MR. ELLIS:

17

CHAIR KANE:

I would like to come back tomorrow.

Okay.

18
19

Members, are there any other

people here signed up to testify, staff?

20

MS. SAKAMOTO:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

Thank you.

No, Mr. Chair.
Okay.

Thank you.

Members, without objections, we are

23

going to go ahead and close testimony for

24

today's meeting.

25

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

ahead and close it up.

.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

3
4

Seeing no objections, we will go

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members,

I will direct your

5

attention again to your Details,

6

Program 18-1, and I believe we did receive a

7

handout if I am not mistaken.

8

and open up with Mr. Ginoza, our Budget

9

Director, and then we will have our Director of

10

Public Works, Mr. Arakawa, guide us through his

11

operations budget this mornlng.

12

MR. GINOZA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

16-1, your

We will go ahead

Members, good

13

morning.

14

to you,

15

Detail Budget, beginning with page 16-23, and I

16

can review that handout at the time -- at the

17

appropriate time during the discussion of Public

18

Works.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20
21

There is a handout that was submitted
and this is for corrections on the

Okay.

Thank you.

Go ahead, Mr. Arakawa, good morning.
MR. ARAKAWA:

22

Good morning, Mr. Chair.
I would like to start from page 16-4 and

23

16-5.

24

Administration program.

25

the Director's office, and if you see under the

This is in the Public Works ad -Basically, this is in
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1

operations budget, it's flat.

2

budget.

It is a flat

On page 16-5, we are basically asking

3

4

for a -- $1,500 for office furniture.

5

may recall, we are requesting an additional

6

clerk typist within the Director's office.

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

budget?

9

move on.

As you

Members, any questions for the Admin
Members, we are going to go ahead and

10

Engineering program, we have the

11

Division Chief, Mr. Cary Yamashita, with us this

12

morning.

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

Go ahead.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

And I will try

14

to just highlight the major changes, and as

15

usual, if the Members have any questions, please

16

feel free to ask.

17

But -- let me call your attention to

18

page 16-8.

19

And here, basically we are talking about a flat

20

operations budget as well.

21
22

Page 16-9, there are several -- a number
of equipment requests, and I can go over those.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

MR. ARAKAWA:

25

This is our Engineering Division.

Please.
First item

replacement.

lS

a motor vehicle

This is to replace a 1995 Chevy
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1

Corsica.

2

replacement vehicle as well.

3

vehicles are for the Public Works engineering

4

inspection staff.

5

The second vehicle is also a
And both of those

We are also requesting a four-door

6

hybrid sedan in the amount of $26,000.

7

an expansion vehicle which would be for use by

8

the Division Chief and the engineering

9

administrative staff.

10

That's

We also have some office equipment that

11

we are requesting,

12

of $5,000.

13

black-and-white copy machine for our

14

construction staff, which recently moved up to

15

the fourth floor of this building.

16

a copy machine in the amount

This is a -- basically, a

And miscellaneous office equipment,

17

these are replacement office equipment in the

18

amount of $4,200 for the construction staff on

19

the fourth floor.

20

filing cabinets, wall partitions, and two

21

bookshelves.

22

These would consist of two

Also, there are replacement chairs in

23

the amount of $788 and another office chair

24

request In the amount of $900.

25

We also have survey instrument and
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1

collection accessories that we are requesting,

2

and this is a replacement of an existing system.

3

We are requesting $17,000 for that,

4

to replace, basically, a 20-year-old survey

5

system that we have In use now.

6

and this is

We are also requesting a digital video

7

camera as well as a digital camera, and these

8

are very helpful for our field investigations.

9

And the video camera is useful if we have to

10

take, you know, wide-angle pictures as well as

11

pictures,

12

drainway where you really don't want a picture

13

from one point but a continuous pan through the

14

whole segment that you are doing the

15

investigation on.

16

for example, along a roadway or a

And we also are requesting a chainsaw

17

and a leaf blower replacement.

18

the maintenance staff for this particular

19

campus.

20

back,

21

those.

22

These are for

Those two items were stolen a while

so we are requesting replacements for

And the last two items are a 20-inch

23

floor maintainer, and an upright commercial

24

vacuum cleaner.

25

expansion Janitor I position, which would

And these two are for the
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1

provide janitorial services for the Old

2

Courthouse.

3
4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, we have A, B, and C

Account for your purview,

5

16-6 through 16-9.

And just before I open the floor,

6

Mr. Arakawa,

7

B Account, you just show slight blurbs over in

8

office supplies, under 6037 subobject code, and

9

then you have a minus under travel of $3,000.

10
11

Just some -- some brief comments on
those two blips, please.

12
13
14

I -- on your 16-8 details for your

Mr. Yamashita, good morning.

If you can

identify yourself.
MR. YAMASHITA:

Good morning.

15

Yamashita.

16

Engineering Division.

17

those two items.

18

My name is Cary

I am the Division Chief for the
And I can comment on

As far as the airfare transportation,

19

we -- we just projected a -- a shortfall of

20

$3,000, based on what we are running this Fiscal

21

Year.

22

fat budget.

23
24
25

So that was noted as a side note to the

And that -- what was the other subobject
code that you
CHAIR KANE:

6037, office supplies.

You went up --
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1

you are pretty close to where you were at 'OS,

2

and then you went to 3,500, and now you are up

3

to ten five,

4

there.

5

MR. YAMASHITA:

so there's a 7,000 increase in

That's correct.

For our move up to

6

the fourth floor,

7

equipment and furniture that were critical to

8

the move, and we did -- as far as in our last

9

'06 Budget, we did obtain some updated or

we needed to purchase some

10

upgraded equipment for printers and copiers, and

11

the maintenance costs and equipment costs for

12

toner replacements and

13

equipment did increase the equipment budget by

14

quite a bit.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

Okay.

and all of those other

Thank you.

Members, the floor is open.

We will go

17

ahead and start Public Works.

18

Mr. Pontanilla is excused for this morning's

19

meeting.

20

then we will just work back around and end up

21

with Ms. Tavares.

22
23

24
25

I know

We will start off with Mr. Molina, and

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

No questions for Engineering Division at
this point.
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2
3

CHAIR KANE:

15
Okay.

Great.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, I

I would like to

4

refer to the -- the Program, and one of -- one

5

of the Department's goals was to ensure that the

6

County roads and bridges met or exceed

7

applicable standards for safety, accessibility,

8

and maintenance.

9

goals, one, with the number of

Because this is one of your
with the

10

manpower that you do have, you know, do you have

11

adequate staffing to actually see that

12

your goals are actually accomplished?

13

And the -- the reason for the

that

14

questioning is if later on you can tell me how

15

often the inspections and accessibility and --

16

and assessment of these roads and bridges, etc.,

17

are actually done in terms of prioritizing the

18

department's needs to meet the standards and the

19

safety codes that you

20

MR. YAMASHITA:

Okay.

you identify.

As far as staffing is

21

concerned, we have been -- well, we have been

22

requesting additional positions in both the

23

engineering and inspectional field,

24

as what we have available currently, we

25

are, you know, we do have enough manpower to

and as far
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16

inspect our current projects.

2

However, for the more complex or

3

time-consuming -- consuming projects for Federal

4

aid, we do still go out with a consultant

5

management contract.

6

supplement them with our forces,

7

we work together in -- in establishing the goals

8

to inspect and engineer projects that do corne up

9

In the future.

10
11
12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

and you know,

Your engineering positions, are

they all filled?
MR. YAMASHITA:

And they -- you know, we

Have you got any vacancies?

We have two vacancies right now.

13

One, we are trying to negotiate with a -- a

14

person from the Mainland, and they are due in

15

town possibly within with the next couple of

16

weeks because they -- they have indicated that

17

they -- it looks interesting to them, and we

18

have offered the position to him.

19

will be in town, and he will be looking at our

20

resources here, and -- and he will make a final

21

decision upon his return.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And -- and he

So with the -- if both

23

positions that are currently vacant is filled,

24

then there would be a reduction in the need for

25

outside contracts?
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17

MR. YAMASHITA:

No.

No.

We still would need --

2

because just for CIP alone, we -- we do have

3

quite a bit of projects that we do in-house, and

4

so -- so when we go out with complex Federal aid

5

projects, then we go and hire a consultant

6

outside.

7

projects for Federal aid, we -- we kind of do it

8

in-house.

9

improvements or for traffic signals, we have

10
11

Like for guardrail safety

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Hokama.

14
15

mlnor

been doing it with our in-house forces.

12
13

And -- and for more minor

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.

I am just trying to understand, on 16-6,

16
17

at the bottom, you have two positions there,

18

under college intern,

19

asking us not to fund,

20

for two expansions.

21

MR. YAMASHITA:

053 and 054, which you are
and then you're asking us

You can give us comment?

Yeah, the bottom line is we are

22

asking for two college interns, and as far as

23

how it was represented within the budget

24

program,

25

placed.

I am not too sure how that was actually
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But you know, to explain on those -- to

1

2

explain those positions, we were looking for two

3

college interns with some kind of engineering

4

background to kind of be exposed to what we do

5

and to assist us with

6

duties.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

with minor engineering

Don't get me wrong.

I

am in

support of
MR. YAMASHITA:

Okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

interns.

12

MR. YAMASHITA:

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

the Department's request for

Yes.
Especially if they will -- we can

14

help generate interest in doing government

15

engineering careers.

16

with that.

17

this

18

MR. YAMASHITA:

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

So I don't have a problem

I am just trying to make sense with

Okay.
how it's being shown to us,

the request.

21

MR. YAMASHITA:

22

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. -- Mr. Chair, may I?

23

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.

24

MR. GINOZA:

In answer to your question, Chairman --

25

All right.

I mean, Councilman Hokama, basically, what we
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1

are trying to do, as I was kind of reviewing

2

this,

3

I believe in the past year,

4

listing of those positions without any EP

5

counts.

6

for the current year, we needed to add that in

7

as an expansion position, to -- to include a

8

allocation of EPs.

9
10
11
12
13

is to make sure our EP counts balance, and

So in order to balance the EP counts

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
MR. GINOZA:

in '06, there was a

.3

Okay.

So it -- it's maybe just an

administrative issue.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

I understand what -- what

you just shared with the Committee, Mr. Ginoza.

14

So my question is if we support the

15

expansion, what happens to Public Works 053 and

16

054?

17

abolishment of these two, and then we're going

18

replace with the two expansions?

19

to just have DPS rollover, and then have 053,

20

054 become the .3's positions?

21

MR. GINOZA:

Is it then we're going come in with one

Or we're going

I -- I am not sure on that, but I -- I

22

believe we can use the existing position numbers

23

for the expansion position, but I need to

24

confirm that with DPS.

25

to -- really, what we are trying to do is adjust

But it's

it's an idea
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1

the EP count.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, Mr. Ginoza,

I understand.

3

Maybe, if possible, if you can maybe come back

4

to the Chairman or the Committee staff and let

5

us know what is the response from public --

6

excuse me

personnel services.

7

MR. GINOZA:

I will.

8

CHAIR KANE:

We will do the follow-up via phone.

9

10

Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

My other question is on 16-9, the

11

12

Division Chief's vehicle, it says expansion.

13

the -- right now, the Division Chief does not

14

have a vehicle?

15

MR. YAMASHITA:

No, our Administration section does

16

not have one.

17

shared among all of our section heads and

18

administrative staff.

19

accompany other agencies in field reviews and

20

things of that sort.

21

So

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And it's basically to -

Okay.

22

standard vehicle.

23

whistles

24

MR. YAMASHITA:

No.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

to be

And that's to basically

So you just need a

You don't need bells,

No.
-- leather seats, running boards,
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21

the whole ten yards?

2

MR. YAMASHITA:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

11

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9
10

Thank you very much for

Thank you, Chairman.

7

8

Okay.

your responses.

5

6

No.

Yes, Mr. Chair.

And I apologize if I missed this, but on
page 16-9, for accessories, the $17,000.
CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead, Mr. Yamashita, if you can just

12

reiterate what Director talked about as far as

13

accessories for your division.

14

MR. YAMASHITA:

15

MR. GINOZA:

16

Okay.

This.

May I make a clarification, first?
You have to read it in the context of

17

that survey instrument collection and

18

accessories.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22
23

Oh, okay.

They are replacing a 20-year-old piece

of equipment, primarily.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Yeah, because I was

reading

24

CHAIR KANE:

It was explained to us earlier.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

-- office chairs, survey
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1

instrument collector, and -- and then just kind

2

of the way it tracks,

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

5

Yes.

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson, questions in this area?

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

Okay.

No, thank you.

Mr. Carroll.

Ms. Tavares.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR KANE:

17

With regard to income.

Thank you.

10

16

I -- my other questions are

in a different area.

6

8

it is a little confusing.

No.

Any further questions?
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

18

Just a -- following up on Member Hokama's

19

questions regarding the vehicles.

20

here that you are requesting two SUVs in place

21

of the Corsica sedans, and

22

MR. YAMASHITA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I -- I note

Yes.
then the automobile for

24

the Division Chief is a hybrid.

25

given any considerations to,

Have you folks

I guess, hybrid
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1

vehicles as well?

2

the prices, you know, one is $26,000.

3

ones are 25,000.

4

differential there is.

5

that the Department is moving towards going

6

towards more hybrid, fuel-efficient vehicles.

7

Can you give comment on that?

8
9

MR. YAMASHITA:

Because I look -- I look at
The other

I don't know how much price

Exactly.

I would presume that

We have been -- we were

looking to purchasing hybrid vehicles even for

10

the SUVs, and there's a -- I guess a program

11

established for us to do our replacements with

12

these hybrid vehicles.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

How much

lS

the difference in

14

price between the hybrid versus the SUVs that

15

you are looking at?

16

MR. GINOZA:

May I, Mr. Chairman?

17

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Mr. Ginoza.

18

MR. GINOZA:

I believe the hybrid SUV is at about

19

35,000.

And if you notice, the hybrid request

20

here is for the sedan.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

MR. GINOZA:

Okay.

Thank you.

And may I make an additional comment.

I

23

think I commented before that, you know, really,

24

the idea of the hybrid -- I mean,

25

idea, but I think Management is still concerned

it is a good
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1

about the reliability and the performance of

2

hybrids, so we are, you know,

3

getting into the hybrid vehicles.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

kind of slowly

Just take a more slower

5

approach, a little -- conservative approach,

6

guess, on this hybrid issue.

7

MR. GINOZA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11
12

I

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any further questions In this area,

Members?
One question, we did receive response

13

back regarding the Janitor I proposed expansion

14

position, Members,

15

response, if you haven't already noted, that the

16

response confirmed that the expansion Janitor I

17

position shown on 16-7 should be moved to

18

Special Maintenance Program, in a different

19

division or a different area.

20

to follow up with that, you folks be made aware

21

of that request and that -- that movement.

22

we will take note of that in our proposal and

23

following discussion.

24
25

for your information.

So I

In the

just wanted

Members, any further questions for
engineering?
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Mr. Hokama.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just -- just one on what you just

shared with the Committee, Mr. Chairman.
Who is currently, then, taking care of
the Old Courthouse?
MR. YAMASHITA:

We are under contract with a

7

consultant

well, we have someone doing the

8

contract for the Old Courthouse, and we are

9

paying 18,300 a year for the services.

But it

10

is not a full-time janitorial work.

11

they are doing like -- I believe three times a

12

week, they have been going in and -- and doing

13

the essential work, so ...

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

They are --

Just as a curiosity, because the

15

Old Courthouse is where prosecutors are,

16

potential confidential information around, does

17

the position and whatnot go through additional

18

employment -- preemployment reviews, no?

19

MR. YAMASHITA:

I would think so, and we will make

20

sure that we have all the screenlng in place,

21

and we will work with DPS to -- to notify them

22

that they will be in an area that is pretty

23

high -- high security area.

24
25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Yamashita.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Any more questions for engineering?

2

Hearing none, Mr. Yamashita, thank you

3

very much for your presence here this morning.

4

MR. YAMASHITA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

Members, we are moving into the Special

6

Maintenance Program located on 16-10 of your

7

Details.

8

9
10

Mr. Arakawa, any points In this area
before we move forward?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair, I would like to call --

11

start actually from 16-12, the Details of the

12

Operations Budget.

13

Special Maintenance Area,

14

some highlights.

15

are increases in gas, diesel,

16

electricity.

17

And generally, in the
I

just want to go over

Basically, the major changes
fuel, and

There's also a Veterans Affairs item.

18

just want to mention that -- excuse me -- that

19

function is being transferred or proposed to be

20

transferred to the Managing Director's office.

21

And also a proposal regarding the Baldwin Beach

22

House, which is placed in Special Maintenance

23

but is being handled by the Mayor's office.

24
25

So with that,

I can go over the specific

changes In Special Maintenance by line, if you
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like.

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you.
First, under 916064, and the Hana Civic

4

Center, the basic change there is electricity

5

increase, which,

6

$12,650 there.

7

for '07, we are requesting

Molokai Civic Center, under 916072,

8

basically the same thing.

9

proposed to be increased up to $91,621.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Before we move on,

Electricity is being

just for clarity,

11

from the Budget Director, you folks look at the

12

'05 as well, correct, in -- in determining your

13

15 percent increase; is that correct?

14

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

15

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Members.

Just so you see more

16

than 15 percent on electricity, on the '07

17

proposal compared to '06.

18

Okay.

19

MR. ARAKAWA:

We also look at '05.

Thank you.
Under 916114, County Garages Maui, a

20

significant increase there lS on the gasoline,

21

diesel,

22

That's a 30 percent increase.

oil,

from $860,000 up to $1,118,000.

23

And at the bottom of page 16-13, under

24

County Building Services, we have an increase,

25

under electricity,

from 615,000 up to 707,250.
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1

And no significant changes on 16-14.

2

Under 16-15, Repair and Maintenance,

3

County Buildings,

4

increases from 60,000 to 69,000,

5

lncrease.

15 percent

And let me see.

6

7

916155, again, electricity

CHAIR KANE:

Seaweed removal program, contractual

8

service, decrease of about $10,000, on the

9

bottom of the page, of 16-15?

10

MR. ARAKAWA:

Urn, yeah.

There's a proposed decrease

11

in that -- I believe that's a -- I believe

12

that's a contract that we have to handle seaweed

13

removal from our shorelines.

14

our Highways Division Chief, Brian Hashiro,

15

maybe he can comment a little bit more on that.

16

CHAIR KANE:

And if I can call

Members, you folks need comment on that,

17

on the 10,000 decrease?

18

yeses,

so, yeah,

Okay.

I see some

if we can, please.

19

Good morning, Mr. Hashiro,

20

identify yourself for the record, please.

21

you.

22
23
24
25

MR. HASHIRO:

if you can
Thank

Good morning, Chairman and Members.

My

name is Brian Hashiro, Highways Division Chief.
In regards to the reduction,

lately, we

have been seeing a reduction in the amount of
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1

work we need to be doing for seaweed clean-up,

2

and that's what the proposal is to reduce the

3

amount of money.

4

CHAIR KANE:

There's -- there's an adjustment there,

5

for 10,000, under Other Services.

6

basically took 72-eight down to 62-three, and

7

then there's an addition of other costs or other

8

services right under that of $10,000.

9

additional comment there, please?

10

MR. HASHIRO:

So, you

Any

Yeah, besides the contract we do with a

11

provider of -- who does the clean-up, we also do

12

other services which does -- like Kahului

13

Harbor, we have a special problem with -- right

14

by Harbor Lights.

15

provider -- well, a pumper truck to pump out the

16

seaweed from the ocean, basically, because we

17

cannot get in there with regular equipment to

18

clean the beach.

19

seaweed kind of accumulates in the corner and

20

kind of stagnates.

21

pump out that stagnant seaweed.

22

CHAIR KANE:

25

It is a rocky shoreline.

Thank you.

Director.
MR. ARAKAWA:

The

So we use a pumper truck to

If we can continue, Mr. Arakawa,

23
24

Okay.

We contract out with a

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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The next item I want to bring to your

1

2

attention is under County Garages Molokai.

3

Again, here, gasoline, diesel, oil, etc.,

4

increased from 205,000 up to $266,500,

5

30 percent increase there.

6

On page 16-17, under Veterans Affairs,

7

916362, this is what I was previously referring

8

to, where the $14,000 appropriated in '06 is

9

being proposed to be transferred to the -- the

10

Managing Director's office, primarily because

11

the County Veterans Affairs Coordinator is

12

located in the MD's office.

13

And under County Garage Lanai, General

14

Fund, we are actually adding this in the budget,

15

actually separating out the General Fund

16

expenditures for the County garage on Lanai.

17

these are actually taken from another County

18

Garage Highways Fund appropriation previously.

19

So

And the last two items pertain to the

20

Baldwin Beach House, and Mr. Rob Parsons is also

21

here to answer any questions regarding the last

22

two entries.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So before we get to those two,

24

are there any questions, Members, in any of the

25
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Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes,

and this is for

4

Mr. Hashiro with the seaweed removal program.

5

The amount,

6

level, with regard to the seaweed removal on

7

916171.

8

understood you correctly, that there's a slight

9

decrease in the amount of seaweed removal?

10

I know it hasn't been as much of a

11
12

I guess, overall is just remaining

But are you stating that there -- if I

problem in West Maui.
MR. HASHIRO:

It varies year to year.

Some years, we

13

get hit really bad; some years we haven't.

14

last year or two, we have been pretty lucky in

15

that it hasn't hit us that badly.

16

been saving some money,

17

right now.

18

wet weather we have been having, a lot of it's

19

been flushing things out.

20

we don't have that -- the kind of flush of water

21

going into the ocean and stuff.

22

varles.

23

The

So we have

not spending that money

And it might be attributed to the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

In the dryer season,

It kind of

And -- and is it the La Nina,

24

or El Nino years when we have worse seaweed?

25

am trying to recall.

When the currents are
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1

warmer, that's when we usually get the blooms;

2

is that correct?

3

MR. HASHIRO:

Subject to debate.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

just was concerned because

5

usually I hear about it if there's smelly

6

seaweed, you know, building up near our

7

condominiums and other residences.

8

not heard,

9

that -- you know, overall.

so I

But I had

just was curious to know how

And then when you get the seaweed, let's

10
11

say from the Harbor Lights area,

12

it, where do you go with it?

13

that question, and I could not answer them.

14

Does it just go into the landfill?

15

MR. HASHIRO:

and you gather

Somebody asked me

I would need to find out.

I am not

16

certain exactly.

17

take a wet liquid, and I doubt that Wastewater

18

would want it in their treatment facilities.

19

am not certain exactly where they do take it.

20

But I can find that out.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because the landfill shouldn't

Yeah, that was the question

22

that the person asked me.

23

what the answer was.

24

much.

25

MR. HASHIRO:

I

And I had no idea

So anyway, thank you very

If I may backtrack,

I think what they
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1

do is that, where we had that homeless clean-up,

2

that area,

3

area,

right on the soil.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

MR. HASHIRO:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7
8
9

I think they dump it right on that

On the breakwater.
On the breakwater, in Kahului.
To dry it, and then they -- yeah, then

they retrieve it and dispose.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So -- so it basically is

treated like compost, you know

10

MR. HASHIRO:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

-- once the smell goes, then

12

it's used as fertilizer.

13

rewatered, and the smell comes back.

14

thank you.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17

Anyway,

Thank you.
Any questions in this area, Members,

Special Maintenance?

18
19

And then it's

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Under the -- I guess the item, the

21

Veterans Affairs item that's being shifted to

22

the -- is it the Managing Director's office, can

23

you specify exactly what that item is?

24
25

MR. ARAKAWA:

The item pertains to two grants,

actually, one to the Molokai veterans
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1

organization, and another one to the Maui

2

veterans organization.

3

the Molokai organization is $9,000, and the

4

grant to the Maui organization is 5,000.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

I believe the amount to

Thank you.

Further questions, Members,

in this

7

area?

Hearing none, we have the final two,

8

Members, the Baldwin Beach House, Rand M

9

services and contracts, as well as the Maui

10

County Environmental Resource Center, Rand M

11

services contract, for a total of 150,000.

12

We have with us Mr. Parsons.

13

Mr. Parsons,

14
15

if you can, please identify

yourself for the record.
MR. PARSONS:

Good morning, Council Members.

Rob

16

Parsons, Executive Assistant for Environmental

17

Concerns in the Mayor's office.

18
19
20

21
22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Members, any questions on this request,

this proposal?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, because I am a little

23

confused with earlier, we had,

I guess,

24

transferred -- or the money was supposedly along

25

with the position -- if I understood correctly
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1

what was said,

2

Mayor's office, but there is still the $100,000

3

showing.

4

under the Mayor's office?

5

little confused with the last comment that was

6

made.

7

MR. GINOZA:

it was to be transferred to the

So if -- you know, has it always been
Because I was a

Could you address that?
May I, Mr. Chair?

8

I -- I believe the comment was that the

9

funding of the -- these two items are under the

10

Public Works but is administered by Mr. Parsons

11

from the Mayor's office.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

You know,

and I -- it

13

just didn't sound right what was said before, so

14

that was always my understanding.

15

change.

Okay.

There's no

I wanted to make sure of that.

16

And then, with regard to a comment that

17

was made the other day by one of the testifiers

18

regarding security for the Baldwin Beach House,

19

it was stated that the place had been broken

20

into, perhaps vandalism, drugs, people

21

homeless people living in there.

22

status on that in terms of securing the asset

23

now that it is part of the County's property?

24

MR. PARSONS:

25

CHAIR KANE:

What is the

Chair.
Please.
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Thank you for your question, and thank

2

you for your consideration of this item.

3

something that I am really excited about the

4

possibilities of utilizing this County property

5

in this manner.

It's

6

As far as security in that area,

I -- I

7

think this is kind of indicative of the overall

8

homeless problem, and I know that the North

9

Shore has its share in this area.

The wooded

10

dunes behind Baldwin Beach between Paia and

11

Spreckelsville, there's -- my observation is

12

that there are some folks camping there, and

13

they are -- folks probably have been living

14

there for a period of time.

15

We had a volunteer clean-up day at the

16

house.

17

to was there, and -- and worked all day, and we

18

did a lot of yard,

19

inside the house, did windows and floors,

20

secured a window that had formerly been jimmied

21

open.

I think the testifier you are referring

landscaping, and also worked
and

So there is a need for an ongoing

22
23

presence there, and I feel that -- that the

24

sooner there

25

better.

lS

a presence at that building, the

But we are establishing a presence by
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1

going in and doing cleanups.

2

doing one the first Saturday of every month

3

with

4

very successful way to partner with some of our

5

environmental organizations, to -- to caretake.

6

We are going to be

with volunteers, and I think that's a

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And I am just looking at the

7

funding.

8

looking at the '07 Budget, but with regard to

9

any kind of funding that might be

And of course, right now we are

- and perhaps

10

this would be to the Budget Director -- any kind

11

of money that would be available -- or Milton,

12

if you can answer -- for some kind of immediate

13

security.

14

have a lot of vandalism at County facilities

15

overall.

16

any money that could be even made available on

17

an emergency basis to provide some kind of

18

security.

Even if it's our Parks, because we

And I

just was wondering if there was

19

I know that we have our -- and I am

20

hoping that they are patrolling some of the

21

areas, the security that comes in for Parks that

22

was handling the camplng permits in a lot of our

23

areas.

24

really concerns me.

25

And so I

just was curious because this

And then is there going to be money if,
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1

let's say, in the 2007 Budget, if we do move

2

forward with developing this property into some

3

kind of a learning center?

4

MR. GINOZA:

I

I can look into that with the Parks

5

budget.

6

doesn't have any moneys available,

7

And as Mr. Arakawa mentioned, he

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Yeah,

so . .

I -- I

just

8

really don't want there to be -- because there's

9

a potential for damage to occur to that in the

10

interim, so I

just want to know that we are

11

protecting the public's assets.
But is there sufficient money, do you

12
13

believe, in the '07 Budget, then, to do some

14

type of security as well as general overall

15

maintenance of that property?

16

MR. GINOZA:

Yes,

I would like to defer to

17

Mr. Parsons because in the explanation for the

18

100,000, it's primarily to maintain the property

19

as -- as it is right now, and not so much for,

20

you know,

21

and -- and I believe to include some of the

22

fencing to provide some security measures for

23

the property.

24

Mr. Parsons.

25

CHAIR KANE:

renovations as such, but to maintain,

So I need to defer to

Thank you.

Mr. Parsons.
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I -- I did provide our Budget Director

2

with a breakdown of the $100,000 for maintenance

3

and upgrades.

4

penciled in $5,000 for security.

And in that breakdown, I -- I

There is an existing security system.

5

6

think that it would probably be necessary to go

7

through and -- and review if that's going to be

8

sufficient for future needs.

9

system were turned on now, it would be a

If the security

10

question of who answers the call if

11

know, a cat sets off the alarm at midnight or

12

something like that.

13

that need to be answered, but I am conceiving

14

that -- that probably $5,000 of that $100,000

15

would go towards security.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

if, you

So there's some questions

Okay.

And Mr. Chair, I will

yield for other Members to ask questions.
CHAIR KANE:

19
20

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson, questions In this area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I'd like to just start with,

21

maybe, giving Mr. Parsons an opportunity to

22

explain to us how this 150,000 is going to be

23

used.

24
25

I

MR. PARSONS:

Thank you.

As I -- as I stated, the

$100,000 would be for maintenance of the house
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1

and property.

2

being a beachfront location, requires a little

3

more in maintenance for the structure itself,

4

with the salt air and wind and such.

5

a number of palm trees there, so there's some

6

landscape maintenance that will be ongoing also.

7

I

I

believe that the location,

There are

do feel that there -- that -- that

8

these funds for maintenance and upgrades to the

9

facility and the landscaping can be leveraged

10

with volunteer help.

11

support from environmental organizations and

12

individuals that I have spoken with, and you

13

know, there are people I talked to last night

14

when I made a presentation at Kihei Community

15

Association that signed up and said, you know, I

16

would love to see the place, and I

17

your next clean-up.

18

support for what is in the budget here.

19

leverage that to a certain degree.

20

And there's been broad

will be at

So I think we will get some
We will

The other $50,000 that is in the budget

21

would be to undertake to contract a conceptual

22

planning and design study for utilizing this

23

facility in this manner.

24

through a lot of the possibilities and ask for

25

some professional planning assistance in order

And I think we need go

Inc.
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to put this in its highest and best use.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So the 100,000, how much of

3

that -- for the maintenance, how much is that

4

for the house and how much is that for the yard?

5

MR. PARSONS:

If I may,

I will run down what -- what

6

I broke down that maintenance budget.

7

maintenance, 20,000.

8

decks,

9

road, 10,000.

25,000.

Painting the house and

Graveling or paving an access
Bathroom fixtures,

10

Security alarm system,

11

system,

12

Fencing,

13

Phone and Internet,

14

another 5,000.

5,000.
5,000.

Landscape

5,000.

10,000.

Irrigation

Pest and termite control, 5,000.
Draperies and fixtures,
5,000.

5,000.

And miscellaneous,

15

I -- I walked through with Jay Buzianis,

16

one of our -- our -- our CIP Coordinator, and he

17

helped break down this budget with estimates in

18

those areas after viewing what is there.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So, Mr. Parsons, do you

20

know, then, what the annual maintenance fee

21

would be if this building were to be utilized in

22

the manner you are proposing?

23

MR. PARSONS:

No, but I think that's something that

24

would come -- it would get more clarity on that

25

by -- by undertaking a conceptual planning and
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1

design study so that we would be able to -- to

2

get a better look at those ongoing costs, annual

3

costs.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So the 50,000 is just to do

5

a study to, what, retrofit the house, or,

I

6

mean -- are you anticipating further costs in

7

in retrofitting the house?

8

going to cost 50,000 to plan and design how you

9

are going to retrofit it, then it's going to

I mean, if it's

10

cost,

11

redesign the house, or whatever you are

12

planning.

I am assuming, more than that to actually

13

I am trying to get a feeling for how

14

much investment the County needs to make into

15

this -- further investment the County needs to

16

make into this house, and then to make it usable

17

for the purpose that you are proposing.

18

then what the ongoing cost, the annual cost,

19

would be in maintaining it.

20

MR. PARSONS:

And

I agree with you that we need to know

21

what those costs will be, and I think that they

22

can be best identified by undertaking a planning

23

study such as this.

24
25

I don't have the expertise on my own to
try to identify annual costs of the building.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

43

1

What I can provide here is direction.

2

giving you anything that's set in stone.

3

appreciate all your input.

4

think, as well, will help shape the final use of

5

this building to bring it into an appropriate

6

public use as the lawsuit settlement called for.

7

I am not
I

And the community,

I

So I -- I can't speak specifically to

8

what the ongoing cost might be, but I think that

9

the conceptual planning design study will help

10

us identify those.

11

MR. GINOZA:

May I, Mr. Chairman

12

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

13

MR. GINOZA:

-- add additional explanation?

14

And, Mr. Parsons,

correct me if I'm

15

wrong, but the objective of the 50,000 was

16

ideally to do both the conceptual drawing as

17

well as evaluating it as a feasibility study to

18

determine whether the

19

can be used for the purposes that was intended

20

because there were discussions about the need

21

for retrofitting for ADA compliance.

22

the particular building

And as part of the overall study,

23

hopefully, we will get an idea of, you know,

24

what kind of cost that would be incurred to get

25

it to the position where it could be used for
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the intended purpose.

2

So you know,

it is my understanding that

3

the 50,000 is to try to get to that objective of

4

seeing what -- what can be used -- I mean,

5

whether the building can be used for that

6

purpose.

7

respect to your question,

8

cost would be then determined based on the

9

intended use of that property.

10

So I guess in the final analysis, with

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I think the annual

So, Mr. Parsons, you've --

11

you have spent time in the building.

12

that it's going to take a lot of retrofitting in

13

order to be able to have it function as what

14

your intended purpose is?

15

MR. PARSONS:

Do you see

I see that it will take some

16

retrofitting.

17

hundreds of thousands of dollars.

18

know that there are -- you know,

19

a private residence and is now a public

20

facility,

21

open it to the public in the near future.

22

I don't think it will take
It

we do

it was built as

or we are -- we are hoping that we can

So, yes, we do have to comply with ADA.

23

There may be accommodations needed to one of the

24

bathrooms and also to the second floor.

25

Also,

it's in the tsunami zone.
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We also know that there -- in the

1

2

permitting process initially, there were

3

exemptions that were given.

4

that weren't acquired.

5

Shoreline Certification.

There were things

There was never a
SMA was exempted.

In speaking with Corp. Counsel and the

6

7

Planning Director, there was agreement that the

8

County wouldn't seek to go in and occupy the

9

house and utilize it unless those considerations

10

had been met; in other words, we are not going

11

to go in and do what we told the owners they

12

couldn't do without the permits.

13

the conceptual planning will be identifying

14

those things that would need to be done before

15

utilizing the facility.

16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We -- part of

And that would include a

Community Plan Amendment?
MR. PARSONS:

The Community Plan designation is in

19

Park and Open Space.

20

a Change in Zoning because the zoning is

21

Interim.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It would require I believe

And also a Community Plan

Amendment?
MR. PARSONS:

I don't have my notes on that.

We have

discussed it with Planning Director, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Because I don't know that,

2

you know,

3

appropriate in Community Plan designated Park

4

and Open Space.

5

to have to do a Community Plan Amendment.

6

MR. PARSONS:

an office building would be

So I am assuming you are going

I don't have my notes from -- from that

7

discussion, and it's been some months since we

8

have discussed that.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
when you want.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

also .

I have other questions.

Well, there's a lot of other people that

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

Mr. Chair, you can stop me

Okay.

I would be happy to yield.

We will go ahead and make a round

for -- on this item.

16

Mr. Carroll, any questions?

17

We are going to come right around,

18

Members, okay?

19

much as possible in order.

20

We are -- we are trying to do as

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Yes, thank you.

21

Consideration has been made,

is the

22

Administration is considering that house for

23

some use.

24

tear the whole bloody thing down,

25

it would cost, and just restore the area to what

Has any consideration been to just
and how much
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1

it was?

2

MR. PARSONS:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

MR. PARSONS:

Chair.
Mr. Parsons.
Thank you.
I -- I have heard some discussion of

5

6

Has that been considered?

that.

7

My sense

lS

that when -- once people see

8

what's there and see what a beautiful facility

9

it is,

in that location, that the proposed usage

10

as an environmental education center becomes the

11

appropriate idea for that -- for that building.

12

I think that there would be, actually,

13

tremendous costs incurred in demolishing it at

14

that.

15

acquired for that as well, to dismantle it.

You know, permits would have to be

The construction does not lend itself to

16

It's built

17

rebuilding it in another location.

18

on large cement columns because of the tsunami

19

zone.

20

bottom story.

There's breakaway walls in the -- in the

It's -- it's County property now, and

21

it seems to me that just to tear it down is

22

I

23

not the -- the best option.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
problem with that.

I will just say that I have a
It wasn't appropriate for
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1

the owners to have everything -- anything over

2

there,

3

didn't want anything over there.

4

it is a County property, we are saying, well,

5

you know, that's fine.

and it was obviously that the community
But now that

Let's make use of it.

I still think that that should be a

6

7

consideration,

8

that is -- it seems to me that that is what the

9

area was for,

just restoring the area, because

Parks and Open Space.

Now that we

10

have acquired something that was inappropriately

11

put there, we are saying, well, you know, this

12

is inappropriate.

13

there.

This is supposed to be Parks and Open

14

Space.

But since we had to go and buy it, we

15

are going to go over there and make use of it.

16

It is not supposed to be

I still think that it should be a

17

consideration and more seriously looked at at

18

just removing the entire structure and what the

19

cost would be.

20

And so you said that the cost would be

21

substantial, but since you have never considered

22

it,

23

something is not usually very expensive.

24

take a very big piece of machinery over there

25

and some trucks.

I don't see how you can say that.

Removing
You

You are not talking about
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1

asbestos removal or anything else.

2

seem like it would be excessive cost in doing

3

this.

4
5

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Thank you for your comments,

Mr. Carroll.
Ms. Tavares.

6

7

It doesn't

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Could you share with us what

8

groups were consulted or got input from

9

regarding the use of this structure?

What

10

other -- what groups other than the ones we have

11

heard about?

12

And if they were, who were they?

13

MR. PARSONS:

Were other non-profits contacted?

Certainly.

I know as far as County

14

Departments,

15

and looked at the -- the building there.

16

looked at the building.

17

potential office.

I know that Police Department went
Parks

CDBG looked at it for a

I actually think that with the storage

18
19

there -- there's two, two-car garages,

20

there's opportunity for Parks or Aquatics to

21

utilize the large amount of storage that's

22

there.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

Mr. Parsons.

25

MR. PARSONS:

I think

I am sorry -- I am sorry,

Other than County agencies.

Other than County agencies,

I don't
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have the answer for that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And who is

3

the discussions as far as the

4

structure?

5

the County?

6

did this all come about?

7

MR. PARSONS:

Was it you or

who is leading
the use of this

- or another part of

Was it the Mayor's office, or how

Well, about a year ago,

a little more

8

than a year ago,

I envisioned, actually at

9

another property, here, very close to the County

10

building -- the yellow building that's on Nakui

11

Street, behind us, that has a couple of counties

12

in it -- couple of County offices in it,

13

conceived that having a physical location for

14

the County's environmental efforts would be a

15

great bridge between the County and the

16

community,

17

environmental efforts rather than just a -- an

18

office in this building.

19

place, a one-stop shop where people could learn

20

what they want to about environmental efforts

21

and organizations here on Maui that are working

22

in that arena.

23

I

really, to highlight all our

It would be a go-to

So I actually began doing a lot of

24

planning for an environmental center far in

25

advance of when the Baldwin Beach property was
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acquired via the settlement of the lawsuit.

2

At that time,

I discussed with Mayor.

3

He proposed that that be

4

location as a possible Environmental Resource

5

Center.

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7
8

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

9
10

Okay.

- that I look at that

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

11

Good morning, Mr. Parsons.

12

for bringing this matter to our attention.

13

Thank you

Following up to Member Tavares' question

14

about who was consulted, was there any

15

consideration to getting input from the -- I

16

believe there's a church nearby,

17

Paia Main Street Association?

18

entities were contacted to give input on the

19

uses of this property?

20

MR. PARSONS:

as well as the

Any community

I -- I haven't made formal

21

presentations with them.

Since

-

since I have

22

been involved with this the last several months,

23

I have put together the -- the PowerPoint

24

presentation that I provided each of you with,

25

and I am in the process now of going to various
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

52

1

community groups and organizations to present

2

this opportunity and just to discuss, you

3

know -- to let people know what's there, how it

4

came about, and what I conceive that may be an

5

appropriate public use as an Environmental

6

Resource Center.

7

So that hasn't happened yet, but I do

8

anticipate bringing this to the -- the greater

9

community.

10

I think the discussion lS really just

11

beginning here, and as -- as I said,

12

welcome the input from,

13

Members as well as the community to shape this

14

into something that really will work for our --

15

our community as a whole.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

you know,

I really

you Council

The Administration's,

17

guess, and I guess your vision for this is to

18

have this as an Environmental Resource Center.

19

What environmental entities have expressed

20

interest in,

21

structure,

22

Environmental Resource Center?

23

particular entities express interest?

24
25

MR. PARSONS:

I

I am assuming, managing the

if it is to be a resource,

Yes,

I have.

First,

Have you had any

I can tell you

that when -- when this possibility was first
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1

brought to my attention, the first thing I did

2

was contact Christina Hemming, who spent years

3

in the legal tussle over this,

4

Dana and Isaac Hall, and I proposed the idea to

5

them,

6

this in -- in the public's hands,

7

and as well as

since they fought for years to -- to keep
really.

And they -- they felt that this was a

8

very appropriate use, and so I -- I felt that I

9

had their blessing and went forward from that

10
11
12

point on.
Can you -- can you restate .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Sure.

Yeah,

just

13

continuing -- because it's been brought to my

14

attention, you know, many families,

15

families are always looking for places to

16

congregate for their beach parties, and we have

17

such limited areas,

18

attention, one possible use of using that house

19

is, you know, with modifications, as an

20

extension of the -- our Parks department, as a

21

community center,

22

mini community center, or a place that could be

23

permitted for families to have their beach

24

parties and birthday parties, and etc.

25

been suggested to me.

local

it's been brought to my

in other words, a potential
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Also,

1

in terms of the -- if it is to be

2

used as an Environmental Resource Center, do you

3

foresee the need for County personnel to assist

4

whatever entity that would be managing the

5

operation?

6

MR. PARSONS:

First of all,

I think that uSlng that

7

as a -- as a meeting space, or kind of an

8

extension of a community center does make sense.

9

And secondly,

I -- I think the model

10

that best fits here is the Maui Economic

11

Resource Center, which is run with one County

12

employee, and largely utilizes interns from the

13

college, who are interested in business and

14

and learning retail, getting that kind of

15

experience.

16

And I believe that here, with an

17

Environmental Resource Center, there may be the

18

need for an operations manager there.

19

maybe the need for a full- or part-time

20

maintenance person,

21

on -- on this facility inside and outside.

22

There

such as what Les does here

I -- I didn't seek to ask for an

23

additional position in the budget,

24

just don't think we are there at the planning.

25

I think that this needs to take shape better

and I -- I
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before we describe that position.

2

And it could be something that happens

3

through a grant or a non-profit.

4

things,

5

conceptual planning and design study so that we

6

can look at a range of possibilities and then

7

choose our best option.

8

9

I think, can

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
input on this.

Okay.

Those kind of

can be discussed in

Thank you for your

And I'd just ask that you

10

continue to solicit input from the North Shore

11

community on the uses of the beach house.

12

MR. PARSONS:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

16

Will do.
Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo, any questions in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, yeah.

17

I think this is a difficult one for me,

18

Mr. Parsons, because throughout the proceedings

19

with this particular issue, you know, even

20

Corporation Counsel was involved in -- in the

21

discussion and helping us understand the

22

illegality of a building, you know, the need to

23

keep Open Space, the need to preserve the area.

24
25

So we actually fought or got involved in
a dispute between the use of the house, itself.
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1

And now that we have reached a settlement and

2

part of the settlement terms says public use, I

3

don't know how we are equating public use with

4

put an office or put a center in the designated

5

Open Space area.

6

was just that, Open Space, with no structures.

My perception of Open Space

So I, at this particular point, kind of

7

8

agree with Mr. Carroll, that we should not

9

utilize a facility or a building structure that

10

was determined to be illegal to begin with, and

11

you know, months later, feel it appropriate for

12

us to do exactly what we fought against.
So the question would be, perhaps, to

13
14

Corporation Counsel, you know, is there an

15

opinion in terms of now it's okay for us to

16

utilize this facility that we fought against?

17
18
19

CHAIR KANE:

Good mornlng, Ms. Fujita Villarosa,

Corporation Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair,

I personally wasn't

20

involved in this matter, so I'd have to get back

21

to you on that.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23

24

Thank you.

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

I'm done.

Mr. Hokama, thank you for your

patience.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would support the request by

3

Mr. Mateo, Chairman, that I think it's important

4

we understand the settlement's parameters of

5

what the County can and cannot do with the

6

property.

7

for us.
And hearing the comments of Mr. Parsons,

8

9

I think that would make it helpful

I would say that

wouldn't you agree,

10

Mr. Ginoza, that the request should be,

instead

11

of 50,000 for repair and maintenance services

12

contracts, the request should be for 50,000 of

13

Professional Services?
Because our understanding of what was

14
15

shared this morning is they want to hire a

16

consultant to help develop options for the use

17

of the property.

18

repalr and maintenance.

19

MR. GINOZA:

Yes,

We are not talking about

it could be In a better

20

classification.

21

services and contract item.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But basically,

it's under the

Then I would ask the Committee to

23

consider, under the Baldwin Beach House, we add

24

a subaccount for Professional Services, and

25

maybe put the 50,000 there to help develop
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1

options and proposals, and we strike out the

2

Environmental Resource line item, which could be

3

one of the options under the Baldwin Beach House

4

funding,

5

funding amount.
Mr. Parsons,

6

MR. PARSONS:

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

any comments?

I am okay with that.
Because I think it leaves the

8

County the flexibility,

9

some Members wanting Open Space, park use.

you know,

you've heard

10

Other Members have concerns that it needs to be

11

for everybody instead of just a specialized

12

area, Mr. Chairman.

13

So I would think that that might be a

14

reasonable consideration for this Committee,

15

Mr. Chairman.

16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Members, Chair has been informed that

18

Ms. Benni D'Enbeau, who had specific knowledge

19

of the case and where -- how we arrived to where

20

we are at,

21

so we will

22

any other questions,

23

here, then we will just come right back and

24

provide some focused discussion in this

25

particular area.

lS

available and is on her way down,
we will move forward.

If there's

and then when she gets
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Any further questions?

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4
5

Oh,

Ms. Anderson.

Ms. Johnson.

I am sorry.

Ms. Johnson.

Excuse

me.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The only question I had was

6

just regarding the actual -- the security, all

7

of the other things that Mr. Parsons first spoke

8

about, which are in line 6138, and the $100,000,

9

we are -- we are just, you know, maintaining the

10

property or at least up -- you know, keeping it

11

up until we decide what's going to be done with

12

it.
What would happen to that?

13

Or is --

14

would that still be appropriate to leave it in

15

this area?

16

you know,

17

think that part of it should be left there.

18

MR. GINOZA:

19

there.

I guess that's a question for us to,
answer.

Yes,

But I mean, personally,

I agree.

I

I think it should be left

It is a repair and maintenance item.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.
Well,

I -- I think that it's

23

more than a repair and maintenance.

24

it's -- it's an investment in -- I mean, we have

25

got bathroom fixtures,

I think

10,000; gravel driveway
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1

at 10,000; $25,000 for painting.

2

know -- I agree that we need to maintain the

3

building in its current status so it is not

4

deteriorating until we decide what to do with

5

it, but I don't think we should be investing

6

money in it until we decide what we are going to

7

do with it.

I

And there's quite a bit of money within

8

9

You know,

that 100 grand, as Mr. Parsons just told me

10

earlier, that is going to upgrade the building,

11

so -- and its surrounding area.

12

My concern, first of all, Mr. Parsons,

I

13

am 100 percent in favor of the County having an

14

environmental center,

15

that this is the appropriate place to do it.

16

concern has always been parking.

17

that we should be taking away any beach parking

18

for people to utilize this building, which is,

19

after all,

20

with.

21

I am not just not sure
My

I don't feel

in an inappropriate place to begin

And if we had not been threatened with a

22

Federal lawsuit that would have cost the County

23

way more money than we had already invested in

24

fighting the lawsuit that we had on our hands,

25

we probably would have gone ahead with the
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1

lawsuit, and who knows but the end result may

2

have been that the building had to be torn down.

3

So, we are sort of in a windfall

4

situation because we decided on a settlement

5

rather than to go forward with the Federal

6

lawsuit.

7

position of the -- of the owners in the

8

settlement that they wanted no commercial use of

9

the building, like a restaurant or something of

10
11

And you know,

it -- it was the

that nature.
So you know, that is -- as far as I

12

understand it, that's the only constraint we

13

have in the use of the building.

14

it up to a wide spectrum of possibilities.

15

So that opens

And you know, my concern is that this is

16

a heavily eroding shorefront.

17

the erosion rate maps show that the frontage

18

along this area, the shoreline, is eroding at a

19

rate between five feet per year, to three feet

20

per year in this little segment where -- where

21

this beach house lS.

22

illegal underground berm fronting this house.

23

It's -- it's

And in fact,

there is an

And I would hope that the County would

24

go In and remove that berm, and if -- if it

25

doesn't -- if the County doesn't do it, you
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1

know, voluntarily, now that we own the -- the

2

home, then I would -- I would assume that it's

3

going to be mandated when and if we go through a

4

permitting process to use the house because it

5

is illegal to have an underground berm.
And it's only a matter of years, and not

6

7

that many, before that berm could be engaging

8

with the wash of the waves.

9

don't remove the berm, then that's gOlng to

10

cause greater erosion to the sandy beach on

11

either side.

12

I am sure.

13

eroding right now.

And -- and if we

And -- and you are aware of that,
You

you know how badly it's

So my concern is why would we invest a

14
15

lot of money in a building that eventually is

16

going to cause environmental damage to a public

17

beach?

18

there to protect the home.

Because we would have to keep the berm

19

So has there been any consideration on

20

moving that house and putting it in a location

21

where it -- it could be protected and where you

22

could have adequate parking?

23

And as -- as I look at the maps,

it

24

seems to me that the Lime Kiln site, the Paia

25

side that we also purchased, you know,

it has a
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1

hardened shoreline already.

2

grandfathered in since the days of the Lime

3

Kiln.

4

directly to it, and there appears to be plenty

5

of place to put parking.

It's been

There lS an access road from the highway

So I am wondering i f -- i f any of you

6
7

folks have considered the cost of moving the

8

building and restoring that area to its natural

9

state.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MR. PARSONS:

Mr. Parsons.
Thank you.

12

Thank you for your questions.

13

The discussions that -- that I have had

14

with a few individuals indicated to me that they

15

did not feel that moving the -- the building was

16

a suitable option; that it was best

17

utilized

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

you quoting?

20

MR. PARSONS:

Well, who are you -- who are

I went there with a contractor, walked

21

through with a general contractor.

22

Buzianis.

23

Also Jay

And also with an engineer.

And because of the style of

24

construction, those three people, three

25

individuals that I can recall that I have had
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1

that discussion with, and they did not feel that

2

moving that building was feasible.

3

What I am hearing from Council Members

4

is that some of you would like more information

5

on what those costs might be,

6

feasibility in doing that and

7

trying to identify costs of demolishing the

8

building as well.

9

if there is any
and perhaps

So those aren't things that -- that I

10

have pursued because it's my feeling that

11

utilizing what we have there, you know,

12

this has been quite a history of how this came

13

to be, and you know, now that Ms. D'Enbeau is

14

here,

15

that you brought up.

I

she can speak to some of the legal issues

16

But I see this as making lemonade out of

17

lemons.

18

how members of the community sought to keep this

19

open to the public rather than privatized on the

20

stretch of our most beautiful North Shore beach

21

is a story in itself and is indicative of the

22

kind of passion that many of the members of our

23

greater community have for environmental issues.

24

25

I think that the story itself of -- of

So I -- I don't disagree that perhaps
there's a suitable building site behind the
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1

larger revetment where the Lime Kiln once stood,

2

and as I said, maybe Ms. D'Enbeau can speak

3

to -- to the status because the County also owns

4

that lot of -- owns the book-end lots right now

5

through the legal settlements.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

And could you address my

7

question about parking?

8

of analysis of, you know, how many people -- I

9

mean, Mr. Molina asked what groups would be

Have you done any kind

10

involved in using the building, and you

11

didn't -- you didn't answer that question.

12

So I know that there are -- there are

13

people that are writing letters in support of

14

this idea.

15

idea of the groups that would be utilizing the

16

building so that we can get an idea of the

17

amount of traffic that would be involved and how

18

much parking would be necessary, you know, to

19

actually allow the building to serve the purpose

20

that you are -- you are proposing.

21

MR. PARSONS:

So, you know, there must be some

When we talked about this a couple of

22

months ago, you did identify parking as -- as

23

something that we would need to look into more

24

in-depth, and I -- I agree with you that we

25

shouldn't automatically assume that parking can
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1

be utilized on the Baldwin Beach side because on

2

a perfectly sunny day, all that parking is taken

3

up, and people line all the way down the drive

4

into Baldwin Beach and park to walk there.

5

I

think ideally, the

the easement to

6

this property, and I know that -- that you have

7

the map in front of you -- the easement is

8

through a cane field road that's the last

9

existing makai cane field, makai of the Hana

10

Highway is what I mean, and there's no turn lane

11

In or out there.

12

would

13

easement be a loop so that you are not limited

14

to entry from the parcel just from the Hana

15

Highway, but you can -- you can come in through

16

Baldwin Beach Park or through that way and

17

circle around.

18

So, ultimately, I think it

it would make sense to have the

There does seem to be a lot of space

19

that's not identified at the Baldwin Beach Park

20

parking lot.

21

it's just not utilized, along a side fence line

22

that borders the Zen mission there.

23

an informal discussion with John Buck about

24

what -- what could be configured for parking in

25

the temporary.

Some of it's overgrown.

Some of

I

have had

And then I think the study will
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1

help us identify in the long term what the

2

parking needs would be.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So you don't have any idea

4

of how much parking would be necessary or where

5

it would actually be placed right now?

6

7
8

9

MR. PARSONS:

I haven't done a parking study of that

sort.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I am just wondering if the

Administration can make the house available for

10

any Members who might want to see it.

11

like to go see it tomorrow because I have never

12

been inside of it.

13

invested a lot of taxpayer dollars,

14

are going invest more,

15

it is we are getting before I vote on it.

16

MR. PARSONS:

I would

And, you know, we have
and if we

I would like to see what

That certainly can be made available

17

for -- for you to better understand what is

18

there.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And would you be

available tomorrow to show it to me?
MR. PARSONS:

I would be glad to talk with you about

22

setting up a time.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Parsons.

Mr. Carroll, any additional questions?
Ms. Tavares?
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Okay.

Any other questions, Members,

In

this area?
We have Ms. D'Enbeau available to

4

provide us any comments regarding -- and we have

5

checked, and it seems as though the County

6

Council has never received a finalized

7

settlement agreement to this issue.

8
9
10
11

So we are not aware, in detail, unless
Members have it on their own, but we don't have
that information in front of us.
So, maybe Ms. D'Enbeau can give us some

12

highlight relevant to the discussion on the

13

request for the 100 as well as the $50,000, as

14

best she can.

15

Any particular question, Ms. Tavares,

16

that you would like to request from

17

Ms. D'Enbeau?

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, first of all, it is

19

unfortunate that we are having this discussion

20

during the budget session, because we really

21

need to focus on the budget itself.

22

The question I think that we -- we would

23

need to know specifically is what are the

24

restrictions of the use of that property only.

25

We don't need the background or anything else,
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just what is the restrictions on the use.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. D'Enbeau.

3

MS. D'ENBEAU:

I am caught flat-footed here because I

4

didn't have an opportunity to grab a copy of

5

the -- of the settlement agreement

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

MS. D'ENBEAU:

8

Council.

9

I tell you what, you know what

CHAIR KANE:

But I will provide that to the

Yeah, so what we will do is we will move

10

on, and then we will have to bring this back at

11

some point.

12

the speculation on those types of specifics, I

13

think it's in our best interest to -- to provide

14

time to get that information, and then have that

15

provided back to the Committee.

But instead of us, you know, doing

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Tavares.
Yes, thank you very much.

19

And if Ms. D'Enbeau could just, if this is

20

not

21

about the restriction

if this is information that can be shared

22

MS. D'ENBEAU:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

25

Yes, it can be.
It can be.

Okay.

Then, if

they can just get us that part in writing.
CHAIR KANE:

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That would be fine.

And not

the whole settlement agreement thing, only --

3

CHAIR KANE:

Only what's relevant.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

-- what's pertinent to the

5

use of the -- of the property, that -- that

6

would be -- that would be all.

7

would give us a great start.

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

Okay.

I think that
Thank you.

Thank you.

Any other questions for Ms. D'Enbeau

10

that we can request in the -- the written

11

response pertinent to this issue?

12
13

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. D'Enbeau, would it be

14

the County's responsibility, now that we have

15

purchased that property, to remove the illegal

16

underground berm?

17

MS. D'ENBEAU:

I

I don't really know how to answer

18

that question.

19

always been contested, and to my knowledge, no

20

one has gone and dug down to see if it In fact

21

is there or not.

22

course, it shouldn't be there.

23

know that it

24

issue, would be to find out if there is

25

something there.

lS

The existence of that berm has

But if it's illegal, of

there.

I -- I don't

So that's the first
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, yeah, because the

2

people who brought the lawsuit said they saw the

3

berm being built.

4

MS. D'ENBEAU:

That's true.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so would you know, if we

6

were to use this property for any purpose,

7

actually, other than as a park facility,

8

know,

a facility in conjunction with park use

9

well,

let's just say as County offices, would we

10
11

you

need to get a Community Plan Amendment?
CHAIR KANE:

Can we provide that in a written,

12

Ms. Anderson?

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

MS. D'ENBEAU:

Sure.

Yes, and that might take a little bit

15

longer.

16

parts.

17

information from the settlement this afternoon,

18

and the question being a use other than a park

19

facility, whether or not it would require a

20

Community Plan Amendment.

21
22

If it's all right,

And one is to get you just the specific

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you might want to look

at our park zoning ordinance.

23

MS. D'ENBEAU:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

I will do it in two

Right.
Because there -- and even in

Open Space, there is a provision to allow for a
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1

building for use In conjunction with park uses.

2

I am not stating it correctly, but you know,

3

there's no -- there's not a total prohibition of

4

buildings in Park and Open Space, but they have

5

to be for specific uses, and I don't know that

6

this fits that.

7

that once you have looked at it.

8

MS. D'ENBEAU:

9

CHAIR KANE:

So I would like your opinion on

Thank you very much.
Okay, Members.

We are going to end in

10

the area of Special Maintenance program unless

11

you have more questions in here.

12

pick that up when we come back from our morning

13

break.

14

Time now is about 10:35.

15

reconvene at 10:50.

16

(Gavel.)

17

RECESS:

10:33 a.m.

18

RECONVENE:

10:55 a.m.

19

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

20

reconvened.

21

10:50.

Then we can

We will

We are in recess.

Okay, Members.

We are

Thank you for that recess.

Members, we are going to continue into

22

the DSA, or Development Services Administration,

23

budget.

24

and it moves also into the area of your Program

25

on page 18-13.

That starts on 16-19 of your Details,
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me -- the mic is yours.
MR. ARAKAWA:

4

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
With me,

I also have Glenn Deno from our

5

Development Services Administration.

6

would like to start from page 16-21, the

7

Operations Budget for DSA.

8
9

And if you don't mind,

And I

I would like to

make a few comments on the Planning Department

10

audit,

11

of DSA, brief comments.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

since it does impact upon the operations

Proceed.
Just several items in the Planning

14

Department audit, there were a number of

15

recommendations in that audit, and I would like

16

to just cover a few of them.

17

One is to transfer Central Coordinating

18

Agency functions from Public Works to Planning,

19

and we just want to mention that we heartily

20

support that recommendation since the zoning

21

function actually had been transferred by

22

Charter over about a decade ago from Public

23

Works to Planning,

24

the CCA function to Planning.

25

so it makes sense to transfer

One other recommendation was that we
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1

should transfer Community Beautification

2

functions to the Planning Department as well,

3

and this is in Chapter 9.32 of the Maui County

4

Code at this point.

5

with properties that have an inordinate amount

6

of trash on it, and the Community Beautification

7

functions basically involve going out to the

8

property, doing some inspections, and notifying

9

the owner that the property is full of trash,

10

That is primarily dealing

and glvlng them some time to remove that trash.

11

If it doesn't happen, then the County

12

goes in and removes it for them and bills them

13

for our expense.

14

So anyway, we -- we support that change

15

to Planning since Planning does a lot of other

16

related duties as well,

17

to aesthetic types of issues.

relating -- pertaining

We also support another recommendation

18
19

pertaining to the elimination of the Housing

20

Code.

21

Code provisions sometimes -- in many cases, in

22

fact,

23

the Building Code.

24

in place anyway, the Building Code and Zoning,

25

the Housing Code largely becomes redundant, and,

We have found that many of the Housing

have overlapped with the Zoning Code and
So since we have those two
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1

in fact,

2

layperson.

it's somewhat confusing to the average

3

And the last point I did want to make is

4

relating to subdivision review, the comment made

5

at a previous budget meeting was that Planning

6

Department is never on time as far as

7

subdivision reviews, and I believe the Director

8

was here and said basically that they have

9

really worked hard to be on time.

10

But I

just wanted to mention that as far

11

as the preliminary subdivision reviews, which

12

this is referring to, we are -- our Department

13

is required to give comment, give preliminary

14

subdivision approval within 45 days of the

15

application.

16

So Planning Department is on time

17

3 percent of the time if we look at all the

18

applications that occurred from July 1 up to

19

March 31st.

20

being 30 days after it's sent out, they are on

21

time 1 percent of the time.

22

you know, bring that up for the Committee's

23

information on the audit, per se.

24
25

If we look at the Planning period

So I

just want to,

I can move on to the Operations Budget
for DSA.

The budget for DSA is largely flat
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1

except for one item.

2

the page, on rentals.

3

code 6235, and we are requesting $600,500 for

4

that.

5

request which was made to our Department by the

6

Parks Department.

7

That's near the bottom of
That's under subobject

And this particular item pertains to a

We have our building inspectors, our

8

plumbing and our electrical inspectors currently

9

housed in the area where the motor vehicle staff

10

was formerly housed, next to the War Memorial

11

pool.

12

vacate that space because they want that space

13

back for their own staff.

14

prompts us to try to find additional office

15

space outside.

16

And Parks basically is requesting that we

So that basically

So, anyway, the amount of money

17

basically is based on a lease of a

18

7,000-square-foot office space, including

19

storage, also includes money for renovation,

20

design, and interior construction, and

21

furniture.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

Where is that space?
The space hasn't been secured at this

24

point.

We have to basically look for space at

25

this point.
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How did you arrlve at the 600,000 figure

for the 7,000-square-foot space?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Based on what?

It's 7,000 square feet.

We've

4

estimated the lease rent at $3 per square foot

5

per month times 12 months.

6

$250,000.

That's approximately

We have also budgeted one-time

7
8

relocation expenses, renovation, design, and

9

construction of another $250,000.

10
11
12
13
14
15

And new furniture, another 100,000.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, any questions in this

area?
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

I would like to go back to the opening

16

comments that you made, Mr. Arakawa, about

17

the -- the Planning Department audit.

18

that you agree with the recommendation to

19

transfer the Central Coordinating Agency to

20

Planning.

21

that -- right now, your Department has to review

22

any applications for Chapter 19.510 as being

23

complete, and then sending it back to the

24

Planning?

25

function, too?

You said

Would that mean that in doing that,

Would that do away with that
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That's correct.

And actually,

2

Councilmember Anderson, there is an item

3

currently in the Public Works Committee, which

4

is somewhat more limited than this, but it does

5

transfer that initial completeness check, which

6

is currently done by our Department, back to the

7

Planning Department.

8

And we feel that only makes sense

9

because the applications that we are talking

10

about are processed all through the Planning

11

Department, and since the zoning functions have

12

been transferred from,

13

a decade ago,

14

familiar with all of the application checklist

15

items that are required.

16

our

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

you know, DSA to Planning

our staff is not really

Then -- then your Department

17

still reviews the application once

18

Department has determined it to be complete?

19

MR. ARAKAWA:

That is correct.

once the

We would be one of

20

the review agencies which are circulated

21

applications from the Planning Department.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So that would require

23

maybe it wouldn't require an amendment to

24

19.510, if -- if we internally change the

25

functions of the Central Coordinating Agency,
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Have you considered that?

MR. ARAKAWA:

Well,

I believe 19.510 specifically

refers to our Department.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yeah.

Oh, it does.

So that's why the bill was

6

transmitted up to the Council, and I believe it

7

has been -- either is or has been circulated to

8

the Planning Commissions for comment, and it has

9

not been transmitted back to the Council at --

10
11

at this juncture.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

And

12

you -- you talked about subdivision review, and

13

that the preliminary approval deadline is not

14

being met by the Planning Department.

15

So does that mean that all the

16

preliminary approvals that -- well, except for

17

maybe 1 percent or 3 percent, whatever it was,

18

that when they get their preliminary approval,

19

one of the conditions is that they still have to

20

undergo Planning Department review?

21

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, that's correct.

Since we do not

22

have their comments, typically, we would say

23

that the applicant would need to coordinate with

24

the Planning Department and include their

25

comments or consider their comments prlor to
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final subdivision approval.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's kind of a risky,

3

thing, though, isn't it?

4

if they have major comments that, you know,

5

means they are going to have to go back and

6

reconfigure or whatever?

7

thing for people, I would think.

10

That's kind of a risky

On the DSA lease, did you guys consider

8
9

Because what happens

One Main Plaza?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Anderson, that was

11

actually considered when a number of agencies

12

were being considered for the move over to One

13

Main Plaza, but with the inspectors, it was very

14

difficult because their needs are quite

15

different from regular office workers in the

16

sense that they need a lot of parking, because

17

they would come

18

with their own personal vehicles, and then they

19

would take the County vehicles out to the job

20

sites and then come back.

--

typically would come to work

21

So -- and plus -- plus that, there is

22

contractors and other public that come to the

23

offices as well.

24

of the parking space, which One Main Plaza

25

really doesn't have.

So there is a need for a lot
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

That was what I was

2

thinking is that any offices that need a lot of

3

public interplay,

4

I mean, there are no free parking spaces over

5

there for the public to utilize.
Okay.

6

7

CHAIR KANE:

it's not appropriate because,

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you.

8

Mr. Carroll, any questions?

9

Ms. Tavares?

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

No.

Mr. Molina.
Thank you, Chairman.

13

Getting back to the DSA rental

14

situation, did Parks indicate to you what they

15

were going to -- what type of staff they were

16

going to use in place of your DSA personnel?

17

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Molina, we are seeing Parks this

18

afternoon.

We can ask that question directly to

19

the Department so they can give us their -- what

20

their intentions

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Sure, yeah.

But I would like

22

to hear what the Department says so it matches

23

up with what Parks may tell us.

24

if, you know

25

the same page.

So I don't know

just to make sure we were all on
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MR. ARAKAWA:

I don't know.

You know,

I -- I know

2

they've asked us to move out.

3

tell you something else that's related to a

4

subsequent request.

5

move out of our Wailuku baseyard, so we are

6

asking --

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9
10
11

13

We have also asked them to

A little trade there, huh?

-- to renovate the space that they are

currently using down there.
agreement,

So it was an -- an

I guess, between the Departments.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

And I -- I can

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Sounds like the Managing Director's

14

office needs to do a little bit more of

15

discussions with their Department heads.

16

Mr. Mateo, questions?

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

None.

Mr. Hokama.
Is this the same section that

20

made a deal with Parks for that Kihei -- Kihei

21

project, with Finance's DMV?

22

No,

I think it was Parks because isn't

23

it my understanding there's an interdepartmental

24

agreement for a CIP project?

25

the waterline and grading of bathrooms and

You guys would do
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1

whatnot, even though it's not a project on our

2

books?
It just amazes me that the Departments

3

4

can consider a CIP without Council even

5

acknowledging the existence of a project.

6

Is this the same division that

7

requesting this with Finance or Parks?

8

9

MR. ARAKAWA:

No, no,

lS

I -- I think you must be

referring to that Kihei Recycling Center issue,

10

which I think we had discussed with the Council.

11

And in the '07 Budget, you know, that

12

going to be -- that is a CIP, proposed CIP.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

that is

So how does the Departments,

14

internally, come up with this agreement, tit for

15

tat?

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

We -- we just simply had some

17

discussions with the Parks Department.

18

believe they -- they have indicated they wanted,

19

and they had a need for more office space, and

20

they wanted to consolidate more of their staff.

21

I

So -- and from our side, you know, the

22

baseyard in Wailuku is getting quite crowded

23

with Solid Waste there as well as our Wailuku

24

Highways baseyard folks.

25

came to a proposal, and here it is before the --

So we simply met and
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the Council.

2

I think it's actually beneficial from

3

both sides, and you know, we just want to make

4

sure that we can hold up, you know, our end of

5

the bargain.

6

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

wants it to be built.
Thank you, Chairman.

8

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11

If that's the site the Council

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Milton,

in the -- is

12

this the Department that handles,

13

interface when complaints are lodged about

14

illegal structures or any kind of zoning issues

15

that crop up?

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

I guess, the

This division handles Building Code

17

complaints, plumbing complaints, electrical

18

complaints, as well as construction complaints.

19

The Planning Department has separate zoning

20

inspectors that would look at possible zoning

21

violations.

22

complaint pertains to.

23
24
25

So it kind of depends on what the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Do you issue grading permits

in this Division, or is that a different area?
MR. ARAKAWA:

No,

it is in this Division.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I want to understand what the

2

process is because it's confusing to me when I

3

get one response from Planning and then, you

4

know, all of a sudden trailers crop up on ag

5

land, and grading takes place, and a structure

6

appears.

7

they went and they got the permits or whatever

8

from you guys.

9

And then I am being told, oh, well

So I

just want to understand what are

10

the system of checks and balances and who would

11

be responsible for issuing that kind of a permit

12

and what kind of review takes place when

13

somebody comes in to that individual?

14

within the positions,

15

that be?

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

And

I guess, here, who would

Or do you have several people?
I am not exactly sure how to respond to

17

your question, but there -- there are a number

18

of people that reVlew a number of different

19

permits.

20

grading permit applications.

21

you know, if there's an application for

22

subdivision of property, our Department handles

23

that.

24

Department, plumbing permits as well as

25

electrical permits.

We have -- as you mentioned, we review
We also review,

Building permits are handled by our
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But like I said, if it's a zoning issue,

2

Community Plan amendment, SMA issues, those are

3

all handled by -- by Planning.

4

Now, the other thing is of course if --

5

permits that we issue are generally circulated

6

out to Planning for review before our

7

approval.

8

Planning Department's applications; they

9

normally circulate it -- circulate it out to our

our

And the same thing happens with the

10

agency as one of the agencies that reviews the

11

application prior to the approval by the

12

Planning Department.

13

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well,

I guess, based on your

14

response, because it would depend on the kind of

15

permit, then, the clerk

16

see you have got a land use, in quotes, building

17

permit clerk, and an operations clerk,

18

construction clerk,

19

functions?

20

of permit you are going to get, then you would

21

go to one -- one or more of those individuals;

22

lS

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

you know, because I

so they all have different

You know, so, depending on what kind

that correct?
That's correct.
Okay.

Then based on an

earlier comment and also along the lines of what
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1

Councilmember Anderson asked, when this permit

2

is sent out for comment by Planning, since they

3

are not responding on a very timely basis to,

4

you know, the other requests, and, you know,

5

there's a delay,

6

what kind of liability that leaves us in when

7

they fail to comment and an illegal structure

8

goes up.

9

for your Department when that's occurring?

I guess I am trying to find out

What is -- what is the responsibility

10

Because I can tell you right now we are facing

11

that situation in West Maui.

12

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson,

I

I don't

13

want to comment on any of the legal issues.

14

basically, you know, if a person or a developer

15

decides to erect a structure or otherwise do an

16

unauthorized activity without a permit, then if

17

we receive that complaint, he would get cited,

18

and then he would have to seek an after-the-fact

19

permit.

20
21
22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Well,

But

I will -- I will

visit with you afterward about the specifics.
But I am trying to understand what the

23

system of checks and balances is so that people

24

don't incur expenses for things that they

25

believe they have a permit for,

or they say they
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1

are going to do one thing, and they end up doing

2

something else.

3

So anyway -- and Planning is not

4

answering you on a timely basis, so you would

5

have no way to really check, then, according to

6

what you are saying, as to whether or not that's

7

appropriate.

8
9

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12
13

Okay.

Thank you.
Chairman.

Mr. Director -Hang on,

I have one question, please.

Thank you.

14

Mr. Director, on the rental costs, are

15

you the one who has the authority and,

16

the one who would approve all renovation plans

17

for the Divisions with respects to how you folks

18

are going to complete this transition, with the

19

600,000?

20

if so,

You are taking a guess, you are giving

21

us a number, you haven't located a spot.

22

once you get all that completed, are you the

23

person authorized to approve all the

24

authorizations or the renovations?

25

MR. ARAKAWA:

That's correct, Mr. Chair.
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Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

Chairman, thank you.

Are you allowing questions regarding the

5

Revolving Fund as part of the DSA for

6

questioning at this point, Chairman, or

7
8

9

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, go ahead.

State your question,

Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Under the building permit Revolving

10
11

Fund, is 16-25, and of course we got a handout

12

earlier this morning, Mr. Director.

13

only area that you have a dedicated KIVA

14

specialist and that -- would this specialist

15

service Engineering, also, Division?

16

explain how this person is being utilized by the

17

Department, please?

18
19

MR. ARAKAWA:

Is this the

Can you

Councilmember Hokama, are you referring

to the KIVA resource specialist position?

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yes, that's on 16-25.

21

MR. ARAKAWA:

We

the intent of this particular

lS

to basically coordinate the KIVA

22

position

23

system within our office, and also would serve

24

as an interface with other agencies that would

25

be using KIVA for our permit application
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1

systems, basically.

2

to be processed by our agency, as you know, we

3

have to also obtain permits from another -- a

4

number of other agencies.

5

person is intended to kind of coordinate this

6

whole -- this whole system.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Whatever permits that need

So that -- that

Engineering uses KIVA also,

8

right, your -- your Engineering Division,

9

regarding County CIPs?

10

MR. ARAKAWA:

That's correct.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do you have any comment -- and

12

again, part of our audit from Planning, as my

13

understanding is, Mr. Director, is that we are

14

not fully utilizing the KIVA options or the

15

ability to have KIVA provide more efficiency and

16

be able to assist your Department as well as

17

other Departments in -- in creating some

18

efficiency and reduced time.
Is this the person that you are going to

19
20

be using to expand your Department's use of the

21

KIVA program?

22

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, we would like -- I mean, you know,

23

I -- I think our Department has done a pretty

24

good job as far as using KIVA; however, you

25

know, our -- an expansion and improvement of the
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1

use can certainly be made.

2

person can certainly help us In expanding the

3

use and helping our staff become more efficient

4

in processing these applications.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And I think this

Thank you.

6

And I appreciate the handout,

7

Mr. Director, because this is the first time,

8

believe, we are being asked to consider using

9

the Revolving Fund for equipment replacement.

10

And I bring this up as the revised page 16-26,

11

Mr. Chairman.

I

12

CHAIR KANE:

I was hoping that we would allow --

13

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. -- Mr. Chair.

14

CHAIR KANE:

-- the Director to provide some openlng

15

remarks but -- and I know you wanted to get into

16

that, so I ask you to state your question.

17

But if you'd like to give us some

18

overview of the -- of this area,

I think,

19

Mr. Ginoza, you stated in your opening comments

20

this morning that you would give us that once we

21

got to this area.

22

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

24

MR. GINOZA:

I would like to explain the handout that

25

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I provided this morning.
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Members, you all have that?

Okay.

Thank you.

3

MR. GINOZA:

If you refer to 16- -- where am I, now?

4

Sorry.

5

was that in the 2007 Budget, under equipment,

6

the original statement indicated a zero balance.

7

But basically there's 169,000 worth of equipment

8

that's being requested for that Revolving Fund.

16-24.

The item that needed correction

And we provided the detail of that

9
10

169,000, and I am not sure of the relevance of

11

that detail as being discussed with Council

12

Services.

13

provided.

14

But anyway, the information is

So the only change is that 169 --

15

addition of that one six -- 169,000, and the

16

inclusion of the equipment detail in 16-26.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, so your handout is

18

replacement pages.

19

add-in, and so your current 16-26 gets bumped to

20

16-27.

21

So your 16-26 is a new

Yeah, Mr. Ginoza?

That's pretty

22

much .

23

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

24

CHAIR KANE:

Besides the change on 16-24, showing the

25

equipment adjustment.
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1

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Members.
Any additional questions, Mr. Hokama, on

3

4
5

this area that you wanted to ask?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I

just wanted to ask why at this

6

point ask us to fund five vehicles from building

7

permit Revolving Fund?

8

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?

9

MR. GINOZA:

Actually, the,

I guess, expenditure out

10

of this fund is governed by Maui County Code.

11

So I -- I don't know if it requires the Council

12

approval with respect to the expenditure for

13

equipment.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

My understanding of the

15

general purpose of the fund, Mr. Ginoza, is to

16

help expedite or clear up bottlenecks in the

17

permitting process, and that this is, you know,

18

25 percent of the building permit valuation that

19

goes into this fund to assist the Department in

20

reducing the time of app -- of processing

21

applications.

22

So again, my question is, while I

23

understand what is in the ordinance, it was

24

never requested for its use, and we have

25

basically initiated -- Council initiated the use
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1

for personnel positions.

2

the, what, ten -- ten positions coming out of

3

this fund.

4

5

That's why we have

So I am just curious what made this
year's request to be done this way?

6

MR. GINOZA:

I am -- excuse me, Mr. Chair.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead.

8

MR. GINOZA:

I apologize, but -- I don't know what

9

the request process was last year, but I

10

just included this within the schedule to

11

identify the purchases of equipment.

12

And these vehicles,

I

I believe, are being

13

used by or going to be used by inspectors for

14

that building permit process.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16
17
18

21
22

Thank you, Mr. Ginoza.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Any more questions, Members,

in the DSA

or Development Services Administration area?

19
20

Okay.

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chairman, thank

you.
Director Arakawa,

in your opening

23

remarks, you had said something about supporting

24

the transfer of different functions to the

25

Planning Department, and was one -- was one of
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them subdivision approval?

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

No.

No.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

I just wanted to make the point that

5

the Planning Department's comments just come

6

in -- anyway, based on the last three-quarters,

7

they have come in on time basically .

8

9
10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
1 percent?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Oh, the 3 percent or the

Okay.

Yeah.

Yeah.

I mean, they come in on

time very rarely, basically.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

All right.

Because I believe when the Planning

14

Director was here,

15

misunderstood the question or not, but he --

16

when I was watching,

17

impression that he mentioned to the Council that

18

he believed they were on time most of the time,

19

and I am just here to tell you they are not on

20

time most of the time.

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I clearly got the

Okay.

So you are still doing

the preliminary and final subdivision approvals?

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

I don't know if he

Yes.
And that's not going to

change?
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1

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes.

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

CHAIR KANE:
Members?

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

8
9

Thank you.

Any further questions in this area,

4

7

Okay.

DSA, Chairman?

Yeah, DSA, yes.
Mr. Hokama.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman,

budget narrative,

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am looking at the

18-14.

Yes.
And either the Director or

12

Mr. Ueno, and I am looking at the median average

13

of

14

right, Mr. Director, which lS in the middle?

15

And the only -- the one thing that catches me is

16

that in '05, Wastewater was able to review it In

17

67 days, and then the projection for this year

18

lS 210 days.

19

seven months.

20
21
22

- and this is only for electrical permits,

So it went from two months to

And then for this comlng budget year,
you are looking at 168 days to do a review.
Can you tell us,

is there something that

23

we don't know that is -- that the Division needs

24

this much amount of time to review these

25

applications?

Is there some kind of changes in
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1

the Federal or State laws that requires this

2

extended review amount?

3

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Hokama,

first thing,

4

you are referring to that paragraph in the

5

middle of the page, where it says measured

6

duration,

7

electrical permit application is received,

8

actually, that should be "building permit

9

application is received."

10

if

calendar days from date when

I think that's a

typographical error.

11

With regard to the review time of the

12

Wastewater Reclamation Division,

13

Division has been fairly prompt in their replies

14

as far as the initial review from the initial

15

submittal from the consultants.

16

consultants themselves are so busy that we

17

haven't gotten back the comments to our

18

satisfaction until, you know, this time here.

19

So I think that's the primary reason for that

20

that big increase.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I believe the

But because the

Is there a way for you to be able

22

to bring it back to the '05 numbers, at least,

23

67 days?

24
25

That's over two months.
Obviously, the consultants are not

providing your Division with the information
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1

required for a decision,

2

surprising because, you know, we have been

3

around over 100 years.

4

Department has been providing service 100 years.

5

And then,

6

the things under your performance measurements.

7

MR. ARAKAWA:

and -- which is kind of

The Division and your

I am just trying to understand one of

Well,

I think a lot of that would

8

depend on how timely the resubmittals are from,

9

you know, the applicants.

10

I think from our side, the response time

11

has been fairly constant, but as I mentioned,

12

it's basically the response time from the

13

consultants.

14

And also, you know, to kind of look at

15

the broader picture,

16

approved, there are also reviews from other

17

agencies, and the other agencies themselves may

18

also take longer than that,

19

may not actually lie with Wastewater, although

20

it is the longest time period of the agencies

21

listed here.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

in order to get the permit

and the bottom

I appreciate your comment to the

23

question, Mr. Director, because normally, we

24

hear -- the criticism is always from the outside

25

to us.

It's the Department.

It's the Division.
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And that's what we are hear, you know.

2

It's good to know,

from your point of

3

view and your experience, the delay is either

4

the company's or the individual's consultant

5

that is not responding to the need of

6

information from your Division to make a

7

decision.

8
9

So I appreciate that comment.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Can I make a follow-up on

10

that area, please?

11

from the outside have come back stating that

12

there's no consistent application of needs of

13

information.

14

that's outside that things continually get added

15

on, and it's not like there's a checklist of

16

things; but it's after they get back, then they

17

are told, well, there's this, this and that.

18

they go back, they come back, and they say, oh,

19

by the way, we have this, this, and that to do.

20

Can you help us understand that and how

21
22

Because additional comments

And again, this is a perception

that's impacting the numbers that we have?
And again,

I am just asking for, you

23

know, if -- if there's a part on our side, on

24

the County's side, that needs to accept

25

responsibility for how the operation is being
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1

managed, then we just -- we just need to

2

understand it so we can help you folks,

3

know, be more effective in what you are trying

4

to do.

5

MR. ARAKAWA:

you

Comments?
I can tell you from,

at least from our

6

Department's side, we certainly try to be

7

consistent and predictable in our reVlews.

8

Occasionally, mistakes occur.

9

that.

But we

We acknowledge

from our -- our side, our goal

10

is always to try to be consistent and

11

predictable.

12

Seeing that,

I should also mention,

13

though, that in some cases, the submittals to

14

the Department are simply incomplete, where we

15

can give back comments only based on what was

16

submitted to us.

17

think, that have come up is that as the

18

consultants have resubmitted additional

19

information, they have complained that, you

20

know, we never mentioned that to them on the

21

initial submittal.

22

that -- that piece of information was never

23

submitted originally,

24

submitted.

25

And some of the complaints,

So, anyway,

I

But in many instances,

so the comment was never

I think there are two sides
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1

to a story, every story.

2

I can only speak for our agency, you know, we

3

just try to be, from our side, consistent and

4

predictable in our -- in our reviews.

5

CHAIR KANE:

And from our side, and

And, Director, I appreciate your

6

response because the intent of the question was

7

to get two sides of the story.

8

appreciate your comments because it's difficult

9

for the outside people to admit that they are

10

they provide the problem or create the issue,

11

not -- not our -- our -- not involved with

12

creating that situation.

13

for that.

14
15

And so I

So thank you for

Yes, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

16

Chairman, thank you very much.

So Mr. Arakawa, then, if we take a look

17

at the breakdown that you provided us under that

18

same heading, yeah, for the building permits,

19

then the average turnaround time, if we are

20

looking at the number of days that you cite to

21

get a building permit, based on everybody

22

meeting your deadline is still 14 to 15 months?

23
24

25

MR. ARAKAWA:

That's correct.

It is a median

average, basically.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And -- and are we hitting that
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1

target?

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

That's correct.
And is this target consistent

4

with, like, other counties, when -- would you

5

know?

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

I can't answer that question as far as

7

other counties.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

11

oh,

12

Mr. Hokama.

13
14

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

9

10

Okay.

I am sorry.

Any additional questions?
Ms. Anderson,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I

followed by

just would like to follow

up on Mr. Mateo's question.
Is there a way, Mr. Arakawa, that you

15
16

guys can -- well, maybe you do.

17

this.

18

Mr.

Maybe you do do

Could you explain to me, then, when

19

someone comes in for a building permit and say

20

they just want to put a garage or retrofit the

21

garage as a family room or, you know,

22

of minor alteration like that, do you separate

23

those from the larger building permit requests

24

so that they can be expedited?

25

people have to wait 15 months, too?

some kind

Or do those
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CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Deno,

if you can please identify

yourself for the record.
MR. DENO:

Thank you.

I am Glenn Deno with Development Services

Administration.

5

You know, each permit is required to be

6

reviewed by different agencles,

7

know, if it has to go to the Department of Water

8

Supply, it will be sent to the Department of

9

Water Supply.

10

CODNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

so, say, you

And so that's -- I mean, you

11

don't separate out the smaller reviews from the

12

larger reviews so that they can get fast-tracked

13

and not be held -- held up by these larger

14

reviews?

15
16
17
18
19

MR. DENO:

Well,

I am not sure how each agency

triages each permit.
CODNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But what about you guys?

How do you do it?
MR. DENO:

I think they do that.

You know, they try

20

to look at the smaller, easier permits and try

21

and take care of those faster than .

22
23

CODNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

.

.

Could you use your mlC.

can't hear you.

24

MR. DENO:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Oh, sorry.

I am sorry.

Move it in for you.

Thank you.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

I didn't hear you.

3

MR. UENO:

So, could you repeat that.

Well, as far as our Department, we try and

4

look at the complexity of the project.

5

have plans examiners that look at single-family

6

plans, and also, we have dedicated plans

7

examlners that looks at commercial plans.

8

you know, the easier ones we try to get out

9

sooner than the complex one.

So we

So,

But you know,

10

that's -- we are only talking about our division

11

and not for the outside agencles.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so would you say that it

13

takes as much -- I mean, takes as much time for

14

the outside agencies to get back to you on a

15

small request as it does a large request?

16

mean, do they just take it in chronological

17

order regardless of

18
19
20

MR. UENO:

I

I am not sure how the outside agencles

handle the permits.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And when you say outside

21

agencies, do you mean agencies outside of the

22

County?

23

MR. UENO:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

No,

I mean outside of DSA.
Right.

I think that would be a -- something
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1

worth looking at trying to coordinate so that

2

because these are the complaints I hear.

3

know, it takes as long to get, you know,

4

permission to wall in your lanai as it does to

5

get permission to build a whole house, and

6

that's very frustrating.

7

You

So, while you are still the Central

8

Coordinating Agency, maybe you could coordinate

9

that as your final hurrah.

10
11

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

12
13

Mr. Ueno, you are the Land Use and Codes
Administrator?

14

MR. UENO:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17
18
19
20
21
22

No,

That's your title?

I am not.

What's your title?

Just

for titles purposes.
MR. UENO:

I am the Assistant Engineering Program

Manager.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

assistant.

Thank you.

You are the

Thank you very much.

Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just quickly,

23

this straight,

24

your rental, under DSA.

25

I am sorry.

I -- so I can get

I want to go back to 16-21 on

The 7,000 square feet that you currently
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1

utilize at -- at the War Memorial Parks complex,

2

how many people do you have there and how many

3

would be relocated to this new lease area,

4

please?

5
6

MR. UENO:

There's currently 23 positions down there

right now.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

MR. UENO:

9

10
11

12

Yeah.

Twenty-three?
So the same amount would be

relocated.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And this all has to do

with plan reviews, basically?
MR. UENO:

The sections that's down there right now

13

is the building inspection section, the

14

electrical permitting and inspection section,

15

and the plumbing permitting and inspection

16

section.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Which is all part of DSA, right?

18

So then I would ask, Mr. Chairman, if

19

you would maybe have Corp_ Counsel -- I think

20

it's possible that maybe the -- this Revolving

21

Fund may be a consideration for the use of the

22

rental instead of the General Fund.

23

You know, we've got $1.8 million in the

24

budget proposal that this fund is going to have.

25
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1

this funds was to be utilize to help permit

2

processing, and it doesn't make sense to have

3

the fund keep growing and growing and we are not

4

utilizing for what Council enacted this special

5

provision for, Chairman.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We will go ahead and --

7

Mr. Taguchi, is it possible for us to get a

8

quick turnaround with Corporation Counsel on

9

this item?

10

MR. TAGUCHI:

Yes, yes, we can ask Corporation

11

Counsel.

12

allows for that type of rental type of

13

situation.

14

CHAIR KANE:

I am not quite sure whether or not it

So we will go follow up.
Ms. Fujita, are you prepared to respond

15
16

at any point today or is -- is this something

17

that you folks need to look at and get back to

18

us soon?

19

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Mr. Chair,

lS

this the plan

20

review, permit processing, and inspection

21

Revolving Fund?

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

That

lS

correct.

Mr. Hokama?
Yes, that's correct.

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Maui County Code states that
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1

these fund -- this fund may be used for

2

materials, supplies, and equipment that will

3

facilitate plan review and for payment of

4

overtime and travel expenses for plan checking,

5

permitting, permit processing, and inspections.
It's fairly specific.

6

It doesn't -- it

7

doesn't specify about rent or cost of a

8

facility.

9

just a plain reading of it, it didn't appear to

10
11
12
13

So, you know,

I mean, it would be

allow for rental.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
rent,

Nor does it disallow the use of a

for rental.

MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:

Basically, when we look at the

14

use of revolving funds,

15

it depends on the language.

16

general, then, you know,

17

almost anything for that program.

18

instance, it does have a little bit more

19

specificity.

20

supplies, and equipment, and for overtime and

21

travel expenses.

22
23
24
25

if it doesn't -- well,
If it's fairly

it can be used for
But in this

It does say for materials,

So because this, the language is a
little bit more specific .
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

It's got to say personnel, or we

wouldn't have personnel In this budget for
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years.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA:
about?

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

move on.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8
9

For a salary, you are talking

Well, Chairman, we can move --

Thank you.

Yeah,

so . . .

We -- we can work with

Corporation Counsel during .
CHAIR KANE:

.

I was going to give her about another

10

two seconds, and then I was going to jump in and

11

say, well, we will come back and provide them

12

with additional time to -- to give it a good

13

look.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17
18

Thank you, Chairman.

Yes.
Ms. Tavares, you had a comment, a

question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, to follow up on

19

Mr. Hokama's statements or his -- his questions,

20

that if the Revolving Fund description does not

21

permit or allow these

22

that we are considering, that we should have an

23

amendment that we can take up the same time that

24

we take up the budget.

25

And to me,

these types of things

it's a -- it's a reasonable
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1

expense to say rentals or any other cost,

2

if it doesn't say personnel, and I didn't hear

3

you read that.

4

thing.

5

ordinance.

I mean, that's one big glaring

Personnel is left out of this particular

But you know,

6

like

I don't think we should

7

let that fact stop us from doing what we think

8

is right to do.

9

ordinance to include this.

Fix the ordinance or expand the
Because we are all

10

looking at the same purpose and the same program

11

to accomplish its goals and objectives and

12

missions.

13

it is that we need to do as a County and not

14

wait until next year to amend this -- this

15

ordinance.

16

into consideration with this budget.

17

CHAIR KANE:

So let's make the things fit for what

Amend it now so that we can take it

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

So we will have

18

staff, Members, take a look at this and see what

19

we can do or what -- if there's anything that

20

ties our hands from doing what you are saying.

21

So we will just look into that, and then make

22

the move to consider that at the same time.

23

And interesting that it would tie into

24

the consideration of permit fees in general; if

25

we do include that, you know, how would that
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1

affect the permitting fee as far as our

2

discussion in the other areas of DMV where we

3

are talking about some areas there should be

4

more,

5

actual costs of this is.

6

in, as well, to the discussion.

some should be less, based on what the
So I think that ties

7

Any further questions in DSA, Members?

8

I know there's one question I had on a

9

pretty big number,

just to get explanation if we

10

haven't already got it, and that's on the -- the

11

16-23 Details on both -- and it is on the

12

adjusted one,

13

adjusted one, but under the abandoned vehicle

14

scrap metal program, we go from the 599,000,

15

this current year up to $2.6 million.

16

right above that, there's a contractual service

17

of $103,500.

20
21
22
23
24
25

And then

Director, if you can provide comment

18
19

so if you want to look at the

there, please.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair, that's not in DSA, but I --

I was planning to cover that next.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

I am sorry, yeah.

am getting ahead of myself.

I am sorry.

Okay.

So, final questions in DSA?
none, Members, okay.

I

Seeing

Let's move into that area.

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

Mr. Ueno, thank you very much.

1

2

112

MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. -- Mr. Chair.
This is on page 16-23, the abandoned

3

4

vehicle scrap metal program, and this program is

5

under -- or administered by our Solid Waste

6

Division.

7

our Solid Waste Division Chief.
And as you mentioned in Fiscal Year '06,

8
9

And with me I have Tracy Takamine,

we had a request of $599,820, and in '07, it -

10

we are asking for a significant increase, up to

11

$2,755,500.
Let me glve you some general information

12
13

about the program.

In the 2006 Budget, when we

14

crafted the numbers for the budget, it was based

15

on the historical trends as far as the amount of

16

cars and white goods which we had previously

17

picked up.
I just want to mention, this is -- these

18
19

were numbers that were glven us -- to us by the

20

Department of Finance, who previously

21

administered that program, and the numbers were

22

based on 170 cars per month, 170 derelict

23

vehicles per month, and 200 white goods per

24

month.

25

also stockpiled about 1,000 cars at the old

Plus, as you know at that time, we had
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Waikapu landfill.
So based on our calculations on those

3

numbers, we had requested $599,820 to handle

4

that, plus some moneys from the Highway

5

Beautification Fund.

6

However, so far,

In 2006, the amount of

7

cars and white goods have -- have exceeded our

8

projections as far as trash left on the roadside

9

for us to pick up.

So far,

in 2006, we have

10

averaged somewhere near 342 cars per month, and

11

about 591 white goods per month.

12

So we have, as you know, had an

13

emergency proclamation from the Governor to use

14

the old Puunene airport site for storage, and we

15

have been busily trying to whittle down the

16

amount of scrap metal there to the point where

17

it's just about gone, at this point.

18

So for 2007, we actually included a

19

fairly significant number.

Because we have

20

really been taken aback, actually, by the amount

21

of vehicles and white goods that have been

22

dumped on the roadsides.

23

The projections for 2007 are based on

24

400 cars per month, and about 815 white goods

25

per month, plus taking care of the 1,000 cars at
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1

the Waikapu landfill, which we still did not

2

address.

3

the fairly large increase in the amount of money

4

that we are requesting for this program.

5

CHAIR KANE:

So basically, that's the reason for

Okay.

So you have two areas, you have

6

contractuals -- so this large amount, is it

7

involved with -- because you have it under

8

Miscellaneous Other Costs, which seems to be a

9

very broad area.

Is the focus going to be

10

contractual services?

11

on that $103,000 figure for the contractual

12

services on the service, please.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And if you can just touch

Chair, excuse me.

Before we

14

go forward with that, could you -- I don't see

15

any difference between what they handed out this

16

morning and what lS In here.

17
18

CHAIR KANE:

So . . .

There is no difference on that page,

Member Anderson.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

It is on the next page, and that was for

21

the equipment discussion on 16-24, the equipment

22

adjustment, on your current versus the change.

23

And on the 16-26 added .

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I

just

I

just wanted to

make sure I wasn't mlsslng something on 16-23.
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Yeah.

Yeah.

There's no change on that

handout, for that page, anyway.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

5

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair, can I provide explanation on

6

Thank you.

that 103,000?

7

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, please.

8

MR. GINOZA:

The initial projection for the contract

9

is really for the towing contracts that I guess

10

the Department has with the different towing

11

companles.

12

half million dollars.

13

being allocated to be paid from the

14

Beautification Fund, and the -- 400,000, I'm

15

sorry.

16

CHAIR KANE:

You said 4 million.

17

MR. GINOZA:

Oh, I am sorry.

And that initial estimate was about
And about $4 million is

What did I say?

400,000, being paid by

18

the Beautification Fund.

19

balance of 103,000 to be paid out of the General

20

Fund.

21
22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

That's for the towing contract,

yeah?

23

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

24

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

25

So that leaves with a

And then in the $2.652 million

request under other costs, Miscellaneous Other
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1

Costs, subobject code 6221, is that the

2

appropriate place to put what the intent of the

3

money is?

4

MR. GINOZA:

The other cost represents the vehicle

5

processing, and I guess -- I am not too familiar

6

with this, but I guess they process the vehicle

7

through third parties to do -- to take the scrap

8

metal -- scrap metal processing in crushing the

9

cars and transporting the cars off island.

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

So that's not a contractual service?

We

are not contracting out that service?

12

MR. GINOZA:

I guess it is in that respect, yes.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Any additional comment, Mr. Arakawa?

14

MR. ARAKAWA:

I -- I can provide perhaps a little bit

15

more detail on our projected cost.

16

a storage yard once the vehicles are towed from

17

the roadside.

18

vehicles and derelict vehicles.

19

difference.

20

your four wheels and your major engine parts,

21

and, you know,

22

you have major parts missing, basically.

23

goes to a storage yard.

24
25

We also need

We tow, basically, abandoned
And there's a

Abandoned, basically you still have

it looks like a car.

Derelict,
And it

And on the abandoned vehicles, there's
an auction that's -- that we are required to
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1

hold.

So there's a serVlce -- we have a vendor

2

to take care of that storage yard.

3

$127,000 for that.

We project

There are towing contracts for South and

4
5

Central Maui,

6

And the projected total for those towing

7

contracts are $504,850.

8
9

10

for Lahaina, and for Upcountry.

And we have staff costs, including the
fringes,

fringe benefits.

We project that out

to be $113,664.
And also, various administrative

11

12

expenses.

This is primarily advertising and

13

holding the auctions, and the various overhead

14

expenses.

That's 16,000.

15

So that subtotal comes out to $761,514.

16

The remainder of the request, as I

17

mentioned, was the amount for vehicle

18

processing.

19

those numbers, too.

20
21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

And if you like,

I can go over

Are you able to provide that on a sheet

that can be passed out to the Members?
MR. ARAKAWA:
writing.
CHAIR KANE:

I -- I can

I prefer to do it In

It's kind of like in my .
That's what I mean.

If you can get it

in writing to us, as soon as possible.
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Sure, sure.

I can do that.

And then, would you also be able to

3

identify specifically the contract, all the

4

contract stuff out of that $2.6 million request,

5

what you folks intend to have with contracts?
And then, finally, Members -- and thank

6
7

you for letting the Chair just cover this

8

general area -- on the contract amounts, the

9

contracts are going to go to people who have the

10

qualifications to do the specific work that you

11

are going to be requiring of them?

12

words, they are going to have the -- the needed

13

permits that allow them to do the processing; is

14

that correct?

15

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

17
18
19
20

21
22

In other

I am going to start with

Mr. Molina, and then come back around, okay.
Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Arakawa, Mr. Takamine, one of our
favorite topics, indeed.
So, bottom line

lS

with this

23

appropriations that you are requesting, which is

24

a significant increase from the prior Fiscal

25

Year, so the public can expect to see, you know,
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a less amount of cars, we hope?

2

I know this is quite a challenge you

3

have to deal with, and there's been some

4

improvement, but, you know, no -- no disrespect

5

to the work the Department is doing.

6

still needs to be more room for improvement.

7

So with that, you know, the

There

8

appropriation that you are requesting, the

9

public can expect to see better results.

10

And included In this, are you also

11

looking at some type of amnesty program or

12

providing incentive program?

13

remember from years ago,

14

you could turn in your car and actually get some

15

kind of cash back.

16

eons ago.

17

MR. ARAKAWA:

Because I can

there was a time where

Of course, this was many

Can you comment?
Councilmember Molina, at this point,

18

the vendor that we have as far as processing

19

vehicles basically charges us $345 to process

20

the car if he tows it.

21

to the facility.

22

It is 305 if we take it

So I mean, the policy -- basic policy

23

question is if someone, you know, places their

24

derelict car or their junks on the side of the

25

road, should the general taxpayers pay for that
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1

or, you know,

2

placed it on the side of the road be responsible

3

for that cost?

4

a question that we have been wrestling with.

5

And for those people who are dumping it on the

6

side of the road, what we have said is that we

7

are going to try and do our best to get after

8

these people, and they are going to have to pay

9

the cost of littering on a public property,

10

should that -- that individual who

And I think this is a, you know,

basically.

11

So in answer to your question,

I mean,

12

you know,

if this is a -- the policy that, you

13

know, the Council wants to pursue, then, you

14

know,

15

however, that means, basically, now that we are

16

saying that all of the taxpayers are -- are

17

paying for rubbish that is being placed on

18

public property.

19

a policy -- a policy question that needs to be

20

dealt with.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

certainly it's something we can do;

And that's -- that's basically

Okay.

Looking through your

22

program objectives,

23

Fiscal Year 2007 was to develop new procedures

24

to,

25

I noticed one objective for

ironically, reduce the cost of the program.
Can you comment on that?
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MR. ARAKAWA:

The vendor -- let me just go back a

2

bit.

3

former vendor to the County used in past years

4

closed down, and so we had a period of time

5

where there was no vendor, and then we had

6

our -- this nightmare of trash piling up on the

7

roadsides, and finally, there is a vendor now in

8

place; however, there were a lot of startup

9

costs.

You probably are aware that the

the

And I think that's why the -- the per

10
11

vehicle -- the unit cost for processing, I

12

think,

13

could be considered somewhat high.
There is going to be another vendor who

14

has expressed interest In processing vehicles,

15

so we intend to go out for an RFP to see what

16

kind of per-unit cost we can get.

17

Whether or not that second vendor can

18

provide something less than the original vendor

19

remains to be seen, but I think overall,

20

competition is a good thing, and we will have to

21

see if in fact the cost to the public will go

22

down.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

it will.

But we will see.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

24
25

And hopefully,

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
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Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you.

3

Mr. Director, the details you were reading to us

4

just a few minutes ago regarding the storage

5

yard costs, the towing contracts, was that an

6

explanation for the breakdown of the

7

2.6 million?

8

towing contract that I thought we were talking

9

about earlier?

10

MR. ARAKAWA:

No.

Or is that 2.6 million plus the

No.

No.

No, that's part of the

11

total cost.

12

before you is that 2.7555 million -- 2,755,500.

13

So the total request that we have

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So you are going to give a

14

detail of that miscellaneous cost?

15

Miscellaneous other cost -- am I reading this

16

correct -- is $2.6 million?

17

MR. ARAKAWA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes?

Yes.

19

sorry.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And to me -- Mr. Chair,

I am

Go ahead.
Miscellaneous Other Costs

22

should be like a catch-all for minor things.

23

This looks like pretty major, at 2.6 million.

24

But I don't know if it's in the coding, or what

25

other else can be done, but I think that that -Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

that definitely needs to be broken out, as

2

Mr. Arakawa is sharing with us that he will glve

3

us a breakdown of the entire cost of the 2.7.

4

think that would be very helpful to us to know

5

exactly where we are and what contracts are

6

being used for what sort of service.

7

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chairman, may I?

8

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza.

9

MR. GINOZA:

And I -- I agree with Member Tavares,

10

and I

11

into miscellaneous cost, and it -- and it

12

appears it's -- for us,

13

thing in terms of looking what the total costs

14

were and compared to the 2006 Budget and taking

15

the difference.

I

just want to explain how this number came

it is just a mechanical

So I agree that it needs to be broken

16
17

down within different subobject codes.

18

apologize.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR KANE:

No problem.

And I

Thank you.

Yeah, and just for clarity, the 103,500,

21

that contractual service item, Members, the

22

6112, was explained that the Highway

23

Beautification Fund of 400,000 was used, and so

24

that was the balance to cover the specific

25

towing contracts.

And that the other breakdown
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1

was what we started getting into and then we

2

stopped and just said let's get a big written

3

breakdown.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right.

Just a follow-up,

Mr. Chair, if I could.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Please, go ahead.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So, when you take it out of

8

the Beautification Funds, what is the balance in

9

the Beautification Funds for other functions of

10

that fund,

11

towing?

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

MR. GINOZA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

if you are taking out 400,000 for the

One point eight million.
Is left?

Estimated revenue.

I am -- I am sorry.

Can I

You can provide that later.

That's -- that's not a problem.

18

MR. GINOZA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Or after lunch.

Thank you.
Okay.

Thanks.

Members, I am aware of the time.

Do you

21

want to continue with this round,

22

lunch and come back, and we will take up with

23

Ms. Anderson and work right down the line on

24

this line of questioning?

25

or can we take

Is that okay, Members?
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1

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Why don't we do that.

3

our lunch break now.

4

We will reconvene at 1:30.

5

recess.

6

RECESS:

7

RECONVENE:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

Let's take

It's a little after 12:00.
1:30.

We are in

(Gavel.)

12:02 p.m.
1: 33 p.m.
(Gavel.)

Okay.

Members, we are

reconvened from our lunch recess.

For the

10

record,

11

the Vice-Chair of the Committee, Member Hokama,

12

as well as Members Anderson, Mateo, Molina, and

13

Pontanilla, heading down the walkway, and Kane.

14

in attendance, we have this afternoon

Members, I think we left off with Member

15

Anderson, and we are coming back towards Member

16

Hokama, and we are in the abandoned vehicle

17

scrap metal and white goods program.

18

Any questions in this area,

19

Ms. Anderson?

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

21

Yes, thank you, Chair.

First, the -- the 103,000 that you had

22

mentioned was for towing contract balance,

23

400,000 from the Beautification

24

Beautification Fund.

25

Then when you were breaking down some of
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1

the costs for the 2.6 million, you mentioned

2

there was $504,850 for towing contracts.

3

you explain the difference between these two

4

towing contracts, amounts?

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

So can

Director Arakawa.
Sure, Councilmember Anderson.
The 404 -- $504,850 is a accumulation of

7

8

towing contracts for South and Central Maui,

9

which we project will cost $240,350; Lahaina

10

contract, which we anticipate would cost

11

$103,500; and an Upcountry towing contract,

12

which we anticipate will cost $161,000.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so -- I am sorry.

And so the -- thank you for that,

14
15

Mr. Arakawa.

16

which the 103,000

17

existing contract that we have for towing?

18
19
20

MR. GINOZA:

So the -- the towing contract of
lS

a balance, that is for an

Mr. Chair, may I?

Can I explain that a

little bit differently?
Out of the 504,000 towing contracts,

21

there's 240,000 of -- $240,350, and there's

22

another one for $161,000 that -- that the

23

Director pointed out.

24

know, for -- for our accounting purposes, we

25

allocated those two contracts to the

Those two contracts, you
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1

Beautification Fund.

2

out of the General Fund.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So the other $103,400 is

Yeah

4

they are coming from.

5

are for.

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

- yeah,

I see where

I want to know what they

The towing contracts are vendors

7

that we contract with to pick up abandoned and

8

derelict vehicles on the roadsides after the

9

police have labeled them as either abandoned or

10

derelict.

11

yard, the County storage yard, or direct to the

12

processor.

13
14

And from there, they go to a storage

Excuse me.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I -- I guess I am not asking

my question in a clear enough manner.

15

It appears to me that we have two

16

different funding sources here or funding

17

allocations for towing contracts, and you just

18

explained to me that the 504,000 out of the

19

2.6 million, that is for towing contracts, is

20

gOlng to be for future contracts that you are

21

going to let for South, Central, Lahaina, and

22

Upcountry.

23

So I want to know what the 103,000 plus

24

the 400,000 in Beautification, what -- what does

25

that serve?

And those -- what do those towing

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

1

2
3

128

contracts serve?
CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Anderson -- and you are right.

I

think the question was misinterpreted.
You folks just explained what the final

4
5

part of her question was.

6

the $504,000 -- that's part of the contractual

7

service for towing, and then you gave her the

8

breakup, correct?

9

Beautification Fund and then 103 for the West

10

You just explained

Two parts going to the

Maui fund.
Separately from that, Ms. Anderson is

11
12

asking you -- if I am correct, Ms. Anderson --

13

that there's an additional towing statements

14

that were made as a part of that $2.6 million.
Is that what you are saying?

15
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, he -- he explained the

17

South, Central, and Lahaina, and Upcountry

18

towing contracts, that 504,000, as being part of

19

the 2.6 million.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

No.

No.

That's where the mistake is.

If you can clarify again, please,

22

Mr. Arakawa, as of -- from what you explained

23

earlier, many of us took it to be that that

24

103,000 is only part of a total amount of

25

504,000, which the other portion was coming from
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1

the Highway Beautification Fund, and that's the

2

breakup of those three basic areas, regions,

3

that comprise the total contract.

4

So Ms. Anderson needs the distinction

5

between that 504,000, which is the Highway

6

Beautification Fund amount, and the 103,000,

7

separate from the $2.6 million figure.

8
9

MR. GINOZA:

Can I -- can I try again.

The 504,000

is -- is all three contracts, for South Maui,

10

Lahaina, and Upcountry.

Those are the three

11

contracts.

12

401,000 is going to be paid for out of the

13

Beautification Fund.

14

is going to be paid out of the General Fund.

And out of the 504,000, about

15

So am I --

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

MR. GINOZA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And the 103,000 or 103,500

Okay.

So

-- am I confusing the issue?
No.

No.

So -- so, if what

19

you are saying right now, if I am understanding

20

it, the total amount for towing contracts is

21

504,850?

22

MR. GINOZA:

That

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

lS

correct.
There's no other -- because

24

when Mr. -- Mr. Arakawa was breaking down the

25

figures -- and I may have got it wrong because
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1

he was reading this off really fast -- it was my

2

understanding that out of the 2.652 million, 504

3

of that was going towards towing contracts.
He read storage yard, 127,000; towing

4

5

contracts, 504,000; staff costs, 113,000;

6

Administration, 16,000; for a total of 761,514.

7

And then he said the rest of the balance of the

8

2.6 was for scrap metal processlng.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

You are correct in what you wrote down.
So now, Mr. Arakawa, if you can, please,

11

now describe specifically what the towing costs

12

within the $2.652 million amount is about.

13

That's what Ms. Anderson is asking you for.

14

MR. GINOZA:

May I, Mr. Chairman?

May I . . .

15

CHAIR KANE:

You can attempt to.

16

MR. GINOZA:

You know, when -- when the Director

17

mentioned the 504,000, I believe he -- he didn't

18

mention that out of that 504,000, 404 -- 403,000

19

is coming out of the Beautification Fund.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, he didn't mention

that.

22

So just to be perfectly clear, what is

23

the total amount that we are appropriating for

24

towing contracts?

25

MR. GINOZA:

Five hundred four thousand eight hundred
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fifty dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

So, and

- and how

3

much of the -- and -- and how much of that is

4

then within the Miscellaneous Other Costs,

5

2.6 million?

6

MR. GINOZA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8
9
10

One hundred three thousand five hundred.

contractual services.
MR. GINOZA:

I am sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

12

MR. GINOZA:

None of it.

It's none of

None of it?
None of it is In other

costs, other miscellaneous costs.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

2.6 million?

16

I am sorry.

it.

11

13

No, because 103,000 is under

CHAIR KANE:

None of it is within that

We did ask for a breakdown in writing,

17

yeah, Ms. Anderson, so we are also going to get

18

that.

19

But, Mr. Arakawa, when you were

20

describing -- when you started to describe the

21

$2.652 million, and Ms. Anderson I think got the

22

first 700-plus thousand dollars written down, it

23

was represented that part of that, the majority

24

of that in there, there was a towing -- was

25

there a towing component In that description?
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Is

there a towing component in the 2.652 million?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes.

In the description that I gave

4

earlier, I described the amount that we are

5

projecting for storage yard costs a total for

6

towing contracts,

7

administrative expenses.

8

total of $761,514, a subtotal, for those items I

9

just mentioned.

for staff, and for
So I had mentioned a

And the towing contracts are a

10

part of that total, and they come out to

11

$504,850.
And to break that .

12
13

CHAIR KANE:

What is the difference between that and

14

the contractual services, which

15

the 500-something thousand that is

16

Beautification Funds, that one?

17

separate areas, and Ms. Anderson is asking for

18

the distinction.

19

MR. GINOZA:

lS

a total of

There's two

Mr. Chairman, may I -- may I suggest

20

that -- that the Director provide this in

21

writing because I think it's getting very

22

confusing in terms of what the numbers are.

23

I think it will be easier to isolate and

24

identify the cost as it is in writing because we

25

have different allocations In the different
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1

accounts, so I think that's confusing --

2

confusing everyone.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you know,

irregardless

4

of what the accounts are, we are looking at

5

appropriations here.

6

Mr. Arakawa just said that the 504,850 for

7

towing contracts is included in the $2.6 million

8

figure.

And you just told us

And then when we asked -- when I asked

9

10

you earlier what is the total amount we are

11

paying for towing contracts, you said 504 --

12

504,850.

13

But yet, we were also told that the

14

103,500 is a towing contract balance, of which

15

400,000

16

Fund.

17

MR. GINOZA:

lS

somewhere else in the Beautification

And -- and, Ms. Anderson, I think that's

18

where the confusion

19

Director is also not --

20

the sense that the five

21

the balance of the towing contract that is from

22

the General Fund, is not part of the

23

2.652 million.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

MR. GINOZA:

lS,

and I think where the
lS

also not correct in
the 103,500, which is

Right.

It's separate.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So then the total towing

2

contracts that we are going to be appropriating

3

would be the 504,800 -- 504,850, along with the

4

103,500?

5

MR. GINOZA:

No.

It's 504,350, funded by 400 --

6

401,350 out of the Beautification Fund, and

7

103,500 out of the General Fund.

8

that 103,000 that's listed in 6112 on page

9

16-23.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Well,

And that's

I will just

wait for the breakdown, then, because -CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.

I am with you on this one,

Ms. Anderson -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

-- I'm getting different

answers.
CHAIR KANE:

because, you know what, we don't have

17

time to get written responses, so you folks need

18

to listen to the question and respond now, okay_

19

The 504,850 -- thank you, Mr. Ginoza,

20

you have given us the breakdown.

21

the Highway Fund is not showing up on this page,

22

okay_

23

Highway Beautification Fund of $401,350 is not

24

here on this page.

25

103-five contractual services under 6112

Unfortunately,

So let's -- we all know that.

The

But it coincides with the
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subobject code; lS that correct?

2

MR. GINOZA:

That's correct.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

4

So that -- let's forget that part

now.
Now, Ms. Anderson's question is in your

5

6

description, when you started to describe the

7

$2.652 million appropriation proposal, you

8

started to list various things, which included,

9

I believe -- and Ms. Anderson I think is saying

10

the same thing -- that you talked about towing

11

contracts within there.
So you need to give us the distinction

12
13

between the one that we already put on the side,

14

and your -- where you started to describe towing

15

contracts within the $2.652 million.
And this lS to the Director of Public

16
17

Works.

18

response.

19

20

So we don't to have wait for a written
We want that now.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I mean, that's half a

million dollars.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Exactly.

22

MR. GINOZA:

May I -- may I try to glve you a detail?

23

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

24

MR. GINOZA:

Besides the 103, that's gone.

25

Okay.

have 16,000 of administrative expenses, which
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1

are advertising, auctions, and overhead

2

expenses . . .

3

CHAIR KANE:

Before you start, we are talking about

4

what's the 2.652 breakdown, correct?

5

where you are starting out, right?

6

MR. GINOZA:

That -- that is correct.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

8

the 401,350.

That's

So we are not on that 103-five or
Thank you.

9

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Go ahead, Mr. Ginoza.

11

MR. GINOZA:

And then we have vehicle processing, and

12

I -- I just have different numbers, and I will

13

just read them out to you.

14

That's 1.49 million.

15

vehicles at Waikapu, and white good processlng

16

of 844,760.

17

170,000.

18
19

CHAIR KANE:

I have 1.149240.

I have 345,000 for

And Community Work Day Program of

Is there a towing component in the

$2.652 million description?

20

MR. GINOZA:

No -- none for towing.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.
Yeah, I thought I did.

Before we went to break, Mr. Arakawa,

24

you -- you said that you could provide that

25

breakdown that you gave us in writing, and you
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

137

1

know, we don't really care if it's handwriting

2

or typewritten or whatever.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Speak for yourself, Ms. Anderson.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

Mr. Chair.

6

answer right now.

7

So,

Well, we don't have time,

You just said, we have to get to

I want to know, you know, what the

8

2.65 is -- is inclusive.

9

to me that, you know, we are -- we are spending

10
11

And because it seems

more and more money for the towing.
And I am astounded that we have 400

12

abandoned cars a month.

13

abandoning -- are dropping off 13 cars a day on

14

our roadsides.

15

you know, is it because we have now got this

16

program up and going that people are now all of

17

a sudden taking advantage of it?

18

do is haul it out in the middle of the night,

19

and I am

20

is going to come pick it up because now we have

21

got, you know, all this funding that we are

22

putting towards it.

23

That means people are

And -- and I -- I am wondering,

All I have to

I am done with it because the County

And you know, it seems like maybe you

24

could give us some idea of what kind of efforts

25

are being taken as far as prosecution because, I
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1

mean, we went from 170 cars a month, to 290 cars

2

a month, to now you are estimating 400 cars a

3

month.

4

month, to 591 white goods a mdnth.

5

up to 815.

6

And we went from 200 white goods a
Now we are

Just seems like the problem is growlng,

7

and we are just putting more money at it.

8

you know,

9

problem, but where are the controls to make sure

And,

I am all for taking care of the

10

that we are prosecuting people that are doing

11

this to the extent possible?

12

this lS on the backs of every taxpayer now.

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

Because, you know,

Councilmember Anderson,

I couldn't

14

agree with your comments more.

15

us, we are charged with the collection, and we

16

have been, as I mentioned,

17

amount of stuff that we have to pick up on the

18

side of the road.

19

Actually,

for

just appalled at the

As far as prosecution, basically, we

20

have -- we have talked with the prosecutors and

21

the police.

22

who are willing to come forward as witnesses to

23

testify against people leaving these things on

24

the side of the road.

25

leave it at that for the present, but we are

We basically are looking for people

Let me just leave that
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1

actively looking for cases that we can possibly

2

prosecute.
Beyond that, we have also sent out

3
4

letters to the last registered owner to

5

basically collect on expenses that the County

6

has incurred basically clearing these junks off

7

the side of the road, and the cost that we have

8

incurred for processing.
If we cannot collect it internally, it

9

10

will be sent to a collection agency for them to

11

follow up on.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's very good news,

13

Mr. Arakawa.

14

many -- you know, how many notices of violation

15

have been sent out and maybe how many have been

16

prosecuted?

17

MR. ARAKAWA:

So, when did this start and how

The prosecution part,

I -- I can't

18

speak to that.

I know we have looked at

19

possibilities.

I don't know if the -- how far

20

the prosecutor's office or the police have

21

has gotten on that.

22

As far as the letters to the last

23

registered owner, we have -- we have actually

24

sent out a batch earlier this month,

25

That was the first batch of them.

I think.

And we are

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

140

1

gOlng to send out more based on what we can

2

handle.

3

month to respond.

4

letters, giving them a month to respond.

5

you know, we recelve no response, it just

6

basically goes to a collection agency.

7

we will send out another batch of letters.

8

And it's basically giving them one

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Once we send out a batch of
If,

And then

And so whoever is towing

9

this or however

I don't know where in the

10

loop you -- you

you get involved in trying to

11

identify the owner, but do you have any idea of

12

the percentage of the cars that are abandoned,

13

you are able to identify a registered owner?

14

MR. ARAKAWA:

No,

I don't have that information now.

15

Although, we have a -- well, we do have a whole

16

list of vehicles that have been collected from

17

the roadsides.

18

County records to ascertain the last registered

19

owner, and that is who we target as far as

20

collecting whatever costs we have incurred.

21

From there, we can look at the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so I imagine the only

22

way you couldn't ascertain that is if someone

23

filed off their -- their vehicle number,

24

whatever?

25

MR. ARAKAWA:

If it's not identifiable, then it's not
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identifiable --

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yeah.

-- but in -- in most cases, we have

4

that data, and we -- we basically have to go

5

find it, dig it all up, send out the letters,

6

and then follow up with the owners.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And -

and are you

8

charging

9

costing us, the taxpayer, to haul this away, or

10
11

charging them the cost that it's

is there a set fine that you are tied to?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Presently, we are

we are charging

12

them the exact cost, which

13

the towing and the processing cost for the

14

vehicle left on the side of the road.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

Now,

17

question, Mr. Chair.

18
19
20

Okay.

lS

the storage and

That's great.

I am going to ask one last

Of the 2,652,000, how much of that money
lS

being used for scrap metal processing?

MR. GINOZA:

Councilmember, for the -- just the

21

vehicles -- well, there's two types of vehicles.

22

There's vehicles that's being processed from the

23

baseyard, and there's also some vehicles that's

24

at Waikapu.

25

that's just being processed as they come in is

So the vehicles that, you know,
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1

estimated to be 1.149 million.

2

at Waikapu is estimated to be about 345,000.
And the processlng of the white goods lS

3
4
5
6

And the vehicles

about 845,000.

I'm -- I'm just rounding it off.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

All right.

Thank you very

much.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman.

Just quickly, can you tell us where

9

10

those auction revenues or -- or moneys go to?

11

And how -- maybe you can answer that question,

12

first.

13

MR. GINOZA:

What happens to those auction funds?
I -- I don't know, but I suspect those

14

are General Fund moneys, because these are

15

General Fund expenditures.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, maybe if you are

17

willing to have staff call Finance and just have

18

that verified, if possible.

19

be worth -- noted whether it's not -- it is in

20

General Fund or not.

21
22

CHAIR KANE:

Somebody from Finance lS here that can

help answer that question,

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

I think it should

if you don't mind.

No, that would be very helpful.

We have Mr. Lito Vila, who is in the

audience, and he can provide a specific answer
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to that request.

2
3

Mr. Vila, if you can, identify yourself.
MR. VILA:

Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.

Lito Vila, DMV

4

Administrator.

5

program.

6

Mr. Hokama, the -- all of the revenues that are

7

generated when the vehicle is auctioned, it goes

8

back to the Highway Beautification Fund.

9

I used to administer the AV

And to answer your question,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Is that inventory auction

10

audited, that whatever goes into impound is what

11

is auctioned off, and there's a verification of

12

the inventory?

13

MR. VILA:

Yes.

When the -- okay.

The vehicle,

14

whenever it's towed from the street, it's

15

classified as two

16

If it's derelict, it goes straight to the

17

processing facility.

18

required to undergo the notification process and

19

the disposition of that.

two various classification.

If it's abandoned, we are

Those are all inventoried.

20

So what

lS

21

established is,

22

contractor tows that vehicle, there is a

23

custodial exchange at the baseyard, so somebody

24

lS

25

from the roadside, when the tow

always responsible for the vehicle.
Once it's in the storage facility, the
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1

vendor for the storage facility lS responsible

2

for the safekeeping,

3

safekeeping on that vehicle until the

4

notification is sent to the owners.

inventory, control, and

If it's not claimed, then the County

5
6

comes back in, and we publish the advertisement

7

in the paper to have it auctioned.
After the -- the County then conducts

8
9

the auction,

and any vehicle that is sold, we

10

provide them a receipt that will allow them to

11

transfer the vehicle, and those are the only

12

vehicles that are allowed to leave that

13

facility,

14

bidders.

15

that is removed by the successful

All other vehicles are then directed by

16

the County -- the vendor is then directed by the

17

County to dispose of the balance of the vehicles

18

to the processlng facility.

19

done is, at the end of the auction,

20

that is not sold is identified, counted, and the

21

vendor is instructed to deliver those to the

22

processing facility.

23

The way that is
any vehicle

Upon delivery to the processing

24

facility,

the processing facility will

25

acknowledge receipt of that vehicle, which then
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1

takes the chain of custody to the processlng

2

facility and there it ends.

3

evidence that those vehicles have been received,

4

the County will not pay for any -- any of those

5

fees back to those respective vendors.

Unless we see

And it -- agreement with the storage

6
7

vendor at this point -- unless it was changed;

8

it was transferred to Public Works -- was that

9

at any point in time, the County may go in and

10

conduct an inventory of the vehicles.

11

database program is set up in such a way that at

12

any point in time, we can determine the total

13

number of vehicles that should be in that yard.

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16
17

Okay.

And our

Thank you for that.

Who conducts the auction for the County?
A County employee?
MR. VILA:

Yes, it used to be -- well,

I believe it

18

is the Abandoned Vehicle Coordinator, and the

19

Division Head is normally there, and the vendor

20

is also there to monitor the yard.

21

I believe at this point Ms. Hana Steel is acting

22

as the County auctioneer during the process.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And we have

Wouldn't it make better sense to

24

have a third party that we can audit in case

25

something goes wrong?
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If that's this body's wish,

I don't see a

problem with that.
The way it was set up is the County goes

3

4

In and conduct the auction to

to complete the

5

process.

I guess the

6

vehicles over, or someone else to conduct that

7

auction,

8

possibility.

9

Whether we turn the

I mean, that -- that is certainly a

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And again,

I

just was

10

bring this up that, on Lanai, assisted the

11

State, because when the State did their auction,

12

like for DLNR, with the confiscated firearms and

13

whatnot,

14

Department rules, but they chose never to use a

15

State employee to conduct the auction.

16

am just wondering why we would use a County

17

employee to do the auction.

18

your -- your comments that you have informed me

19

quite a bit, Mr. Vila.

20

I don't know if it's State law or the

And so I

But I appreciate

My last questions to the Department

21

regarding this $2.6 million request,

since we

22

utilized the old Waikapu landfill, are we in for

23

some type of Federal closure requirements and

24

costs?

25

determined whether or not there's additional,

And has that been assessed and
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1

now,

2

landfill?

3

closure cost to the use of the old

MR. TAKAMINE:

Councilmember Hokama,

at the current

4

time,

5

cost.

6

Once we clean it up, we have to probably inspect

7

the area to determine if we had any possible

8

liquids, you know, gasoline or oil, disposal on

9

the ground.

10
11

I -- we don't anticipate any additional
We haven't really looked into the matter.

It may requlre some remediation to

the soil, maybe.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But that is only after we clear

12

out all the vehicles and then the physical

13

assessment is made, Mr. Takamine?

14

MR. TAKAMINE:

That's correct.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So, the same would hold true for

16

the old Puunene airport site; once we get rid of

17

the inventory?

18

once we get rid of the inventory, ends our

19

agreement with the State on -- on that extended

20

additional permitted use of the property?

21

MR. TAKAMINE:

Or do we have an agreement that

Actually,

in the Puunene site, it was

22

on a hard, asphalt surface, and the vehicles

23

were placed and fenced in.

24

upright.

25

They were placed

So we didn't have any spillage there.
Unfortunately, at the Waikapu site, we
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1

had some -- some disturbances in there, and

2

vehicles were overturned, and

3

that may have caused some spillage.

4

if it was placed and not moved, it probably

5

would not require any type of inspection.

and moved, so
You know,

But that -- because of that, there may

6

7

be some remedial action that we need to take at

8

the Waikapu site.

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that.

I would just share with you a comment

10
11

that Mr. Farias, Senior, gave us -- gave to me,

12

I should say, the other week while we -- when we

13

honored him as the automotive dealer of the year

14

for the State of Hawaii.
He mentioned that he was willing to work

15
16

with the County and ask other dealers to see if

17

there's ways of how to come up and find ways to

18

pay for and minimize -- minimize,

19

this abandoned vehicle, derelict vehicle

20

problem.

21

I should say,

So you might want to ask -- maybe give

22

Mr. Farias a call.

23

assist in being part of a solution to eliminate

24

this current problem.

25

He seemed very determined to

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

149

1

CHAIR KANE:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

7

Mr. Mateo, questions?
No.

Mr. Molina?
No, I am done.

Mr. Pontanilla?
Thank you, Chair.

Regarding the scrap that is processed

8

along with the white goods, when we process the

9

white goods as well as the scrap metals, do we

10

get any compensation for the materials that are

11

recycled?

12

MR. TAKAMINE:

Councilmember Pontanilla, we do not

13

under the current contract, we pay Kitagawa a

14

set price of 300 -- as Mr. Arakawa mentioned,

15

$305 if it's not towed, $345 if it's towed, and

16

$60 per appliance.

17

And the processor then takes that -- the

18

tires, the batteries, and he is responsible for

19

processlng cost, and he also reaps the benefits

20

for whatever costs he can get for the sale of

21

that material as his profit.

22

not get back any money from the sale of any of

23

the recycled material.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So the County does

So if we do it ourselves,

like when we did the white goods recycle program
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1

for,

2

employees, did we get any reimbursements for

3

that?

4

you know, when we went out as -- as County

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Pontanilla, my

5

understanding on that appliance recycling day,

6

that one-shot event, we did receive some money

7

back.

8

like a Kitagawa.

9

you recall, we had a number of containers, and

we did not go to a processor,

But we

We did that all ourselves.

If

10

those were shipped directly to a Honolulu

11

processor, and the amount of money that -- they

12

gave us basically a refund on the amount of

13

metals that they had received.

14
15
16
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
much?
MR. ARAKAWA:

No,

I can't recall offhand, but I can

get that number for you,
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

if you need.

Okay.

Good.

Thank you, Chair.

19

22

Offhand, do you know how

Ms. Tavares?
Thank you.

I am anxiously

awaiting the breakdown of that 2.6 million.
I understood Administration to say that

24

the towing contracts were for South, West, and

25

Upcountry.

Where is the towing contract for
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Central Maui and the other areas?
MR. TAKAMINE:

Councilmember Tavares, actually,

3

there's three contracts right now.

4

is South Maui and Central Maui, combined.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

MR. TAKAMINE:

7

Lahaina.

South and Central.

Yeah, South and Central.
And one is for Upcountry.

renewal,

rebid, and we are also looking at

10

possibly adding Hana in.

11

have a contract to cover Hana.

12
13
14

One lS for

And these contracts are coming up for

8
9

One contract

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right now, we don't

So what happens to the Hana

vehicles?
MR. TAKAMINE:

Either Highways, our Highways crews

15

pick it up, or we try to get the State DOT, if

16

it's on their roadways to pick it up.

17

there's no formal contract set up.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

504,850?

20

MR. TAKAMINE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

25

And this amount is that

That's correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

More questions?
Ms. Johnson.

23
24

But

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Mine lS In the area of white

goods, and I was looking at your page 18-19, I
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Wrong page.

It is on 17,

1

think it is -- or no.

2

where the white goods process went from 2,400 in

3

'06 to 7,200 projected for this coming Fiscal

4

Year.
And one of the things that has always, I

5

6

guess, bugged me,

is when people are swapping

7

out, and let's say there's a total renovation

8

project going on for a hotel going to timeshare

9

or just an updating of the facility.
What happens with regard to your

10
11

Department and how you interact with a large

12

number of appliances that are coming out?

13

the contractor, whoever is doing the disposal,

14

are they immediately shipping them off island?

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

Or is

Are -- are you referencing big

16

commercial, like you mentioned condos, when they

17

are renovating?

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, because I have gotten a

19

few calls, you know, and I was asked the

20

question, and I said, well,

21

what you do with large volumes.

22

when they are renovating even a hotel, and we

23

have had several of those, because they ship In

24

large container loads of all of these new

25

appliances, generally from off island, and they

I don't really know
Particularly
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1

don't buy locally, what happens to the old

2

stuff?

3

Does it go back In the containers?

MR. TAKAMINE:

We don't monitor retrofits or

4

renovations, but we do have a network out there,

5

and our recycle section communicates with the

6

Maui Recycle Group.

7

that's connected to all the non-profit

8

organizations.

9

renovations come in -- we have had a few of

And they have a website

And whenever these big

10

them -- they -- they contact the individual at

11

Maui Recycle Group, and they tell them what they

12

have available.

13

And they shoot this e-mail out to all these

14

non-profit organizations, and saying that, you

15

know, we are renovating our hotel.

16

40 refrigerators.

17

They put it on the website.

We have 4 --

We have microwave ovens.

And the individual organizations are

18

required, if they want it, to go down, pick it

19

up by a ce

20

make sure that they write a thank you note or

21

and notify us, and we kind of track the tonnage

22

that is being diverted.

23

ain date, and then basically just

In fact, when we moved to One Main

24

Plaza, that's where we got the one for my Solid

25

Waste office, was from a retrofitted townhouse
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In Lahaina, or a condo complex in Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and -- and the reason I

3

am asking this is because I am curious that

4

during the process when your Department is asked

5

to comment during a lot of these conversions or

6

SMAs, whatever it might be, what comment do you

7

make when they have, maybe, hundreds of

8

appliances or white goods or sofas?

9

comment do you make about conditions, about

What

10

where that needs to go?

11

are shipping in container loads of things from

12

off island.

13

MR. TAKAMINE:

Particularly when they

I haven't been involved in those

14

particular comments, but my engineer looks at

15

that.

16

recycle plan.

17

will do this type of donation or try to recycle

18

material.

We comment on their demolition plan and
Again, a majority of them will --

If they cannot do it, we definitely tell

19
20

them, it cannot be disposed at the landfill.

21

Construction, demolition material, white goods,

22

metals.

23

if they cannot donate it, come up with their

24

plan to dispose of this.

25

would be a massive shipping off island, maybe to

At that point, they have to determine,

And it's most likely
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1

Schnitzer In Honolulu.

2

the owner to be responsible for coming up with a

3

recycle plan or a demolition plan.

4

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But it falls on -- on

But being that we are trying

5

to keep all this stuff out, because I mean, when

6

you look at the cost for abandoned vehicles,

7

white goods, and the huge increase of white

8

goods that are being dumped allover this

9

County, what I am looking at from you is maybe a

10

little bit more proactive role in putting in

11

conditions or putting in requirements that state

12

if you bring in appliances or brand new from off

13

island, you have to present a plan or you have

14

to have some kind of mitigation.
Because even if they do donate it to an

15
16

individual or a group, that still doesn't assure

17

us that it's not going to end up on the side of

18

the road because maybe the person doesn't know,

19

"Oh, well, gosh, the coil is bad," or, you know,

20

there's a problem; the washing machine doesn't

21

rotate properly.
I -- I

22

just really have a concern

23

because part of what I think County government

24

should be doing is taking a proactive approach.

25

So I -- I would really -- I am really concerned
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about these numbers here.

2

So do you have any comment about how,

3

you know, you might be able to mitigate this and

4

reduce some of these costs?

5

6

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson, let me try and

answer your question.
A while back, we had at least discussed

7

8

internally about the possibility of imposing

9

some sort of an advanced disposal fee for white

10

goods.

11

stove, refrigerator, air conditioning unit or

12

whatever, there would be this fee that would be

13

attached to it regardless of whether or not

14

you -- you turn in an old appliance.

15

Basically, any time you purchase a

So therefore, we were hoping to have,

16

perhaps, the dealers be responsible for the old

17

white goods, thereby hopefully alleviating the

18

County of picking up these white goods on the

19

side of the road.

20

However, any kind of fee,

our -- In

21

talking with Corp. Counsel, and they can confirm

22

this, but basically, if -- if it's a -- trying

23

to impose a fee on the buyers, our understanding

24

lS

25

authorization to do so, and that hasn't been

that we needed State legislative
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done at this point.
But one other option that we had been

3

looking at as well is just doing,

4

having a fee,

5

would require some sort of legislative

6

authorization,

7

program where, by ordinance, the dealers would

8

be required to take back old appliances if they

9

sell a new one.

10

instead of

an advance disposal fee, which

just do some sort of a take back

And while it may not get rid of all of

11

the appliances on the side of the road, I think,

12

you know, if we can look at something like that,

13

you know, it would certainly help.

14

Anyway, those are two ideas that we have
I know we are still evaluating

15

come up with.

16

this whole take back idea internally, and, you

17

know, we will have to see where that goes at

18

this point.

19

But I agree with you, it

lS - -

it is a

20

big concern, because that's what has really been

21

increasing recently is the amount of white goods

22

on the side of the road, which we have to be

23

picking up.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
appreciate that.

Yeah, and -- and I really
I -- I sort of dwell on this,
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1

but it really is such a huge increase that I am

2

noticing it every day.
The only thing that I see happening,

3
4

though,

is that when people bring in container

5

loads and, uSlng your plan as you have described

6

it, it still wouldn't address the problem.
So personally, Mr. Chair,

7

I would like

8

to see some kind of a policy, whether it's

9

something that we initiate or whether the

10

Department does, requiring some kind of a

11

mitigation plan.

12

appliances and most of the interior furnishings

13

are not purchased here on island.

14

old theory of pack it in, pack it out.

And particularly when the

You know, the

15

If they are bringing in all these things

16

from off island, then I think that determination

17

should be made up front, by your Department, to

18

actually enforce a mitigation plan of some sort

19

so that it's not part of our problem.

20

our local people are not benefiting from the

21

sales, and we are having to deal with all of the

22

fallout from it.

23

this.

24

important.

25

Because

And taxpayers are paying for

So that's why I -- I think it's really

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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Any further questions in this area?
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

Chairman, thank you very much.

Mr. Director, to process a vehicle with

5

this existing contract, if the vehicle's towed

6

in, it's $345 under this contract, yeah?

7

were -- what were we paying prior?

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

Well, prlor to this, the

What

- there was a

9

single vendor, and I know it was a lot cheaper.

10

It was done by another vendor, which was closed

11

down by the Department of Health.

12

glve you that number.

13

significantly less.

And I can

It -- but it was

14

But the fact that they were closed down

15

by the Department of Health, and basically they

16

were closed down for lack of -- lack of

17

conformance with DOH regulations, which means

18

they were not processing the vehicles in

19

compliance with the law.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And -- and you also

21

mentioned earlier that there is another

22

organization or individual looking at also

23

starting a similar business.

24

we -- you are looking at reducing some of the

25

costs through the competition process?

So obviously,
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That is what we are hoping will occur.

2

We will go out for a bid, probably a, you know,

3

sealed bid process, and we are hoping that two

4

proposals do corne in, and we will hopefully take

5

the better of the two.

6

7
8
9

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And that second business looks

like corning on line rather soon?
MR. ARAKAWA:

They have gotten all of their temporary

entitlements.

They are still In the process of

10

getting their permanent entitlements.

11

believe they are getting their site ready and

12

their building ready, and I am -- my

13

understanding is sometime this summer, they

14

should be ready.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

18

Thank you, Mr. Director.

Thank you, Chairman.

16
17

But I

CHAIR KANE:

Further questions, Members?
To follow up on Mr. Mateo's questions,

19

on this new -- this vendor that's showing

20

interest, is there a possibility that -- well,

21

let me back up.

22

Corne July 1st, the new Fiscal Year, are

23

we in a position to have continuous --

24

continuous service in this area?

25

now through June 30th

lS

Meaning from

the end of the Fiscal
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1

Year.

July 1st, are we going to have continued

2

service?

3

Because when you say this summer,

4

this other interested vendor, would they be able

5

to pick up, if they are the winning bid, as an

6

example, by July 1st, or are we going to have a

7

break in service?

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

for

We.
And if there lS a break in serVlce, will

10

the Department accept that situation and break

11

the service, therefore creating a situation

12

there?

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

You have an interesting question.

14

The existing contract with Kitagawa's

15

towing expires on April 27th, and -- however,

16

there is an option to extend it for a maximum of

17

another year.

18

Kitagawa's contract on a partial basis and still

19

go out for a sealed bid on funds that -- any

20

funds that the Council appropriates for '07.

So we still could extend

So the '07 funds could still be used for

21
22

the beginning part of the Fiscal Year,

23

Fiscal Year, until the -- the sealed bid comes

24

In.

25

CHAIR KANE:

'07

So would the Department allow a break in
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service?
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MR. ARAKAWA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

No, that's not our intent.
Okay.

Any further questions, Members,

before we move on?
Okay.

5

6

162

Hearing none, Members, we have

the .

7

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chair.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

9

MR. GINOZA:

May I respond to Member Tavares' request

10

for the how

11

Fund balance?

to the Highway Beautification

12

CHAIR KANE:

Please.

13

MR. GINOZA:

The estimated balance as of

- for

14

Fiscal Year '07, begins with 521,000, an

15

estimated collection of 1.3 million, and a

16

balance of 1.8 million before disbursements for

17

Fiscal '07.

18
19

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares, any questions for

follow-up?

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23

Okay.

No.

Thank you.

Any further questions, Members,

in this area?
Any questions In the Building Permit

24

Revolving Fund program?

I know we had the

25

handout to highlight that issue.
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Any final questions in General

1

2

Fund/Grant Revenues before we move into

3

Highways?
Yes, Ms. Johnson.

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

And I am not

6

sure what division this would be in, but I know

7

Milton knows what I am going to ask, it is about

8

where would the deferral money go from deferral

9

agreements?

Would it be in this fund or would

10

it be revenue, if we ever collect on deferral

11

agreements for our roadway improvements?

12

just not sure where, you know, that money would

13

go if we do collect it.

14
15
16

CHAIR KANE:

I am

Mr. Arakawa or Mr. Ginoza, prepared to

respond?
MR. ARAKAWA:

It would be somewhere in our

17

Engineering Division, but as with any exactions

18

that we collect, we would have to bring it to

19

the Council to accept first before we can

20

recognize it as revenue to our Department.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And are we making any

22

progress at collecting any money on these

23

agreements?

24
25

MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Johnson,

I think the only

project that we are actively looking at now is
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1

that Lower Honoapiilani Road Phase IV.

2

currently, we are still asking the Council for

3

land acquisition moneys on that.

4

closer to construction, then, you know, we will

5

move forward on trying to collect on the

6

deferral agreements.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

So once we get

Thank you.

Any further discussion,

Members?
Hearing none, Mr. Hashiro, thank you

10
11

Thank you.

Okay.

And

very much for your patience.
Members, 16-27 of your Details.

12

We also

13

start on 18-21 of your Program.

14

through program by program starting on 16-27

15

where the highlights are.
Mr. -- excuse me, Director Arakawa, any

16
17
18

We will walk

comments regarding Highway Administration?
MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Actually, on the operations side,

19
20

Operations Budget, which starts on page 16-30,

21

on the Highways Administration, this area is

22

essentially flat, if you look at Index Code

23

916502.

24

are like ERS, FICA, and the Hawaii Public

25

Employees Health Fund, Highway Debt Service, you

There are other index codes -- these
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1

know,

2

supplemental transfer for the General Fund, and

3

Admin overhead costs.

4

supplemental transfer for Bikeway and

CHAIR KANE:

Any questions in this area, Members?

5

Highway Admin, A, B, and C Accounts?

6

I know we also have a request for

7

replacement for vehicle on 16 32.
Any comments there, Mr. Director?

8

9
10

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yeah, Mr. Chair, I am glad you brought

that up.
We have two equipment requests under

11

12

Administration.

13

printer.

14

replacement, one expansion request for a total

15

of $1,600.

One is just a color laser jet

This is an expansion

- one

And also, a replacement vehicle for the

16
17

Highways Division Chief, and we are requesting a

18

hybrid sport utility vehicle for that.

19

proposed budget amount for that is $35,000.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

And a

Questions, Members?
Just an observation, Director Arakawa.

22

I guess in the Public Works area, we have seen a

23

few 2000 Ford Explorers, which is

24

odd that we are normally seeing 10, 12,

25

15-year-old vehicles, and in this case we are

it seems
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1

looking at six-year-old vehicle.

2

reason?

3

excessive use and so it's been worn pretty

4

heavily?

5

Mr. Hashiro.

6

MR. HASHIRO:

Any particular

Is it that year Ford Explorer having

Give us some background, please,

Yeah, it's used on a daily basis.

7

of inspections, been having some mechanical

8

problems, had to replace the transmission

9

already.

Lot

The front end had to be replaced.

10

brakes went.

11

adjustment.

12

fender from somebody shooting at the vehicle.

15

Had problems with the seat
It was -- had a little dot in the

But mostly a lot of mechanical problems

13
14

The

I've been getting on the vehicle.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And then with the hybrid,

I know

16

there was a concern earlier that I think,

17

Mr. Arakawa, you did bring up or the

18

conservative approach,

19

of a discussion.

20

are pursuing in some areas the hybrid SUVs.

21

as far as price,

22

that the hybrid has an approximate cost of about

23

$4,000 more than the non-hybrid SUVs.

24
25

I think, which was part

And so in this case, you folks
And

I guess we have been informed

Any comments there?

I think because the

question was brought up earlier -- not today,
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1

but in a preVlOUS discussion, Members -- about

2

being able to recover costs, you know, as far as

3

the cost effectiveness of going in this

4

direction.
Any further comments you want to make in

5

6
7

this area?
MR. ARAKAWA:

As far as going to hybrids,

I mean, we

8

are willing to try it, as far as the reliability

9

of the vehicle and whether the gas savings would

10

be worth the higher purchase price.
And as I think the Budget Director

11

12

mentioned earlier, we will -- we are not gOlng

13

whole hog with the hybrids.

14

with, you know, the gas vehicles at this point,

15

but willing to at least try it and see how it

16

works out.

17

then we will request more in future years.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MR. HASHIRO:

We are just staying

And if it works out fairly well,

Okay.

Mr. Hashiro, please.

And also, there was the concern about

20

being conservative, but I felt that being in the

21

Highways Division, having a whole garage of

22

mechanics, what better place to try it than

23

with -- with one vehicle in the Highways

24

Division and see what kind of repair kind of

25

problems it might have, you know.

I was willing
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to be the gUlnea pig, to be succinct.
CHAIR KANE:

I guess it is quite appropriate, given

your comments.

Thank you very much.

Any questions, Members?

Again,

I

just

5

asked some questions since you folks are looking

6

and leafing through.

7
8
9
10

Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Hashiro,

for that comment.
Yeah, my question was going to be that,

11

you know, as Departments replace their vehicles,

12

more and more we are looking to hybrid.

13

part of the problems that we have been having as

14

a County is that sometimes we buy different type

15

of vehicles and, you know, don't have the

16

personnel to -- to maintain those vehicles.

17

your Department lS willing to be the guinea

18

pigs, then, you know, there's no better place

19

than Highways.

20

And

If

My only concern lS that once we get this

21

vehicle in, you know, the type of training

22

that's going to be required if we do have, like,

23

say, maintenance contracts from the different

24

companies that we may be purchasing hybrid

25

vehicles in the future.

So the concern that I
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1

had is, you know -- and if this thing pans out,

2

you know, will it change the configuration of

3

your garage?

4

MR. HASHIRO:

As far as the garage, no, it won't

5

change it.

6

we disengage the battery systems when you do the

7

repalrs.

8

same.

9

training, but we don't see it as being a major

10
11

We just have to be more careful that

But everything is pretty much the

We will probably have to do some in-house

barrier.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I understand that the

12

battery replacement is quite expensive.

13

we do go into hybrids, will the County, will

14

your Department be stocking these batteries or

15

as they crap out, we go to the dealers for

16

replacement?

17

MR. HASHIRO:

And if

We've had agreements with the battery

18

vendors; whatever batteries we have, they will

19

take it back.

20

issue at this point.

21

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

22
23
24
25

So we don't see it as being an

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair.
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I was gOlng to save this question until

1

2

management came before us, but since we are

3

talking about hybrid vehicles so much,

4

like to receive a copy of the study that was

5

done on these hybrids and other resource

6

information that was used to come up with this

7

policy for the use of hybrids throughout the

8

County as we see many of them, and I don't know

9

if the

I would

this would be the proper place, but we

10

are talking about it so much, that I think it

11

would be very interesting for us to get that

12

information so we know upon what is the basis

13

for this change in philosophy as far as the push

14

for hybrid vehicles.

15

As you know,

I am all for alternative

16

energy and renewable energy types of vehicles,

17

instruments, whatever, but I

18

why we are pushing the hybrids right at this

19

point in time.

20

CHAIR KANE:

just want to know

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
No, and I think it's appropriate because

21
22

as you see, Members,

23

see

24

was another area where there was a few, where we

25

had the hybrid discussion brought forward.

just in the Department, we

we have had one, two, and I think there
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So -- and I think either it was

1

2

yesterday, Members, or today,

3

an article that talked about a whole percentage

4

of the vehicle replacement is going to go into

5

hybrid, so I think it's appropriate for the

6

question.

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

that.

I think there was

Thank you.

So we will get staff to follow up on
Thank you.

10

Mr. Carroll, questions In this area?

11

Mr. Hokama.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, my one question, what

13

is the Department's intent to do with the

14

replacement vehicles?

15

MR. HASHIRO:

Currently, we trade in the vehicles

16

that -- when we replace it, we trade in the old

17

vehicles.

18

the Administration was considering keeping the

19

vehicles and doing a separate sale, but at this

20

point,

21

them in.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

There has -- there was a time where

I guess the direction has been to trade

Okay.

Mr. Ginoza, would you know

23

if this is Countywide, all Departments follow

24

what Public Work is -- is doing or each

25

Department is kind of much -- going their own
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merrily way?
MR. GINOZA:

I am not aware of that.

I can defer

this to Brian.
MR. HASHIRO:

Can you repeat your question?

I was

just busy talking to the Director.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No,

I got your response of how

7

Public Works looks with the disposition of

8

replacement vehicles, and my question to the

9

Budget Director was do all the other Departments

10

follow what you folks do in Public Works, which

11

is do the trade In.

12

shared his comment that he is not able to

13

respond to the question right now.

14

MR. HASHIRO:

And our Budget Director has

Yeah, we do most of the bid specs for

15

most of the County vehicles except certain

16

Departments, police, water, and that type

17

fire.

18

vehicles.

19

vehicles and, like, have an expansion vehicle or

20

whatever.

21

Most of them have been trading them In.

22

For most of them, they do trade in their
Some have opted to retain their old

But that's real few and far between.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

What would be the reason,

23

again,

24

that we have agreed to replace?

25

MR. HASHIRO:

and

for why they would want to keep a vehicle

I can't speak to that.

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

1

173

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well, if you going to ask us

2

and I am not talking about you, Mr. Hashiro

3

but, you know, Mr. Chair, if you are going to

4

ask us to replace a vehicle, must be some

5

reason.

6

it for another use is deceiving on their part to

7

this body, and I don't appreciate that.
Thank you.

8
9

But then to have it replaced and keep

CHAIR KANE:

10

Okay, no.

Good question.

Another note, trading In,

just as a side

11

note, when you trade in, they will give you

12

actual cash value, which is a lot of times zero.

13

And they will just cut off their profit margin

14

to give you a false value.

15

turn around and sell it on their used car lot

16

for a retail value.

17

Okay.

And then they

So now the question becomes, as a

18

policy, do we get into selling vehicles, which

19

is what Mr. Hashiro pretty much talked about.

20

Are we going to go that route?

21

issues there.

22

becomes a policy.

23

Because there's

So that's -- you know, that

Mr. Mateo, anything In this area?

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

CHAIR KANE:

No.

Mr. Molina?
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area?

3

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

4

CHAIR KANE:

5
6

Okay.

No.

Members, why don't we go ahead

and move -- move on.
Oh, and Mr. Arakawa, or Director, excuse

7

me, if you can maybe provide

8

in front of you, it would help for us to know

9

the level of vacancies.

- if you have it

If it's something

10

that's significant, and "significant" meaning,

11

you know, 10 percent of what's sitting in there.

12

Anything more than a double digit

13

percentage-wise.

14

working and there's four vacancies, that's -- or

15

even two vacancies, that's significant; whereas,

16

you have 30 guys working and then -- 30

17

employees, and you have one or two vacancies,

18

it's not.

19

So if you have got ten people

But we would like to know at least to

20

get an idea of how you folks are doing with the

21

vacancy lssue because this helps us understand

22

how you folks can perform the day-to-day

23

operations, which is why we are here, Members.

24
25

Okay.

In the road maintenance -- road,

bridge, and drainage maintenance program, any
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1

comments there?

2

the district things.

3

16-39, Mr. Arakawa?

4

MR. ARAKAWA:

And I know you have a lot of
You want to start at the

Yes, Mr. Chair.

I can just go over

5

some of the highlights.

On page 16-39, we have

6

road maintenance, Wailuku -- drainage

7

maintenance and also road maintenance, Wailuku.

8

I want to mention, under subobject code

9

6047, road patching materials, we are asking for

10

an increase of $40,000; $60,000 was appropriated

11

In '06, and we are asking for $100,000 in '07.

12

You will also note that in '05, we expended

13

$96,287 for this subobject code as well.

14

Further down on the page, 6120,

15

electricity,

16

that's being projected.

17
18

lS

getting a 15 percent increase

On the next page
CHAIR KANE:

Before you go on, Members, and forgive

19

me.

So we ask the question so we know what the

20

answer is so later on we don't get the "we

21

underestimated" issue, under road patching

22

materials, because you folks have an '05

23

expenditure of almost 100,000, and you are

24

asking for that again in '07, given the

25

discussion on increase in petroleum products,
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1

etc.,

2

adequate amount?

3

lS

MR. HASHIRO:

the -- is the $100,000 figure an

At this point, we feel it is an

4

adequate amount.

5

spending we are doing with shoulder repairs.

6

The CIP -- CIP program for resurfacing does the

7

main road, the main travel lanes, and we often

8

get problems with the shoulders afterwards.

9

a lot of money spent fixing up the shoulders

A lot of the money we are

10

after the resurfacing is done.

11

we can, you know, make the money work.

12
13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So we feel that

And that's in respect to road

patching materials, yeah, that --

14

MR. HASHIRO:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

So

Yes.
Okay.

Okay.
Just

Mr. Hokama.
And I am sorry to interrupt, but

since you brought up the shoulder --

20

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

because, you know, for Lanai,

22

you are aware, Mr. Hashiro, part of our problems

23

on Lanai is when we do the resurfacing, the

24

drainage catchment basins, the one that

25

your crew, I can tell you from this last
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1

rainstorms, has done a great job in making it

2

free and clear of debris, and it's working very

3

well.

4

crew on Lanai is doing -- is doing yeoman's

5

work, very good work.

6

So I want to also acknowledge that your

But right above that Wailuku road

7

maintenance, you have drainage maintenance, and

8

you also have road patching material

9

consideration, which you have decreased.

So I

10

am just trying to tie in, since you talked about

11

shoulders and whatnot,

12

(inaudible.)

13

MR. HASHIRO:

I would like to --

Let me backtrack a little bit.
The drainage maintenance originally came

14
15

from when we had that big landslide in Lahaina,

16

and the Kahoma Stream being overflowed with all

17

the material.

18

originally came about.

19

appropriation for drainage maintenance because

20

it was really inappropriate for Highway Fund to

21

be paying for the cost of maintaining the flood

22

control under General Fund.

23

this drainage maintenance account originally

24

under General Fund to take care of that -- that

25

thing.

That's how the drain maintenance
It was a General Fund

So they created
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At some point in -- later, it was

1

2

transferred from General Fund to Highway Fund,

3

so it became a Highway Fund item.

4

that for,

5

road patching with paving swales and stuff like

6

that.

7

money for.

you know, drainage maintenance to do

And so that's what we use that -- that

And it's a Countywide account, so we can

8
9

And we used

use it wherever In the County that the

that

10

the need is at; whereas, in the Wailuku one,

11

it's strictly a Wailuku District appropriation.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And -- and again,

just since you

13

mentioned the drainage maintenance is

14

Countywide, is that enough resources, financial

15

resources, to do a Countywide with $30,000?
And again, you know, who knows when we

16
17

going get this next SlX weeks worth of daily

18

raln weather again, but you know, we want to

19

make sure that you can assist those communities

20

and regions that really need that help,

21

Mr. Hashiro.

22

MR. HASHIRO:

At this point, I believe we have

23

sufficient funds, yes.

24

storm again, well,

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

But if we get a major

I may retract that statement.

And my last -- and again,
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quick follow-up.
There will come a time, probably with

2

3

the -- the way oil is going right now, and again

4

it is a brand-new high per barrel, $71, has

5

have you folks thought of doing some test areas

6

using concrete instead of the regular asphalt

7

program just to see as a comparison that when it

8

becomes possibly cost effective, that we might

9

want to do some of this road maintenance with

10
11

concrete instead of asphalt?
MR. HASHIRO:

That would be a possibility.

One of my

12

problems right now with

- is personnel.

We

13

would have to probably redescribe some positions

14

to be masons, and that's a higher,

15

rating, whatever.

I guess,

Be

So -- but those are some of the things

16
17

that we kind of looking at.

We see a lot of our

18

urban areas being more curb, gutter,

19

a lot of masonry-type work.

crosswalk,

So I am kind of taking a look at, you

20
21

know, where our shift in our manpower is going

22

to go.

23

Operator IVs, Equipment Operator Ills, more of

24

the equipment operations side, and that was

25

originally to -- to support the landfills.

Right now we have Light Equipment
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1

That's why we had a lot of equipment operators,

2

to support the landfills.

3

longer support the landfills, and we are getting

4

more of the urban environment in, we're getting

5

a lot more of the masonry, the carpentry, that

6

kind of stuff.

But now we are no

So I am -- I kind of looking at that and

7
8

seeing, you know, where we going to go with

9

that.

And -- and part of that mix is whether we

10

go AC or concrete, but concrete is still oil

11

dependent, and cement is still dependent upon

12

oil to create the cement.

13

you know, true comparison.

14
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Yeah.
Mr. Pontanilla.

18
19

Thank you for your

comments.

16
17

Okay.

So it's not really a,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Chair.

In regards to the materials that we

20
21

utilize, right now, we utilize AC macadam to do

22

patch replacements, road replacements.
They have this new material that

23

It's porous asphalt.

lS

24

porous.

Are we going

25

are we heading towards the direction in regards
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1

to when we do repavlng or do -

2

on the roadways?

3

MR. HASHIRO:

do maintenance

I did attend a porous pavement semlnar

4

they had at -- in Wailuku.

5

doesn't look like it's being recommended for

6

highway use.

7

and that type of use.

8

probably not.

9

and see what was, you know, being proposed.

It's more for,

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

CHAIR KANE:

13

like, parking lots

So for our applications,

But we did go and take a look at

10

12

At this point, it

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

16-39 on Details for drainage

14
15

maintenance, budget looks flat on that.

16

it still, I guess, in your estimation enough,

17

even with all the rain that we have had, to,

18

guess,

19

of debris?

20

MR. HASHIRO:

And is

I

clean out the drainage areas and removal

Yeah, it -- it's more like a -- an

21

extra amount of money that we have in reserve In

22

case we need it.

23

funds built in to take care of the drainage, and

24

this is just a little bit extra in case we need

25

it.

So our district budgets have
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And for road patching

2

materials, other than Makawao and Wailuku, which

3

have received increases,

4

districts, pretty much the same thing; you don't

5

foresee a need for additional funding?

6

MR. HASHIRO:

for the other

Just by the top -- type of operations,

7

Wailuku does more of the shoulder-type work.

8

The other districts, not as much.

Hana, we

9

don't have that kind of problems.

Lahaina, no,

10

you know.

11

type of work that the districts do.

12

And it's more of a district-related

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Mr. Chairman,

13

Thank you.

I have questions more

14

related to the Makawao District, so if you deem

15

it appropriate -- I can go ahead and wait, and

16

let the other Members proceed.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, I am going let Mr. -- I stopped

18

him only to ask that one question in the Wailuku

19

area, but it was more of a general because, as

20

Mr. Hashiro stated, if you look at the road

21

patching for the various districts,

22

much correlates to what he just said, with

23

exception to the Makawao, which more than

24

doubles, which is where I was going to go with

25

the next question.

it pretty
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rest, and I apologize for stopping.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

No.

No.

I just wanted to get one of the general

7

items in.

8

him every time we see the road patching area --

9
10
11
12

So when we go through, we don't stop

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
CHAIR KANE:

-- and the inconsistency of it.

So now

we know generally why.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

Chair.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Right.

Okay.

No problem.

Thank you,

Mr. Hokama.
Chairman, one quick last one on

drainage maintenance.
This current year, you didn't ask for

17
18

any rental money, and then next year, you

19

want -- you are asking for $10,000.

20

new site or facility that you are -- you are

21

requiring, Mr. Hashiro?

22

MR. HASHIRO:

Is there a

On occasion, we do rent some equipment

23

for drainage maintenance.

We have been -- this

24

last month, we have been renting a hydraulic

25

excavator.

We did have a hydraulic excavator in
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1

our budget for this year.

2

out to bid soon,

3

yet.

4

going to be needing some rentals, but at some

5

point In time, we will be probably eliminating

6

it.

7

It's supposed to go

so we don't actually have it

So we anticipate some time where we are

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So, because, you know,

8

other requests in this subject code has been for

9

space or buildings.

10
11

You are telling us this lS

for equipment.
MR. HASHIRO:

Equipment rentals.

Something that we

12

don't have in our inventory, and something that

13

we don't, you know, sometimes normally use and

14

need on a regular basis.

15
16
17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

Right.

Right.

Thank you

very much, Mr. Hashiro.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Mr. Arakawa, why don't you go ahead.

18
19

Right.

MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
To move on to the next page, 16-40,

21

under road maintenance, Makawao, under subobject

22

code 6047, road patching materials, as you have

23

mentioned,

24

'07, we are asking for $160,000.

25

purpose of this increase is basically to try to

in '06, we asked for $75,000, and in
And the
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1

use this additional money to do paving on old

2

government roads and substandard County roads.

3

Just as a case in point, we have had a

4

number of requests from residents who live along

5

the Paia side of Ulalena Loop to do paving of

6

that old government road.
And so that's what this additional

7

8

moneys would be targeted for, would be to do the

9

paving on

10
11

on that road.

I can stop there if you have any
questions on that.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

MR. ARAKAWA:

No, let's move through.
Okay.

Basically, the remainder of the

14

road, bridge, and drainage maintenance program

15

are generally flat except for things like

16

electricity increases and gas lncreases.

17

I would also note, under,

for instance,

18

road maintenance on Molokai, on page 16-42, we

19

are asking for an increase in medical supplies

20

from $2,000 to $13,000.

21

mention that in Fiscal Year '05, we had expended

22

a little over $12,000 for this category.

23

But I would also

And also, same thing with utilities on

24

Molokai, we are requesting an increase in

25

electricity to $17,480.
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1

On road maintenance, Lanai, same

2

increase under electricity, subobject code 6120.

3

That's basically a 15 percent increase.

4

the bottom of that page, 16-43, street lights,

5

this is our electricity cost for the street

6

lights within the County, and we are asking for

7

an increase up to $1,707,290.
And on the last page of this program,

8
9

And at

16-44, under the Wailuku off-street parking lot,

10

we are also asking for an increase In

11

electricity costs here as well, 15 percent

12

increase.

13
14

CHAIR KANE:

Where

MR. HASHIRO:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

that?

18

one?

That's correct.
No plans for repaving or anything like
We are looking at the big picture on that

We are waiting for a big picture?

19

MR. HASHIRO:

20

CHAIR KANE:

22

this off-street parking lot?

Is that the municipal parking lot?

15

21

lS

Parking structure?
Yes.

Yes.

Yes.

Yes.

I heard -- yeah,

inaudible, yes.
Okay, Members, before we get into the

23

C Account, the equipment area, any questions in

24

operations?

25

Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Focus on the Makawao District.

3

all, thank you, Mr. Arakawa,

4

considering that appropriation for the Ulalena

5

Road itself.

6

budget term, you did mention that a concern

7

about the condition of our roads in the

8

Upcountry area as being somewhat substandard,

9

and so I appreciate that.

10

And I know,

And again,

for,

First of

you know,

if I recall last

I think it started with the

11

Makawao Avenue issue.

I think Member Tavares

12

can recall that.

13

very appreciative of that.

So you know,

folks are still

14

With -- with regards to the -- I guess

15

when we -- we appropriated moneys for Piiholo,

16

Alaluana, and also we are looking at Upper

17

Ulumalu Roads, what kind of impact will this

18

have on, you know, contract services and

19

construction materials in this category?

20
21
22

MR. ARAKAWA:

I -- I'm sorry.

Your question was

whether or not we should be .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, I mean, if,

for example,

23

if the Council had decided to give an additional

24

appropriations -- and I mentioned Piiholo

25

because I think when we were at the Pukalani
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524 2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

188

1

budget hearings, we had some folks that came out

2

from Olinda area that had expressed concerns

3

about the possibility of additional funding

4

needed to do repairs on Piiholo Road.
If we were to consider additional

5

6

appropriations, what kind of impact would it

7

have?

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10
11
12

Let me -In terms of materials, you

would obviously need more.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Right.

Well, let me back up a bit.

Of course, you are aware that we have an

13

existing $400,000 appropriation in Fiscal Year

14

'06, and we are going to be repairing, including

15

repairing the root damage along the worst

16

portions of Piiholo Road, Olinda Road, and

17

Alaluana Road.

18

So I -- I think there will be a

19

significant increase in the roadway condition

20

for those three roads.

21

that project should start this summer.

22

And the construction on

I believe we have submitted an estimate

23

to resurface the remainder of the roads, and the

24

condition of the remainder of the roads are a

25

lot better than of course the portions that we
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are proposlng to repair.
I think we submitted our comments in

2

I -- I don't have it in front of me

3

writing.

4

right now, but it's basically another million to

5

resurface the remainder of Piiholo; another

6

million dollars to resurface the remainder of

7

Olinda; and the Alaluana figure,

8

right off the top of my head, but it's at least

9

$2 million that we are talking about.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I can't recall

Big bucks, there.

11

And maybe at a later time, if I could

12

get a -- we have had discussions on the Upper

13

Ulumalu Road issue.

14

proposal that they would do with regards to,

15

guess, where they had put their waterlines In.

16

Maybe at a later time, if I could get an

17

estimate for doing all of Upper Ulumalu Road

18

from the Department,

19

be in writing.

20

for time for that.

So I don't know if you have

21

those figures now.

If not,

22

you at a later time.

23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Water has mentioned a

from you.

I

Doesn't have to

I know we are sort of pressed

I can get them from

Thank you.

Thank you.

Questions, Members, in this area?
B Accounts, before we get into C Accounts?
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1

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Hokama.
Can you share with us, you know,

4

we -- we granted some Clerk Typist III, and you

5

folks have asked DPS, and I believe DPS has

6

either agreed or currently trying to reallocate

7

it to Clerk -- just a Clerk III position.

8

you share some of the reasons of this thinking,

9

please?

10

MR. HASHIRO:

I think -- yeah,

Can

I think what DPS has

11

been having problems finding is people who have

12

the typing skills in this current market.

13

lot of our work is not really focused on the

14

typing aspect, but more of the clerical side,

15

so -- and it is the same salary rating as a

16

Clerk Typist III as a Clerk III.

17

been recommending to us to -- to go with a

18

Clerk III because there are more applicants for

19

that position than a clerk typist.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

So they have

Thank you for that.

And this would be Department-wide for

21
22

Okay.

So a

you folks?
MR. HASHIRO:

For that type of positions.

For us, we

24

also have what they call administrative services

25

assistants.

They handle money and some other
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1

duties that are distinct from a clerk typist or

2

Clerk III.

3
4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you very much

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

7
8

Okay.

for your response.

5

6

So it depends on what the need is.

Okay.
Question, Ms. Johnson?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, and this

lS

just

9

probably a general question because I think

10

earlier, In other conversations, Mr. Hokama

11

asked about your Department, and how we might be

12

able to do a cost-benefit analysis in terms of a

13

lot of our projects, whether it's repair and

14

maintenance, instead of farming out all of these

15

projects to private developers, whether it's

16

CIP, whatever,

17

Department, because you are already involved in

18

a lot of the repair,

19

issues, if you have looked at or considered

20

maybe having the Council fund some kind of a

21

study to help you determine whether or not, as

22

you asked I guess earlier, where your Department

23

is going?

24

MR. ARAKAWA:

25

lS

I wondered if, in your

a lot of the drainage

Have you thought of that at all?
Councilmember Johnson, if your question

referring to roadway maintenance issues, as
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1

you know, right now, it's either resurface the

2

entire road or pothole patching.

3

actually been trying to look at what can we do

4

in between that, those two extremes, to lengthen

5

the pavement life, so that we can lengthen the

6

time between resurfacings.

7

And we have

And we are not ready to propose

8

something in this '07 budget, but hopefully we

9

will have some package together for '08.

10

In -- in Hawaii, there's really not a

11

whole lot that's being done as far as

12

preventative maintenance issues, but we just

13

want to make sure that we have all of our ducks

14

in a row as far as equipment that we need to

15

purchase, maybe staff training that would be

16

involved for some sort of a preventative

17

maintenance program.

18

year is what we are looking at.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

So probably next budget

And you are talking generally

20

about maintenance, but I am kind of looking at

21

combining maybe the maintenance along with more

22

weighty projects where you are actually doing

23

the whole roadway project yourself.

24

Mr. Hokama had termed it where you would

25

actually be forming a construction division

And I think
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within Public Works.

2

And I don't know if this is the

3

appropriate place, because I don't know

you

4

know,

I

5

guess Mr. Chair, we could ask or have them think

6

about maybe doing a cost-benefit analysis.

7

Because with the increases in all of the other

8

costs that we are looking at,

9

the Department is willing to take a look at in

10

that area, I think it might be worth it for us

11

to fund some type of a study or independent

12

consulting study.

13

CHAIR KANE:

I think it

if

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla -- excuse me.
Mr. Molina, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.

14
15

it -- it seems appropriate, but I

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

You know what, all of this rain, it

16
17

brought back memories, or I guess nightmares, of

18

dengue fever.

19

How is the Department addressing, you

20

know, standing water that builds up along the

21

roads or in,

22

potholes?

23

that?

24

years ago, you know, how are you folks

25

addressing that?

like, roads that have some

Do you have sufficient budgeting for

Since that, you know, that outbreak from
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MR. HASHIRO:

Well, with potholes, we try to patch

them as soon as they occur.
Standing water

3
4
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I am thinking of areas like,

5

you know, Hana, Haiku, you know, where you get a

6

lot of rain,

7

occurrences, yeah.

8
9

10
11

MR. HASHIRO:

and you see a lot of that kind of

We haven't been doing very much along

those lines in Hana.

It's -- yeah, we haven't

been doing very much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Is it the intent of the

12

Department to,

I guess, you know, to -- to

13

review that or look at that again in case -- I

14

guess probably I am just sort of taking the

15

preventative measure look at it, so we don't

16

have any more buildup of mosquitoes and other

17

public health threats.

18

MR. HASHIRO:

19

issues.

20

property and what they store and what, you

21

know -- some of these abandoned vehicles on

22

private property, especially, and stuff like

23

that.

24
25

In general, our roads are not the big
I think the big issues

lS

private

I think that's the major problem area.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

There's not so much water

buildup on our roads,

just .

.

.
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We have water build up in Hana,

just

2

because it rains so much.

3

it never dries out sometimes.

4

without trying to reconfigure the road to make

5

it flow off to the sides more or something like

6

that, you know, we don't have very much in

7

place.

8

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11
12

Okay.

You know,

it's like

But it's --

Right.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla, followed -- by anybody

need to speak in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Chair.

You know, we've had a lot of testimony

14

In Lahaina regarding Puukolii Road, and you

15

know, we know the situation as far as not only

16

the County, that, you know,

17

responsible -- responsible for the road, but

18

there's two other private entities that are also

19

responsible.

20

these two private companies to repave that road?

21

MR. ARAKAWA:

lS

part

Do we have any plans to work with

Councilmember Pontanilla, yeah, we are

22

aware of the testimony, too, and we -- as you

23

mentioned, there are two other parties that also

24

own the road,

25

And we -- that's something we -- we need to do,

so we would have to get together.
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1

and we will do that.

I understand the concern

2

raised by the public.
So we will get together and basically

3
4

put together a package and hopefully come

5

forward to the Council for some sort of a

6

dedication issue.

7

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

And can it be done prior

8

to, you know, we finally making a decision, so

9

that at least some moneys can be dedicated to

10
11

repaving that road?
MR. ARAKAWA:

I wouldn't think so.

Not at this

We would have to go talk with the

12

point.

13

various parties.

14

decision makers that they have to consult with

15

as well.

I am sure they have their own

And for us, we need to put together a

16
17

whole package on what needs to be done and what

18

would be acceptable from our standpoint, and the

19

Council's standpoint as far as dedication.

20

we will work on it.

21

it's something we need to work on.

22

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So

We will work -- we realize

Okay.

Fine.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

23
24

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Ms. Anderson.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Arakawa, the breakdown
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1

for your various maintenance,

2

I am assuming this is -

3

Lanai, and Hana, and Makawao, and it's broken

4

down this way -- Lahaina -- I am assumlng

5

because that's where you have baseyards?

6

MR. HASHIRO:

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

road maintenance,

you have Wailuku, and

That is correct.
So, you know,

I am looking

8

at, like Makawao, you have 160,000 for road

9

patching.

10

patching, up from 60,000.
So, any road patching in South Maui

11

12

Wailuku, you have 100,000 for road

would come out of the Wailuku?

13

MR. HASHIRO:

That is correct.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Then, last year, we

15

budgeted some funds to do -- put In some more

16

sidewalks on South Kihei Road.

17

me what's happened with that?

18

has been done yet, at least visually.

19
20

MR. ARAKAWA:

We are aware of that.

Because nothing

Actually, I

think it's for crosswalks.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

MR. ARAKAWA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

MR. ARAKAWA:

25

Could you tell

Yeah.

Yeah.

What did I say,

sidewalks?

Yeah.
Yeah.

Crosswalks.

So, yeah, we are looking at

varlous alternative designs.

We are looking at
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1

something nonstandard, and something that would

2

be more eye-catching I guess than the normal

3

crosswalks.

4

various suppliers.

5

for that purpose before it lapses.

6

And we are

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

we are looking at

And we will use that money

Because, you know, the

7

concern is that we have so many tourists

8

crossing South Kihei Road, Mr. Arakawa, that

9

and -- and they are crossing on areas that --

10

there's just not enough crosswalks, where a

11

condominium might be.

12

where there aren't crosswalks.
And -- well,

13

So they are crossing

I guess it was the NACo

14

conference, where we both were looking at

15

various crosswalks -- crosswalk materials, where

16

they have -- I know one of the problems is

17

the -- they just fade so fast, the painted

18

crosswalks fade really fast.
But -- and you called it nonstandard,

19
20

the

21

and they -- and they service Hawaii.

22

like a rubberized material of some kind that's

23

sunk down into the pavement, and it has neon

24

colors.

25

the material I was pointing out to you,

And it -- you know,

But it's

I drive that road a
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1

lot, and it seems to be a real safety issue.

2

I am pleased to hear that you are going to move

3

forward on that.
And have you identified yet where the

4
5
6

So

cross
MR. HASHIRO:

the new crosswalks might be?
I am not sure where the new ones are

7

being proposed, but I know that we did install

8

one at Ohukai and South Kihei.

9

was another one that they asked us to do -- they

I believe there

10

made -- engineering made a work order for.

11

can't recall where, but there were at least two

12

crosswalks that we recently striped.

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I am thinking more at the

14

southern end, where -- at all the Kam Parks,

15

where we have all the condominiums

16

there's condominiums everywhere.
But they are really faded,

17

I

well,

and people

18

are, like I said, crossing where there are no

19

crosswalks because it's just, I guess, too

20

inconvenient to walk such a distance.
So you haven't identified any further

21

22
23

areas?
MR. ARAKAWA:

You know,

I am not sure about specific

I know we have talked with

24

intersections.

25

Engineering about possibly doing a different
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1

type of sidewalk -- I mean, crosswalk at the

2

intersection of Kanani and South Kihei Road.

3

The specific design and the traffic signal and

4

the crossings and the lane -

5

is in discussion now.

6

one possibility.

7
8
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

the laneage there

So that

- that may be

But that's an existing

crosswalk, right?
MR. ARAKAWA:

That is, yes.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

See, the funding was to

11

install new -- a new crossing -- crosswalks.

12

And I think the Kihei Community Association

13

identified some areas that they felt were, you

14

know, safety lssues.

15

MR. ARAKAWA:

You know,

So you guys haven't

I can get back to you.

I

16

know our Engineering Division had been working

17

on that as far as specific intersections or

18

specific locations, and I can get back to you on

19

that.

20
21
22
23

I -- I don't know offhand.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

Okay.

Thank you very

much.
CHAIR KANE:

Members, the Committee will stand in

recess until 3:25.

24

RECESS:

3:08 p.m.

25

RECONVENE:

3:26 p.m.

(Gavel.)
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(Gavel.)

recess.

Thank you, Members, for that

We are reconvened.
Are there any more questions in the A

3

4

and B Account of the road, bridge, and drainage

5

maintenance program?
Hearing none, Mr. Arakawa

6
7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, sorry.

I am sorry.

Mr. Hokama.

On the 16-43, bottom of the page,

10

compared to everything else, for electricity,

11

are you -- are you comfortable with this

12

requested number of $1.7 million for all the

13

street lights in the County?

14

MR. HASHIRO:

For the most part, the last couple of

15

years, we have maintained a surplus in that

16

account, but we did boost it a little bit more

17

in discussion with the Budget Director, to --

18

you know,

19

for a safety factor.

But you know, we just never know, with

20

$71 a barrel for oil, who knows which way we're

21

gOlng to go.

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Yeah, that's why I asked that

23

Mr. Hashiro.

And again, not knowing how quickly

24

what's being constructed out there becomes on

25

stream and comes under the County's
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1

responsibility,

2

not the number is sufficient to take care of --

3

of your needs.

4

MR. HASHIRO:

I am just wondering whether or

At the present time, yes.

We do

5

monitor on a monthly basis,

6

getting into real trouble, we will certainly

7

yell.

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

Mr. Chairman.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11
12
13

Okay.

so if we start

Thank you very much,

Thank you.
Mr. -- excuse me.

Director Arakawa, you

can proceed with the C Account.
MR. ARAKAWA:

14

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I would like to refer you to page 16-45

15

of your Details.

16

under the road, bridge, and drainage maintenance

17

program.

18

Wailuku, we have a request to replace a pickup

19

truck.

It's a replacement of a 1991 Ford pickup

20

truck.

We are requesting $40,000 for that.

21

This is a proposed equipment

Under 916528,

road maintenance in

Under road maintenance, Makawao, this is

22

another replacement of a tractor mower,

23

are requesting $65,000 for that replacement.

24
25

and we

Under road maintenance, Lahaina, there's
several equipment requests involved.

One is a
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1

replacement of a wheel loader for $160,000.

2

This is to replace a 1984 model loader.

3

request for a 12- to 14-cubic-yard dump truck.

4

This is a -- an expansion request of $120,000.

5

It is a

Much of the request -- much of the work

6

of the Lahaina District here deals with drainage

7

and clearing of retention basins, so the dump

8

truck is a needed piece of equipment to help

9

them do their work.

10

And also there's a replacement backhoe

11

loader for Lahaina, in the amount of $80,000,

12

and this is to replace a 1986 Ford backhoe

13

loader model.

14

For road maintenance in Hana, there are

15

several equipment replacements, a tractor mower

16

replacement request for $75,000.

17

request for $38,000.

18

Chevrolet one-ton pickup truck.

19

A pickup truck

This replaces a 1994

And a crew cab truck; this is also

20

another replacement for $40,000, and this

21

replaces a 1995 model.

22

For road maintenance, Molokai, we also

23

have a replacement of a pickup truck for

24

$28,000.

25

model, and a second pickup truck, another

This replaces the 1991 Ford pickup
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1

replacement model,

2

replacement.

3

there's a couple of -- several requests on

4

Lanai,

5

This is a replacement of a 1986 Caterpillar

6

model.

7

expansion position of $150,000.

8

pieces of equipment help with -- are going to

9

help with shoulder repair on Lanai.

10

for $30,000.

This replaces a 1998 model.

And a new motor grader.

And finally,

12

Cherokee -- Jeep Cherokee model.

These two

This replaces the 1998 Jeep

Members, any questions in this area?

14

Mr. Molina.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

This is an

a replacement of a pickup

truck for $26,000.

CHAIR KANE:

And

one for a wheel loader for $145,000.

11

13

This is another

Yeah, thank you, Chairman.

Just the one question.

17

You know,

on the,

I guess the backhoes

18

and the wheel loaders and those things,

19

you start to replace them, they are still

20

somewhat serviceable, and I guess -- in most

21

cases.

22

guys resell them,

23

scrap heap or .

24
25

MR. HASHIRO:

So -- so what happens to those?

I guess

You

or just throw them on the

Mr. Chair, the better -- we kind of

retain some of the equipment for our equipment
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1

operator training program.

2

best one and get rid of the

3

know, one, basically.

4

We kind of pick the
the worse, you

And -- but if -- if at any time, you

5

know, the equipment operator trainee needs

6

major -- some kind of thing that it needs a

7

major repair, we are going to get rid of it.

8

are not going to fix it.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
MR. HASHIRO:

Okay.

It's there to assist the training

11

program, but other than that -- and it's there

12

for emergencies, too.

13

it needs major replacement -- major repair, we

14

are not going to fix it.

15

it in and sell it.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Okay.

But for the most part, if

We are going to turn

Thank you.

Seeing no further questions,

18

Members, in here, let's move into traffic

19

management.

20
21

Director.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair, I would like to start from

22

page 16-49.

23

traffic signs marking program.

24
25

We

This is the Operations Budget for

The first item I would like to bring up
as far as highlights would be under Traffic
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1

Signs and Markings,

2

Professional Services,

3

just -- your request just has $100 under Fiscal

4

Year '07, but we would like to request

5

consideration for $50,000 under that subobject

6

code.

7

916601, under -- under
6132.

Currently, we are

This is primarily to deal with Lahaina

8

historic district sign repair.

Many of the

9

signs within the historic district were custom

10

made, wooden signs, and over the years, we have

11

dealt with the wooden sign issues by basically

12

erecting the standard metal signs, which are

13

nonstandard for the district.

14

to get back to replacing these metal signs with

15

the wooden signs, which were originally

16

approved.

17

consideration for $50,000 under that subobject

18

code.

19

So we really want

And for that, we are asking your

Under the next object code

I mean

20

Index Code,

21

have an increase under subobject 6030,

22

mechanical and -- machine and equipment

23

replacement parts.

24

$50,000, and in '07, we were requesting a total

25

of $100,000.

916817, traffic signal lights, we

And in '06, we had requested
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1

And these are basically needed to pay

2

for traffic signal fixtures which are damaged

3

during traffic accidents, and we are just

4

finding that we need additional money to -- to

5

deal with that.

6

7

CHAIR KANE:

Excuse me, Director.

Just so you know,

you identified the wrong line.

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9

CHAIR KANE:

That increase lS In 6031, not 6030.

MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you for that clarification.

10
11

12

Oh, I did?

You

are correct.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

So your -- your explanation

13

stands because you talked about replacement when

14

we are -- when your listing is in a -- in a

15

repalr and maintenance supply subobject code.

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

17

repair.

18

gets damaged during a traffic accident, and we

19

need to basically either repair or replace

20

whatever parts are broken.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

MR. ARAKAWA:

Well, it's, yeah -- it's basically for
I mean, you know, the traffic signal

Okay.
Further down,

just

just as a matter

23

of information, under 6120, we have also

24

increased the electricity allocation from

25

$70,000 in '06 to 80,500 in '07.

That's a
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15 percent increase.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, besides the question of

3

where the Department wants to delete 50,000 to

4

add their 50,000 to the area they are asking for

5

consideration, any other questions?

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

9

One question, Chairman, please.

Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
Do we provide any assistance

regarding signal

signalization and markings

10

on State roads?

11

through appeal and we get reimbursed for

12

servicing them?

13

MR. HASHIRO:

Or let's say they hire you

Mr. Chair, at this point, we don't do

14

that for State highways.

15

think I mentioned before, there was some brief

16

discussion about it, but we are not doing it

17

right now.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

Okay.

20

Mr. Chairman.

21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

There have been -- I

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you very much,

Director, any comments regarding where

22

you would be able to come up with $50,000 or

23

suggest where we can come up with $50,000?

24
25

MR. ARAKAWA:

Sure.

Mr. Chair, if you recall, there

was a discussion of Keawe Street, our Keawe
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1

Street project during Engineering CIP.

2

Administration proposal, there was a total of

3

$1.5 million, which was shown as County funds.

4

But actually, there are -- there's 1.5 million

5

in developer funds which were given to the

6

County, so it means there's an extra

7

$1.5 million in County funds, which are

8

available.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

Any questions, Members, in this

area before we move on?

11
12

Okay.

In the

Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Let's move on.

On page 16-51, regarding equipment, for

13

Traffic Signs and Markings, let me just go down

14

this list.

15

Index Code 916601, we are requesting a computer

16

system with a color laser printer.

17

expansion request of $2,300.

18

equipment for a Clerk III position that we are

19

requesting.

20

Under the traffic signs and markings

This is an

This is primarily

We are also requesting a laptop

21

computer.

This is also an expansion request of

22

$1,750, and this is primarily for the traffic

23

sign staff, where they would be able to input a

24

lot of the data regarding traffic signs and

25

markings from the field.
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We are also requesting a plotter.

That

2

is a replacement request, $12,800, and this

3

plotter is used to help our staff manufacture

4

the signs, the traffic signs, in-house.

5

The next two, typewriter and office

6

furniture, are basically equipment needed for

7

the Clerk III position that we are requesting.

8

And the last one under this Index Code

9

is a magnetic cable locator.

This is an

10

expansion request totaling $2,600.

11

basically what this helps us do is locate

12

help us locate underground utilities.

13

case we need to excavate, obviously, we don't

14

want to damage other utilities which are

15

underground, so this will help our crew to -- to

16

locate other utilities.

17

And

If in

Under the 916817 Index Code, regarding

18

traffic signal lights, we are requesting

19

expansion for a spread spectrum radio in the

20

amount of $75,000.

21

soft -- software of $30,000 for our Clerk III

22

sorry, not for a Clerk III.

23

with the remote repair for traffic signals.

24
25

to

Software, it's a QuicNet4

This is to help

And the last one is traffic controllers.
This is a replacement item of $28,000.
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Can you give more information on the

spread spectrum radio expansion request, please?
MR. HASHIRO:

Yeah, the spread spectrum radio allows

4

the traffic controller to communicate with a

5

central location, and where we are going to

6

propose it is the Wailuku baseyard.

7

the signals of what's happening to the traffic

8

controller at the traffic signal remotely to a

9

remote site -- a central site.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

MR. HASHIRO:

It sends

Excuse me.

And what does that do?
It communicates with the QuicNet4

12

software to tell the software, you know,

13

and then also allows us to do some controls,

14

similar to like a SCADA system for Water and

15

Wastewater.

16

what

All of -- all three of them -- them are

17

combined for the whole system to work.

18

controllers,

19

controller, an older model and a new model, and

20

the controllers we are going replace,

21

older model.

22

The

some of them will have two types of

it is an

The new model allows the software and

23

the spread spectrum reader to work, to

24

bring out information from the traffic signal,

25

to the radio, transmit it to a baseyard, take it
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1

down into a computer, and then we can remote

2

remotely monitor and change certain items at the

3

traffic signal.

4

package you need to buy to do the whole thing.

5

So it's -- it's an entire

And for -- this is just for a half of

6

our traffic signals that we plan to do in-house,

7

to work in-house, and for half of our signals.

8

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Members, questions in this area?
Chairman.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Tavares.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

On that -- on that subject,

12

then, are you able to synchronize lights using

13

this system?

14
15
16

MR. HASHIRO:

We should be able to much better do it,

yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

But it's not -- you are not

17

talking about a system that's hooked up to a

18

computer that would be a traffic management

19

system by the -- would adjust by the flow of

20

traffic?

21
22

MR. HASHIRO:

We could make some of those adjustments

remotely, yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

MR. HASHIRO:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Remotely.

Yeah.
Oh, that -- oh, okay.
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would be way ahead of the State, then.
MR. HASHIRO:

The problem is trying to get our stuff

3

to work in conjunction with the State's, like

4

Lower Main Street.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Oh, no.

Some places that

6

might be okay, but you know, until the State

7

gets their lights synchronized,

8

won't synchronize to their unsynchronized

9

lights.

10

MR. HASHIRO:

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I sure hope we

Then we will be unsynchronized.
Okay.
No,

I understand what you are

12

saying, though.

If you can synchronize to at

13

least that one light on the State, and it

14

involves a bunch of lights on the County, then

15

it would be worth it to synchronize it with that

16

one single light.

17

And then, hopefully, the State can work

18

toward getting synchronization of some of their

19

lights, both in Kaahumanu Avenue -- in case the

20

State's listening -- Kaahumanu Avenue, and

21

Lahaina -- Honoapiilani Highway, that we keep

22

hearing about.

23

those lights synchronized.

24
25

But it sure would be nice to get

Would save us gas, too, by the way.
There are studies that have been done that show
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1

synchronized lights save a whole bunch of gas

2

gasoline, because of the stopping and starting.

3

Thank you.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6
7

Got to get my commercial in

there.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

That's a good commercial.

Yeah, where our street meets the State

8

9

Thank you.

highway,

like Kaahumanu Avenue, Wakea Avenue,

10

the State controls their light on Kaahumanu

11

Avenue; we control everything going east on

12

Wakea.

13

junction, Wake a and Kaahumanu, who synchronizes

14

that light in regards to a side street, Wakea?

15
16

MR. HASHIRO:

Now,

if we synchronize our -- at that

Wakea-Kea, Wakea-Onehee, Wakea-Lono,

Wakea-Kam, all of that is County.

17

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

18

responsibility.

19
20
21

MR. HASHIRO:

Yeah, that's our

But the one at that junction

The junction at Kaahumanu is State.

The junction at Puunene Avenue is State.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

So we need to work with

22

them in order to make sure our side is

23

synchronized with Kaahumanu?

24

MR. HASHIRO:

That would be the goal, yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.
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1

MR. HASHIRO:

Thank you.

2

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Molina?

3

Mr. Hokama, go ahead.

4

And I am sorry, Mr. Mateo?

5

Mr. Hokama.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

My -- my question is -- is there

7

going to be some sort of coordinated effort

8

with, let's say, police, and their -- gee,

9

not sure if within the Communications section of

I am

10

the MPD, whether or not there will be a

11

coordinated effort with your Division so that in

12

case Police needs to have certain things flow

13

during emergencies or responding, the software

14

could be able to work with that?

15

Or do you see Police having another

16

remote connection so that they could then adjust

17

the lights to take care of their traffic needs

18

during situations?

19

MR. HASHIRO:

Mr. Chair, there are two ways to

20

approach this.

21

has a mechanism where they can make the signal

22

go green, basically, to allow themselves to go

23

through the intersection.

24

we do have that system for the Fire Department.

25

One, the Fire Department already

So you know, they --

We -- I don't believe we have given that
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

216

1

to the Police Department at this point.

2

know, that could be a mechanism to -- to

3

regulate the flow.

4

But you

The other one could be they could work

5

with us, and we could, you know, work something

6

out.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And again, Chairman,

just

8

a side bar, on the Mainland, a regular motor

9

vehicle operator, off the Internet, bought one

10

of those vehicle signal changers.

11

the Police Department took him to court, and the

12

court fined him $50,000.

13

residents want to go buy off the Internet a

14

signal light changer

15

MR. HASHIRO:

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17
18

be sure you have 50,000 in

your bank account.
MR. HASHIRO:

Our software does monitor that kind of

thing.

20

tell when it happened.

22

Somebody does make the change, we can

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And whether or not it was a

County --

23

MR. HASHIRO:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

So in case any of our

Yes, and our

19

21

And -- and

Yes.
vehicle or whatever that it

originated from?
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1

MR. HASHIRO:

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MR. HASHIRO:

4
5

Well,

I -- I believe so.
Okay.

I tried to get a copy of that, but my

traffic signal guy wouldn't give me one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So any -- any estimation -- and

6

we know this is basically from our island.

7

are we talking about right now in, generally,

8

total number of signalizations or light signals

9

that your Division is responsible for?

10

lights?

11

MR. HASHIRO:

12

What

250

300 lights?
No, we are -- we are under 50 at this

point, but it's constantly growing.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Island-wide?

14

MR. HASHIRO:

I believe it's -- the State has

15
16
17
18

Yeah,

the bulk of the signals at this point.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Mr. Hashiro.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

19

Ms. Johnson?

20

Ms. Anderson?

21

Mr. Carroll?

22

Okay.

23

Any further questions In this

area from any of the Members?

24
25

Thank you very much,

Okay.
MR. GINOZA:

Let's move forward, Mr. Arakawa.

Mr. -- Mr. Chair.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Yes, Mr. Ginoza.

2

MR. GINOZA:

I

just have a correction.

On that

3

QuicNet4 software, it's really not related to

4

any personnel.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Where it says for Clerk III?

6

MR. GINOZA:

That's correct.

7

CHAIR KANE:

So for 7032, under the traffic signal

8

lights, we delete "for Clerk III."

9

MR. GINOZA:

That is correct.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

CHAIR KANE:

What is the page we are on?

Page 16-51 of your Details, we would

13

delete the words "for Clerk III" under the

14

traffic signal lights, QuicNet4 for software,

15

$30,000.

16
17

It's not for the Clerk III.
Director Arakawa.

MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair,

I would like to direct the

18

Committee's attention to page 16-55.

19

the Garage Services program.

20

just highlight the major changes, but we are

21

basically talking about the increases In gas,

22

diesel,

23

repalrs and maintenance, and I can just go over

24

those quickly.

25

This is

And here,

I will

fuel, electricity, and increases in

Under County garages, Makawao, gasoline,
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1

diesel, oil, we are requesting an increase from

2

$50,000 to 65,700.

3

County garages, Lahaina, same thing.

4

are requesting -- gas, diesel, oil, we are

5

requesting an increase from 13,000 to 16,900.

6

On the next page, under County garages,

7

Hana, same thing.

8

30 percent increase from 50,000 to 65,000.

9

Gasoline, we are requesting a

Lower down on the page, County garages,

10

Wailuku, gasoline also, we are asking a

11

30 percent increase.

12

We

And also in Wailuku,

just bring to your

13

attention, repairs and maintenance, there's a

14

request from an increase in $100,000 in '06 to

15

$160,000 in '07.

16

147,353 was expended under that subobject code.

17

Just point out that in '05,

And on page 16-57 for Lanai, gasoline,

18

also there was a 30 percent increase.

19

repair and maintenance supplies increased from

20

$10,000 to 14,550.

21

And

County garages, Molokai, auto parts,

22

there's an increase from $12,000 in '06 to

23

$28,000 in '07.

24

we had expended 26,583 in Fiscal Year '05 under

25

that subobject code.

And here I

just point out that
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And near the bottom of the page,

1

2

gasoline, as well, here,

3

30 percent increase.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members,

another uniform

any questions in the

5

B Account?

6

pretty self-explanatory.

7

either the B or C Accounts in this Garage

8

Services program?

9
10

Any questions on

We will start with Mr. Pontanilla,
please, Members, and we will work our way down.
Mr. Pontanilla.

11

12

And I think C Account, on 16-59, is

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

13

Thank you, Chair.

On page 16-56, for gas,

oil, and

14

so forth,

15

you explain what is that reimbursement for or

16

was for?

17

MR. HASHIRO:

reimbursement,

diesel,

it's zeroed out.

Can

What happens lS that the General Fund

18

purchases the gas for all the baseyards, and the

19

reimbursement from Highway Fund reimburse

20

General Fund for our use.

21

explain why it's a reimbursement versus, you

22

know,

23

Director answer that.

24
25

MR. GINOZA:

gas,

fuel,

and oil,

So I don't know, to

I will let the Budget

I -- I believe the reimbursement account

was generally set up for the Countywide -- not
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1

countywide but -- but the account that pays for

2

all of the gas, and when the different Special

3

Revenue funds reimbursed them for that gas,

4

that's where that account should be used;

5

whereas, the other Departments have been

6

actually erroneously using that account because

7

it should be going into the regular gas and oil

8

account, rather than the reimbursement account.

9

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

10

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

Okay.

Mr. Molina.
Yeah.

Thank you.

One

question.

14

You know, the vehicles that you have In

15

the garage, how many of them are -- what are

16

they -- biodiesel?

17

increased fuel costs.

18

"X" number of biodiesel vehicles,

19

minimize your

20

MR. HASHIRO:

I am just thinking of the
I guess if you have the
it's help to

I believe at this point we have

21

requested biodiesel for Makawao, Wailuku, and

22

Lahaina.

23

basically has a lack of supply.

24

of limited at this point to just the three

25

baseyards.

They -- and the biodiesel distributor
So we.' re kind
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

3

4

I see.

I just want to mention, it's

B20, 20 percent, right?
MR. HASHIRO:

- it's

20 percent?

B20, and it's also not for use for

5

those equipment that are not used on a daily

6

basis because we do have some fuel clogging

7

problems, when the fuels tend to sit around for

8

a while.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

Mr. Mateo, any questions?
I am excited.

Thank you.

Chairman, I will come back.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Okay.

Mr. Hokama.
Thank you, Chairman.

I am more concerned about on the 16-57,

17

gentlemen, I don't know who pays higher gas

18

anywhere but the people on Lanai, so you think

19

you have enough for gasoline, diesel?

20

MR. HASHIRO:

Yes, because this amount is just

21

reflective of our own cost for the Highways

22

Division only.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Because this is where

24

we -- this

25

Wastewater wanted your -- your garage to take

the garage programs for Lanai, if
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1

care of their vehicle, is it still charged to

2

this area or -- or there's an intradepartmental

3

transfer later, or how you folks doing the

4

MR. HASHIRO:

For -- for Special Revenue Funds, we

5

charge the Special Revenue Funds for their cost.

6

We did create the General Fund account for

7

garages, and like -- like Maui and Molokai,

8

we're going to purchase things through that

9

account for General Fund items.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I noticed that.

And I would say

11

I appreciate what you folks are doing with the

12

General Fund account.

13

Again, Chairman, you know, the

14

Department has been very open to assisting other

15

County Departments on Lanai with -- with

16

services from Public Works, and I appreciate it,

17

and I think it's going to keep working out for

18

us on our island.

19

My other consideration lS, you are not

20

asking for airfare, and we all -- people like

21

Mr. Mateo and I, who travel regularly,

22

understand airfare costs.

23

you to have some funding in this subaccount,

24

whether to fly parts or a additional, maybe you

25

need one of your special mechanics from this

Is there no need for
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side to assist a mechanic on Lanai?
MR. HASHIRO:

Our -- the past policy was to put all

3

the airfare and the per diem into the Highway

4

Administration account,

5

And,

6

travel but still need the Director's approval.

like -- likewise,

7

so it's in my account.
I kind of control the

But -- so basically the funds for travel

8

for Lanai, Molokai, some of the per diem costs

9

for Hana, it's all in my account.

10
11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And -- and you are

comfortable with the amount that's requested?

12

MR. HASHIRO:

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

Mr. Chairman.

15

Okay.

CHAIR KANE:

For the amount of travel, yes.
Okay.

Thank you very much,

Thank you.

16

Ms. Johnson?

17

Ms. Anderson?

18

Mr. Carroll?

19

Mr. Mateo?

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

CHAIR KANE:

Chairman

I am sorry.

And then I will get to you,

22

and I will get to you, Ms. Anderson --

23

Ms. Tavares, thank you.

24

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you very much.

Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

My apologies, Chairman.

I wanted to follow up with the -- the

3

garage itself and the service of the equipment

4

that goes into the garage.

5

'OS to '06, the number of vehicles that went in

6

there was like almost,

7

what was actually serviced in -- in 'OS.

8
9

like,

I

I notice from

1,500 more than

So are -- are we actually looking at an
aged fleet or equipment that are -- that are

10

just plain old?

11

have escalated, kind of -- kind of noticeably?

12

MR. HASHIRO:

Or what is it that the numbers

I think the problem, if you are looking

13

on Molokai, the problem was personnel-wise.

14

had one employee who was on a long-term

15

industrial.

16

work.

17

problem.

18

We

He's since been returned back to

So that might have been part of the

And the interim, when we had -- we had

19

to generate a temporary position and, you know,

20

that process of getting someone in.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

You also service, you know

22

the garage services all of the County's

23

vehicles?

24
25

MR. HASHIRO:

Most of the County vehicles.

Technically, Fire has their own mechanics, but
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1

if they are not there on the island, then -- and

2

they need help, we will go and help them.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So at this particular point in

4

time, when we are looking at the purchase of the

5

vehicles, hybrid vehicles, you have got the

6

mechanics trained, you have got the higher level

7

mechanic trained to actually provide whatever

8

service that special needs -- the special

9

vehicles require?

10

MR. HASHIRO:

Essentially, the mechanics can handle

11

it.

There's some special safety precautions

12

they've got to take, and that's some of the kind

13

of training we want to make sure that we provide

14

so we avoid the industrial injuries.
But yeah,

15

for the most part, you know,

16

electrical engines and gas engines, they are

17

basically the same.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So apparently, at this
you have caught up

19

particular point, there's

20

with the need to service and maintenance your

21

equipment?

22

basically flat,

23

changes in the demands for the Garage Services?

Because in '07's projections, it's

24

MR. HASHIRO:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

so you are not expecting major

That is correct.

Yes.

Thank you.
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Thank you.
Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

Mr. Mateo felt.

6

me, too.

7

Thank you.

I know how

The other day, that happened to

I notice that in your equipment on

8

16-59, you have equipment related to the

9

expansion position for the Clerk III, but

10

you have one for your position in Wailuku?

11

you have, already, equipment?

12

MR. HASHIRO:

all the equipment and supplies they needed,

14

they didn't request any.

16
17
18
19
20

Or

The Wailuku supervisor said they had

13

15

do

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

All right.

so

Thank you.

That's all.
CHAIR KANE:

Any questions from anybody In this area,

Members?
Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one,

since we have

21

Mr. Hashiro, Chairman.

22

because I -- I know he helps with the

23

procurement of other departments' vehicles, too.

24
25

And I only ask this

Is there a effort,

like in the past,

the County's vehicles, to be IO'd by color?
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1

know, Police has their standard vehicle look, so

2

whenever you see it, you know it's MPD, or Fire.

3

The utilities, Maui Electric, they have their

4

standard ID, so it's recognizable, that's a

5

utility vehicle that's doing utility work on the

6

road shoulder.

7

Is this something in your folks'

8

consideration during procurement, or it's like

9

any color will do and it doesn't matter to the

10

County?

11

vehicles now.

12

Since I notice we have some colorful

MR. HASHIRO:

Mr. Chair, the policy in the past was

13

to paint all County vehicles white and that's

14

more for energy conservation, you know, thinking

15

that the cooler vehicle,

16

black-type vehicle.

17

rather than the

Then we started getting into surplus,

18

and surplus

19

dictating what color we get.

- well, we don't have a choice of

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. HASHIRO:

Right.

So there's a lot of surplus vehicles

22

that all

23

my assistant has a red-colored, you know,

24

Cherokee.

25

white.

the spectrum of the rainbow.

I got a white colored.

Like

I said I want

I don't want anything else.
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But there's -- there's a whole mix.

1

But

2

the general policy has been to provide for white

3

vehicles.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

MR. HASHIRO:

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Brand-new vehicles?

Yes.
And we understand surplus, so out

7

of your Division's or your Department's

8

requests, is there anything that is going to be

9

considered to be obtained by surplus, or is

10
11

everything a brand-new vehicle?
MR. HASHIRO:

For the Highways Division budget,

12

everything is new.

13

surplus.

14

of a maintenance factor involved because it is

15

used.

16

any more than we have to.

17
18

We are not looking at

We -- surplus generally has a -- more

So we don't want to impact our garages

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Under what considerations would

surplus then be appropriate, Mr. Hashiro?

19

MR. HASHIRO:

I would say .

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I only ask that because we have a

21

lot of vehicle requests this year.

So, we

22

understand the Federal government, after three

23

years, they tend to recycle.

24

Federal vehicle, you know it's not brand-new,

25

but it's reasonably should be okay for a few

So you get a
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Under what situations do we look at
surplus vehicles, then?
MR. HASHIRO:

I think it's more of a funding issue.

5

If, you know, you don't have enough funds to

6

provide for a new vehicle, that's why you are

7

looking at a surplus.

8

maintenance aspects for us is a problem.

9

increases our mechanics' work.

10

But, like I said, the
That

And just to go back on the color issue,

11

some of the equipment we

12

standard color to it, so it's not like we can

13

specify what color we can get.

14

standard, like, construction yellow or whatever

15

for some of the equipment.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

we buy, there's a

Like the

We understand that part.

We

17

understand that part.

18

general, new purchases are white, and surplus is

19

whatever we get?

20

MR. HASHIRO:

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22
23
24

25

But for vehicles, in

Yes.
Okay.

Thank you very much for

your comments.
CHAIR KANE:

Any final questions for the Highways

Division?
Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

Thank you,

Chair.

Coming back to the surplus vehicle,

so

3

any Department that requests for surplus, you

4

would be the person that will go to the

5

government for surplus vehicles?

6

MR. HASHIRO:

Generally, agencies have asked our

7

automotive services coordinator to go out and

8

check the vehicle before they purchase.

9

that respect, yes, we do have some involvement.

So in

10

But in some other cases, they may go and do it

11

themselves because they have got the funded

12

the funding.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Because earlier,

14

our Human Services area,

15

new vehicles, you know, they were budgeting for

16

government surplus vehicles.

17

wondering, you know, what is the process in

18

trying to get those government service vehicles.

19

MR. HASHIRO:

Yeah,

so,

rather than purchasing

So I

just was

some of that is, you know

20

the surplus vehicle is not always available,

21

it depends on the cycle, when they are getting

22

rid of vehicles.

23

it -- you got to wait until it's available

24

before you can actually, you know, decide on a

25

purchase.

So you know,

so

it -- you know,
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1

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

2

CHAIR KANE:

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you.

Any questions, Ms. Johnson?
Yes.

Because I had some

4

comments from other Departments, your Department

5

is the one that handles the vehicle acquisition

6

for all of the different Departments except for

7

those two areas, you know, the Fire and Police;

8

is that correct?

9
10

MR. HASHIRO:

Fire, Police, Water.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

But -- but anyway, if

11

somebody comes to you, what -- what is the

12

process for them to actually go and acquire the

13

vehicle?

14

turnaround time, or is there no average?

15

MR. HASHIRO:

16

And about what is the average

Well, let's take it a step at a time.
Normally, an agency would come to us

17

with an amount of funding they have, and what

18

they would like to procure, you know, what kind

19

of accessories they want, you want AC, you want

20

a trailer hitch, or whatever special additions

21

you want or whatever.
So in that regard, we spec our

22
23

vehicle

24

what the agency is trying to request.

25

the vehicle in that fashion, with

However, we are on the bid system, so we
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

233

1

need to make it generic in a lot of senses.

2

cannot make it specific to like a Toyota, a

3

Lincoln, or whatever.

4

generic so everybody can, you know, have the

5

opportunity to bid.

6
7
8

9

We

We have to make it

Now, the second half of your question
was?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

The second part is when

somebody puts in that kind of a request, what is

10

the average turnaround time from the time that

11

they put In the request to the time that they

12

actually get the vehicle?

13

MR. HASHIRO:

That is dependent a lot upon what is

14

the priorities that are being set.

15

some of the priorities that we have is that

16

Refuse comes first, Wastewater comes second.

17

You know, public health and sanitation issues

18

come first.

19

issues first.

20

You know,

And so we try to address those

And sometimes even to the detriment of

21

Highways Division.

22

and Refuse Collection to get their stuff done

23

first,

24

guy,

25

I got to wait for Wastewater

although the guy who is doing it is my

and it's like, why do I have to wait?
But it's -- it's -- we get to it as soon
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as we can.

2

And also, it depends on when the agency

3

contacts us.

4

they got it in the budget; that's all they need

5

to do.

6

the budget.

So you know, sometimes they come,

7

oh, so where

lS

8

car?

9

Sometimes, you know, they think

So we don't know that they have it In

You know,

my car?

And we are going, what

so it takes some coordination.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and -- and you,

I

10

think, hit on one of the things, it's about

11

communication.

12

there's maybe not a clear understanding of the

13

Departments because I had comments, and I won't

14

tell you which Department, but their comment to

15

me was, well, Public Works always takes care of

16

their own Department first and we have to wait.

17

It's also, though, where I think

Now, that's the comment from another

18

Department.

19

other side of the story, that you have a

20

prioritization in which order you process that.

21

But you are giving kind of the

And has there been any consideration

22

and obviously you have only, what, only one

23

person, two people doing this?

24

MR. HASHIRO:

One person.

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Has there ever been any
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1

consideration that perhaps you should add, you

2

know, even if it's some -- you know, if there's

3

a backlog, like, because there's so many

4

vehicles that have been asked for in this budget

5

sesslon, you are obviously going to be slammed

6

right away.

7

Appointment to get somebody else in there to

8

help process some of these requests.

9

considered that?

10

MR. HASHIRO:

Even if it was a Limited Term

We have considered an expansion

11

position to add another person, yes.

12

hasn't made the cut at this point.

13

Have you

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But it

Could you provide us with the

14

figures for an LTA, to even just -- because not

15

every year you are going to be having this

16

situation.

17

big year, it appears,

18

because the fleets wear out,

19

Could you provide us with that information?

It's just In years where this is a

20

MR. HASHIRO:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

for vehicle purchase,
I guess, over time.

Sure.
Okay.

Thank you.

Any more questions?
Hearing none, Members, we have completed

24

the Highways Division.

25

Wastewater.

We have next our
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1

MR. HASHIRO:

2

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you for your consideration.
Mr. Hashiro, thank you very much for

3

your presence this afternoon and your patience

4

today.
Now for even greater thanks to

5
6

Mr. Taylor's patience and working with us on

7

our

- on our march, Members.
Okay.

8
9
10

Detail 16-60, and your Program 18-31, where we
will begin our discussion for Wastewater.

11
12
13

Members, direct your attention to

Director, if you can go ahead and start
off.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, Mr. Chair.

For Wastewater

14

administration as well as the operations side,

I

15

just wanted to highlight the major changes that

16

we are proposing in the '07 Budget.

17

it -- it is essentially a flat budget, with the

18

following exceptions.

19

increases in electricity, gas, diesel,

20

repairs and maintenance, the One Main Plaza

21

lease, as well as the amount that the Department

22

of Water Supply charges the Wastewater

23

Reclamation Division to bill and collect sewer

24

fees as well as some increases in predictive

25

maintenance.

Basically,

There are proposed
fuel,

But those are the general areas

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

237

1

where you will see the lncreases in the

2

Wastewater Division.

3

And with that,

4

16-63, on the Details.

5

Index Code 916315, under cesspool pumping, and

6

here, gasoline, diesel, oil, we are requesting

7

increase from 2,000 to $2,600 in '07.

8

30 percent increase.

9

I can start on page
And the first area is

That's a

On the next page, 16-64, right on the

10

top of the page, subobject 6110, computer

11

services, this is an increase from $385,250 to

12

$466,089.

13

the Department of Water Supply charges us to

14

include within their billing, their billing

15

system.

16

included as part of the water bill.

17

their staff basically processes that and

18

collects all the payments for us, and that's

19

what they charge us.

20

And this is the amount that basically

As you know, the sewer charges are
So their

Under object code -- subobject code

21

6559, rentals, it goes from zero to $210,000 in

22

'07.

23

office space at One Main Plaza.

24
25

This amount is for the rental of our

And I believe those are the major
changes in the admin side.

I would be happy to
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answer any questions you may have.

2
3

4

And also with me I have Dave Taylor,
from our Wastewater Reclamation Division.
CHAIR KANE:

5

6

9
10

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, any questions?

And we will

start with Mr. Molina and work our way down.

7
8
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Mr. Molina, any questions in the A, B,
or C Account admin program?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
CHAIR KANE:

11

Okay.

Pass on this round.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo?

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No.

Mr. Hokama.
Were you renting any other space

15

before One Main Plaza for this Division's

16

requirements, Mr. Director or Mr. Taylor?

17

MR. TAYLOR:

Member Hokama, no, we weren't.

18

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Taylor,

19
20
21

just for the record, if you

can please identify yourself.
MR. TAYLOR:

I am Dave Taylor.

Thank you.

I am the Wastewater

Division Chief.

22

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

On 16-63, gentlemen, the cesspool

24

program, the fees we charge is not sufficient to

25

take care of -- or is it sufficient to take care
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of these requests?

2

MR. TAYLOR:

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

Member Hokama, I believe it is.
Okay.

That's good to know.

And quickly, can you tell us what we

5

added on bonding that increased or is this just

6

part of the general repayment schedule on your

7

Debt Service on 16-63, please, the 11 million

8

plus?

9
10
11
12

MR. TAYLOR:

Member Hokama, you are correct.

just the regular Debt Service.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

MR. TAYLOR:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15

That's correct.
Thank you.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

17

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson?

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

No questions.

Ms. Anderson?

20

Mr. Carroll?

21

Ms. Tavares?

22

So nothing new was added;

it's just the schedule of the repayment?

13

16

That's

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

On your CIP projects on

23

Molokai, are you behind schedule?

24

read something about something that said that

25

the CIP on Mo1okai especially was not -- was

I mean, I
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behind schedule or hadn't started or something.
MR. TAYLOR:

We

- we are on schedule with the

Molokai forcemain project.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5

MR. TAYLOR:

That one.

That one.

That project, to my recollection, was

6

Fiscal Year 2005 budget amount of $1 million,

7

for design and construction, and it immediately

8

went to design.

9

executed in August 2004.

I think a design contract was
The project went out

10

to bid in fall,

11

was executed just at the end of December 2005.

12

Materials are on order, and the contractor

13

expects to begin construction in June of this

14

year.

2005.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MR. TAYLOR:

So the

A construction contract

Oh, okay.
the design took a long time

17

because of the excessive amount of permits that

18

were required.

19

which mean we needed -- we needed a permit from

20

the Army Corps of Engineers.

21

Conservation District land,

22

of Land and Natural Resources approval, EA, SMA,

23

State Highways right-of-way.

24
25

We had to go through the stream,

It was
so we needed Board

So we had kind of a challenging time
with design.

But basically, the project went
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1

pretty quickly, and like I said,

2

to begin actual field construction in June.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4
5

CHAIR KANE:

Let's -- let's see.
Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

8
9

Thank you.

That's all.

6

7

Okay.

it's scheduled

Thank you, Chair.

The computer services area,

is the

computer system being supported by MIS Division?

10

6110,

11

increase of $81,000, and trying to tie it in

12

with -- if, you know,

13

know,

14

And if it's not, why is the $81,000 that is

15

being increased in the computer services area?

16

MR. TAYLOR:

I am looking at

well, there's an

some of the reasons, you

is in regards to being supported by MIS.

Member Pontanilla, this is -- this

17

computer serVlces amount is for our -- our

18

billing, which is done by the Department of

19

Water Supply.

20

money to them.

21

they pay the Honolulu Board of Water Supply to

22

do all this billing.

23
24
25

So we basically transfer the
And I am not sure, but I believe

Is that correct?

Or do they do it

themselves?
But we basically just pay this money to
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1

the Department of Water Supply to handle our --

2

our billing.

3

we are not exactly sure.

So exactly what they do with it,

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Molina, anything in this
Yeah, the -- sorry if I missed

7

it, but the 260,000 increase for the rental cost

8

that was, again, for -- yeah, that's for your

9

collection systems division, yeah.

10

CHAIR KANE:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

Where are you, Mr. Molina?

Let's see.

I am sorry.
Just a sec.

64, 16-64.
CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

That's the $466,000?
Yeah.

Can you just reiterate that, Mr. --

Director Arakawa?

19

That's the 6110, computer services,

20

Mr. Molina?

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22
23

Administration, Wastewater.

What page, Mr. Molina?

15

18

Okay.

I think it was office .

Oh, yeah, okay.

I think that was

related to One Main Plaza.

24

CHAIR KANE:

The rentals?

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah.
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1

CHAIR KANE:

Two hundred ten thousand?

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

Main Plaza.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.
That's all I needed to know.

Mr. Mateo, you have the floor.
Chairman, thank you very much.

I wanted to follow up on the question

8

9

Okay.

Yeah, that was for the One

that Member Tavares asked Mr. Taylor relative to

10

the forcemain project on Molokai.

11

correct that the funding was requested in Fiscal

12

Year '05.

13

You are

What you failed to mention is that the

14

request came to us with a notice of an emergency

15

repair of a forcemain on Molokai.

16

emergency should not take two years to complete.

17

I understand the permitting process, but you are

18

not on target, Mr. Taylor, and the project was

19

not quickly handled if it's been two years and

20

the project is still ongoing, sir.

21

And an

So I don't know how you handle

22

emergencies, but that was how the request was

23

forwarded to this body, as an emergency need.

24

So I

25

that two years is not quickly handled, nor are

just wanted to make it real clear to you
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So could you please comment on the
project itself.
MR. ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Mateo,

let me try and

5

answer your concern.

6

know, there

7

forcemain repair done quickly.

8

the experience that you have probably read in

9

the papers regarding the forcemain break in

10

Honolulu is very instructive for us as well

11

because the design and construction process is

12

not something that, you know, we can do

13

overnight.

lS

I -- I realize that, you

a need to try to get this
But I

I think

14

I know, even in Honolulu, you probably

15

read the papers that the Director there really

16

wanted to do an emergency procurement to replace

17

that -- that forcemain, and it was something

18

that they decided against.

19

And basically, there's -- the papers are

20

now saying, well, why isn't the Department doing

21

this work immediately?

22

taking three years before this forcemain

23

permanent repair gets done?

24

have to go through the same process that we

25

have, getting all the design, getting all the

Why is it going to be

And basically they
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1

permits, and doing the construction.

2

takes that long to do so.

3

It just

And I realize the -- the public's

4

impatience when getting it done, but this is

5

just the process.

6

really underscores the importance of planning.

7

When it comes to infrastructure improvements,

8

you are gOlng to have to plan for this period of

9

time and just do a planned series of

And -- and I think this

10

replacements so that these types of catastrophes

11

don't happen.

12

And I realize the concern.

13

takes some time to -

14

fruition.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Yeah.

But it just

to get the project to

And -- and -- my

16

excitement in trying to emphasize the urgency

17

is, you know, there is no other system.

18

one system on Molokai takes care of the central

19

part of Kaunakakai, yeah.

20

talk about we are going to be deep in it, yeah?

21

That's it, you know.

22

This

If anything happens,

So to me, when Administration comes

23

forward to us and gives us an emergency

24

scenario, then part of that emergency identifies

25

the fact that the process was identified by the
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1

Department as such and should proceed in like

2

manner.

So, that's all I am saying.
And

3

and, Mr. Taylor, your -- your

4

casualness of the project kind of excited me

5

because of the pressures that I receive from my

6

office, and still, you know,

7

as, you know, the emergency situation that

8

Administration identified it as.

9
10

CHAIR KANE:

I

just look at it

Thank you.

Any additional questions or comments,

Members?
Mr. Hokama, anything in this area?

11

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, thank you, Chairman.

13

CHAIR KANE:

Let's move on, Members.

Okay.

14

We are into Wastewater operations.

15

Director.

16

MR. ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chair, I would like to refer you to

17

page 16-73, the top Index Code,

18

disposal interfund.

19

increase from 1. -- $1,210,000 in '06 to

20

$1,320,000 in '07.

21

money which is given to Solid Waste, basically

22

to handle the sewage sludge from our treatment

23

plants.

24

tonnage at the plants, basically.

25

916405, sludge

We are requesting an

This is sludge disposal

And this is due to an increase in

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

What page was that, please,
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Chairman?

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

16-73.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

4

Under the next Index Code under

5

Wastewater Operations Administration, subobject

6

6022, again, we have an increase in gasoline,

7

diesel, oil, etc., from 30,000 to 39,000.
And I would also like to call your

8

9

attention to Professional Services, further down

10

on the page,

11

$30,000.

12

primarily in the predictive maintenance area, to

13

try to prevent equipment from breaking down or

14

prevent catastrophes -- catastrophes from

15

occurring, basically.

16

6132.

It goes from zero to

And we are looking to spend this money

On the next page, under central

17

laboratory,

18

gasoline, diesel, oil, etc., small increase,

19

3,000 to 3,900, but that's a 30 percent increase

20

for that Index Code.

21

916718, we have a -- an increase in

On the next page, collection system, the

22

gasoline, diesel, oil, same thing,

23

increase in fuel costs.

24

25

30 percent

On page 16-76, under subobject 6138,
repalr and maintenance services contracts, we
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1

are requesting an increase from $5,000 to

2

$40,000.

3

the continued maintenance of that collection

4

system site, do some fence repair as well as do

5

our CCTV contract of the collection lines.

6

And these are basically trying to do

And further down on the page, under

7

subobject 6235, rentals, goes from zero to

8

$50,000.

9

site.

These are also for our collection

It is for laboratory trailer

10

laboratory trailer rentals and also to replace

11

the existing trailer -- trailer on that site.

12

On the Kahului Wastewater --

13

Wailuku-Kahului Wastewater Treatment Plant,

14

916940, we have a gas, diesel, oil, increase of

15

30 percent, from 30,000 to 39,000.

16

Page 16-77, we have electricity

17

increase,

18

Wailuku-Kahului plant.

19

of $1,110,000 in Fiscal Year '06.

20

had a supplemental request for electricity in

21

'06, and we have allocated an additional

22

60,000 -- $65,000, from the '06 supplemental for

23

electricity.

24

up, that's a 30 percent increase -- no,

25

sorry -- 15 percent increase, to $1,351,250 in

6120, on subobject code for the
We have an appropriation
You recall we

And if you add those two numbers
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'07.

2

Further down, Lahaina Wastewater

3

Treatment Plant,

4

increase in gasoline, diesel,

5

26,000.

6

right at the bottom,

7

increase from 200,000 to $250,000.

8

are primarily for utility, water pump parts,

9

corrosion repairs, bar screen rehabilitation,

10
11

916957, we have a proposed
oil,

20,000 to

That's a 30 percent lncrease.

And

repairs and maintenance,
And these

and injection well rehab.
The next page,

16-78, for the Lahaina

12

Wastewater Treatment Plant,

13

electricity, there's an increase there from

14

$1,450,000 to 2,024,000.

15

of our supplemental in '06 to this plant in the

16

amount of $310,000.

17

'06 are projected to be $1,760,000,

18

proposing basically a 15 percent increase in

19

electricity based on the supplemental amounts.

20

if you look at

We have allocated part

So electricity costs for

And same thing with Kihei,

so we are

on the next

21

page, 16-79.

22

have $1,340,000 in electricity costs in '06.

23

have allocated $430,000 in the supplemental

24

budget for electricity costs at Kihei, giving us

25

a total of $1,770,000.

If you refer to subobject 6120, we
We

And we are requesting a
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15 percent increase, up to $2,035,500.
Mo10kai Treatment Plant, page 16-80,

3

there's a 30 percent increase in gasoline,

4

diesel fuel.

5

number, $2,000 to $2,600.

6

as well, $65,000 allocated in '06; $20,000 In

7

supplemental money was applied here, so we are

8

expecting an expenditure of about $85,000 in '06

9

for electricity, and with a 15 percent increase,

10

And electricity here,

up to 97,750 for '07.
For Lanai, gasoline, diesel, 30 percent

11

12

That's a small, a fairly small

increase from 1,500 to 1,950.

13

On the next page, 16-81, electricity, we

14

have a 15 percent increase, from $5,000 to

15

5,750.

16

And under Wastewater, safety and

17

training, one final note, gasoline, diesel, oil

18

is a slight increase from $2,000 to $2,600,

19

for -- this is for gasoline, diesel, oil under

20

Wastewater safety and training.

21
22
23
24
25

And that's the major changes under the
operations portion.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We will open it up with

Mr. Mateo, then move down.
Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

2

Just -- just a few.

And I understand most of the adjustments

3

were in electricity, Mr. Director.

4

go from what -- what I started from.

Let me just

5

Under 16-76, I

6

regarding subobject code 6138.

7

what you are expanding from 5,000 to 40, your

8

service contracts for repair and maintenance,

9

please, under collection systems?

10

MR. TAYLOR:

just have one question
Can you tell us

Member Hokama, the services

Rand M

11

services contracts for collection systems cover

12

a few things.

13

building.

14

located right next to Hopaco on Hana Highway.

15

You have probably seen it.

16

be a number of repairs to that building.

17

First is the -- the actual

There's a Butler Building.

It's

And there needs to

And also, we use this money to out source

18

closed circuit television inspection of gravity

19

sewer lines.

20

expect to use these moneys for.

So those are the two items that we

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

ask you,

23

50,000 for rentals,

24
25

MR. TAYLOR:

Okay.

same area,

And is that the -- let me
collection system, your
is that the -- the building?

The -- in -- in our CIP budget, there

was a million dollars for some construction of
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1

some new buildings that we talked about

2

during -- during our CIP presentation.

3

those buildings is a new building on site at

4

this location.

One of

With the design and construction

5
6

project, that will take a few years until that

7

building is finished.

8

to rent some temporary trailers, including a

9

laboratory trailer.

So this rental money is

Right now, we are using

10

a -- we have a trailer of -- of laboratory

11

facilities that is -- we bought a number of

12

years ago and is falling apart.

13

that and provide some office space until the

14

permanent structure can be built on site.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

Okay.

So, replace

Thank you for that.

Is your lab doing most of the work, or

17

are you shipping out samples and other things

18

for third-party labs to do analysis for you?

19

MR. TAYLOR:

Our lab does a lot of work.

I know for

20

specialized things, we -- we send them out.

21

don't know exactly how much.

22

superintendent is -- is here in the gallery, and

23

if you need more information,

24

come down and provide more clarity on that.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Well,

I

Our operation

I can ask him to

I am just trying to get
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1

a -- a good sense of the County's needs for

2

laboratory.

3

laboratory requirements,

4

agency that has laboratory requirements,

5

so .

6

MR. TAYLOR:

Besides you, Water has their

Member Hokama,

and there's one more

if it helps,

our

7

laboratory basically focuses on the things that

8

they can do easily with normal equipment.

9

of the specialized things that we only do, by

A lot

10

permit, once a year, where you need all sorts of

11

specialized equipment,

12

buy that kind of equipment to do tests once a

13

year.

14

things we usually ship out,

15

effective to buy expensive specialized

16

equipment.

17

it's just not worth it to

So that's the kind of -- the kind of

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

if it's not cost

Computer software, you

18

have reduced it, so there's no licensing

19

requirements for each year to -- to pay a vendor

20

or any -- pretty much made all of your treatment

21

plant program areas reductions in your 6244

22

account?

23
24
25

MR. TAYLOR:

Member Hokama, which -- which page?

you looking at a $20,000 item?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I am looking at -- yeah,
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1

1678.

2

at Wailuku-Kahului.

3

reduced your software requirement from last --

4

this year.

5

MR. TAYLOR:

I am looking at Lahaina's.

I am looking

You know, you have really

The large item was this $20,000

6

purchase, which was for a one-time software

7

purchase of some specialized maintenance

8

software.

9

this year.

10

And that's why that doesn't recur in

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

11

Okay.

Thanks for that.

This increase in water for Kihei,

12

what -- what are you basing that on, please?

13

16-79.

14

actually spent In '05 to 56,000 for -- for this

15

upcoming year.

16

doing with all this water needs since we have

17

our own R1 water there.

18

MR. TAYLOR:

You know, we are going from about 25,000

I am just wondering what you're

I am going to ask our operations

19

superintendent, Mr. Jerry Morgan, to answer that

20

question.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

22

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Morgan.

If you can,

23

please identify yourself for the record.

24

Thanks.

25

MR. MORGAN:

Jerry Morgan, Wastewater Operations
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Program Superintendent.

2

That water also covers the pump

3

stations, and we found that, I believe, last

4

year, our water bill increased at the pump

5

stations.

6

and things like that where we don't have access

7

to reclaimed water.

8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

A lot of that is for beautification

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

the site, then?

So this is not actually at

This is all for off-site water

requirements?
MR. MORGAN:

Both on

at the Kihei facility and at

the pump stations, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do we use any of our Rl water at

the treatment plant?
MR. MORGAN:

Oh, yes.

Quite a bit of it.

All of our

16

process water, all of our irrigation water, is

17

primarily all R -- Rl water.

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do you know how much we get from

19

the neighbor, Elleair Golf Course, for those R1

20

waters?

21

MR. MORGAN:

22

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

23

MR. MORGAN:

24

25

How much we bill them for it?

No,

Yeah.

I don't.

I am not certain what

their
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Budget Director, would you know
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1

that?

Because I am assuming that would go back

2

into this Special Fund.

3

MR. GINOZA:

I -- I don't know.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you.

6

Ms. Johnson?

7

Mr. Carroll?

8

Let's see.

9

Mr. Pontanilla, in this area?

10

Ms. Tavares, In this area?

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

11

Thank you.

Maybe not only for the Kihei plant, we

12

should get some information regarding sale of

13

our own water, but for Lahaina.

14

golf course uses it; Kaanapali uses that, too.

15

I think the

And I note that most of the lncreases

16

are in electricity.

17

the possibility, especially the big plants, like

18

Kahului -- well, there's only three plants --

19

all of the plants that we spend over a million

20

dollars annually, to create our own generation

21

system?

22

MR. TAYLOR:

Have we ever think about

Member Pontanilla, we were approached a

23

number of years ago by a solar utility type of

24

group.

25

about this yesterday.

I know you talked to Water Department
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Kihei plant was -- was sort of

1

2

identified as a -- as a perfect spot.

It's

3

always sunny.

4

And they couldn't make the numbers work out.

5

mean, that's the bottom line, is the cost for

6

implementation, it was not -- it did not even

7

pencil out, even there, where it was -- was

8

almost perfect.

We have a constant power load.
I

So, I think, as a Division, we are not

9
10

experts in power generation, and our -- our real

11

focus is to -- is to treat wastewater, and

12

essentially, we are pretty limited to purchasing

13

power from the utility.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16
17
18

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Molina, questions in this area?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Chair.

Sort of dovetailing off of Member

19

Pontanilla's question, you had mentioned, you

20

know, seeking alternatives to reduce your

21

electricity.

22

treatment plants in FY 'OS, compared to FY '06,

23

they both went down in terms of electricity

24

costs, but then, like everybody else, there's

25

this big spike.

I notice for the Kihei and Wailuku
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Can you explain why those two, you know,

2

you had a cost reduction in FY '06, and then

3

now, FY '07 -- well,

4

FY '07 because of the cost for fuel -- fuel.

5

But in '06, there's a downturn whereas everybody

6

else, you know, went up.

7

MR. TAYLOR:

I guess I can only guess

Member Molina, we

we had initiated a

8

couple of projects to reduce our energy usage.

9

And I don't have the numbers in front of me, but

10

when we were here for our supplemental budget

11

request,

12

kilowatt hour usages at the plants.

13

had had happened is we put in some new

14

equipment,

15

reduced our kilowatt hour draw substantially,

16

think 30 percent at Kahului, and I am not sure

17

what the number was at Kihei.

18

I know we presented some of the
And what

some energy-saving equipment, which

And essentially, when power costs went

19

up, that kind of was a wash.

20

we -- we lowered our kilowatt hour usage, and

21

then our

22

amount.

23

then come up.

24
25

I

So essentially,

our rate charge went up by the same
So that's why you saw it go down and

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

All right.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
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Thank you.

2

Mr. -- Director Arakawa,

3

16-77, when you talked about the Lahaina

4

Wastewater Treatment Plant repairs and

5

maintenance, increase from 200,000 to 250,000,

6

you included injection well rehab in your

7

comments.

8

And I note that in Countywide, you also have a

9

$75,000 Countywide injection well rehab request.

I know on page

And so that -- that sent a bell off.

10

And so you have intermingled that, those

11

comments, into one.

12

So can you help me understand if there's

13

a distinction?

14

50,000 extra here, and you are asking for an

15

additional 75,000 in Countywide, which I

16

understand is for a greater study, but if you

17

can draw some -- give us some additional

18

information to draw a distinction.

19

MR. TAYLOR:

Because you are looking for

Mr. Chair, the $75,000 in the CIP budget

20

is to take sort of a wider either study or

21

engineering analysis of the problems with the

22

injection wells, the ongoing degradation of

23

them.

24
25

This 50,000 is for actual maintenance
and continued operation of the wells, cleaning
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1

the wells,

2

meters on the wells that wear out, things that

3

actually affect just the operation of the wells

4

that are there, versus more of a long-term, CIP

5

project about what are we going to do about the

6

wells.

7

CHAIR KANE:

replacing rusty pipe, painting, flow

Okay.

And I only make that note because

8

in your -- In your language in the description

9

justification, they're -- there's a -- there's a

10

component that states rehabilitation --

11

rehabilitation possibilities.

12

there's -- there's some level of intermingling

13

there.

14

MR. TAYLOR:

So again,

And -- and to be clear, Mr. Chair,

15

it's -- the 75,000 in the CIP is more to

16

investigate how we might come up with newer

17

procedures to do future maintenance rather than

18

this is the actual current maintenance we are

19

doing this year.

20
21

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

No, thank you for that.

Thank

you very much.

22

Members, any more questions and

23

including -- I don't think the Director needs to

24

go through the C Account.

25

again,

I think everything,

is self-explanatory, unless you have
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1

questions in this area, Members?

2

through a round,

3

you raise your hands.

4
5

I have gone

so I will just recognize you as

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just quickly, Chairman.

Can you tell us what, currently,

6

7

percentage of use of reclaimed water each

8

facility is accomplishing?

9

what was the improvement from the previous years

10
11

And can you tell us

for those that are not at 100 percent?
MR. TAYLOR:

Member Hokama,

I do not have that broken

12

down by plant.

13

'05, through currently, through this year, we

14

are reclaiming, we are reusing about 22 percent

15

of the wastewater that's -- of the wastewater

16

effluent Countywide.

17

I do know that in Fiscal Year

I know that in Kihei, it's about between

18

40 to 60 percent, depending on the time of the

19

year.

20

25 percent.

21

amount.

22

Molokai is also a small amount.

23

That's a rough number.

Lahaina, about

And then Kahului is a very small

Lanai, of course, is 100 percent.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Molokai is a small

And

I thought

24

you guys were using pretty much as much as you

25

were able to process on Molokai.

No?

That's

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

262

1

not accurate -- that's not an accurate

2

understanding on my part?

3

MR. TAYLOR:

No, Member Hokama.

On Molokai, the

4

system basically just irrigates some of the

5

frontage in the highway in front of the plant,

6

and some in-plant uses.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Would you know if we are

8

getting revenue from the 100 percent we process

9

on Lanai?

10

MR. TAYLOR:

No, it's just a

- they take the water,

11

and there's -- there's no money that changes

12

hands.

13
14
15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

When we say "they," we're talking

about Castle & Cooke?
MR. TAYLOR:

On Lanai, we don't treat the water to R1

16

or R2 quality.

17

system.

18

I know Aqua Engineers is -- is the group running

19

the plant, and I assume they are -- they are

20

paid by Castle & Cooke.

21

Basically, we have a pond

It is not of reclaimed water quality.

They basically take all the water.

They

22

don't pay us; we don't pay them.

23

another treatment plant that treats it to re-use

24

quality, and then it's reused.

25

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

They have

Has it helped the operations of
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1

the pond because we can get rid of the water on

2

a regular basis for the treatment so it's

3

lowered the maintenance requirements of -- of

4

our ponds on Lanai?

5

MR. MORGAN:

Yes, it has lowered the maintenance in

6

that we no longer have the infiltration ponds,

7

which is the -- was the old method of disposal.

8

We don't have to maintain those as well as

9

before because we don't use them.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Only on Lanai, we -- the program

11

was through treatment ponds; everything else is

12

through treatment plants?

13

MR. MORGAN:

14

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

15
16

17

Correct.
Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Any final questions in this area,

Members?

18

Okay, Members.

We have completed our

19

Wastewater Fund operations area.

20

Chair is going to recommend that we take a

21

dinner recess and that we come back at 6:30.

22

6:30, Members.

Any objections?

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Okay.

Members, the

Then we will pick up and finish

up with Solid Waste, and then the Chair intends
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1

to also have Parks start their discussion with

2

us.

3

evenlng.

4

(Gavel.)

So, Members, prepare yourselves for the
Okay?

5

RECESS:

4:46 p.m.

6

RECONVENE:

6:33 p.m.

7

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

We are in recess until 6:30.

Okay.

Members, we are

8

reconvened.

9

Department of Public Works.

10

We are going to finish up with the
We are going to be

starting with our Solid waste Fund.
For your information, let me direct your

11

12

attention to 16-85 of your Details.

13

And in your Program Budget,

14

please, to -- sorry,

15

18-40 of your Program.

16

Excuse me.

if I can direct you,

I had it -- 18-40.

Yes,

For the record, we have all Members of

17

the Committee present for this evening's

18

sesslon.

19

Thank you very much, Members.
Why don't we go ahead and continue.

20

Director Arakawa, Public Works,

21

direct us through the programs, starting with

22

Administration.

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

if you can

I would like to

24

start from page 16-88, in Solid Waste

25

Administration.

And again, you know,

I will
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1

just point out the highlights for the changes in

2

the budget.

3

The first item I would like to go over

4

is under Solid Waste admin,

subobject code 6037,

5

under office supplies, there is an increase that

6

we are proposing from $6,557 up to $30,000.

7

this is actually being requested because this

8

has been really underbudgeted in -- in past

9

years, and actually our staff has also increased

10

in the office admin area.

11

office supply increase is warranted.

12
13

So we feel this

Moving -- movlng a little further down
the page, under .

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

start,

16

a 500 to 10,000, under miscellaneous.

17
18

And

MR. ARAKAWA:

Excuse me, Director.

If you can just

just real quick on the above one, there's

Miscellaneous supplies.

Okay.

That's

an lncrease of $500 to $10,000.

19

Mr. Chair,

I am going to have to get

20

back to you on that one,

21

the top of my head.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.
Okay.

I am not sure right off

Let's proceed.
A little further down the page,

24

under subobject 6132, Professional Services, we

25

are requesting an additional $400,000.
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1

I -- I want to mention that this money is

2

intended to do an update of our Integrated Solid

3

Waste Management Plan.

4

standpoint and the Department standpoint, this

5

is long overdue.

6

Waste Management Plan was done in 1994, and the

7

Department of Health is mandating that we update

8

this plan.

9

consultant and get this process started.

10

And from the Divisional

The last update of these Solid

So this money is basically to hire a

Under subobject 6235,

rentals, we are

11

requesting $100,000 in Fiscal Year '07.

12

the office rent for One Main Plaza, the One Main

13

Plaza offices that Solid Waste Division

14

currently occupies.

15

Operations Budget, that's pretty much the

16

highlights.

17

This is

And as far as the

I also want to mention, as far as

18

equipment, we are requesting a vehicle for the

19

Division Chief, and that's basically a

20

replacement, and the amount there is $25,000.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

admin?

23

think we left off with Mr. Mateo.

24
25

Members, questions in operations or
I will start now with Mr. Hokama.

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.
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Maybe what would help me,

since we --

2

we've had a lot of rental requests, Mr. Ginoza,

3

you know how much in total we are being asked

4

for rent at One Main Plaza?

5
6

MR. GINOZA:

I believe -- excuse me -

responded,

if I could just review my notes.

7

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

I believe I

Thank you.

While we are looking for that, Director

Arakawa, is it your intent to get back with us

10

this evening or before you leave this evening on

11

that additional $10,000 item above the

12

miscellaneous or office supplies, or are you

13

going to get back to us at some later point?

14

MR. TAKAMINE:

Council Chair, this is Tracy Takamine.

15

I think that $10,000 was just when we

16

when we did the flat-line budget, we tried to

17

adjust the numbers.

18

I think it was just increased to accommodate

19

the -- somehow we balanced it somehow.

20

And then when we increased,

And I don't want to make excuses, but

21

I -- I think it is not tied to anything in

22

particular.

23

conjunction with the office supplies, we are

24

looking at the total of $40,000 were used in my

25

office.

It's -- it's,

I think,

in

But I cannot give you a specific item
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of what we are gOlng to spend it on.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And the only reason, Members, we

3

have the question is because from -- from actual

4

expenditure of approximately $5,500 in '05,

5

budgeted seven grand in '06, we are up to

6

40,000.

7

give us some specific response to their request.

8

9

MR. TAKAMINE:

So we think it's significant that they

We do have in this, between the two,

as Mr. Arakawa said, we have -- my staff has

10

increased just this year alone by -- we picked

11

up the cashier from the Finance Department, and

12

I am requesting another cashier, and two

13

abandoned vehicle coordinator positions, an

14

engineer, and -- those bodies.

15

So we are currently trying to find space

16

and -- for the two abandoned vehicle

17

coordinators, which will eventually,

18

end up being down in landfill area someplace.

19

We are looking at possible supplies and other

20

items to accommodate all these bodies.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

Okay.

I believe,

Thank you.

Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond?

23

MR. GINOZA:

Yes,

I am, Mr. Chair.

24

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

25

MR. GINOZA:

The total One Main Plaza lease, as I
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responded, was 736,828.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

3

MR. GINOZA:

Yes, 736,828.

4

CHAIR KANE:

That's for OMP, yeah, Mr . . . .

5

MR. GINOZA:

That's correct.

6

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

7
8

9
10
11

Seven thirty-six, Mr. Ginoza?

Thank you.

Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

I am -- I am done with Administration, Chairman.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

12

Ms. Johnson?

13

Ms. Anderson?

14

Mr. Carroll?

15

Ms. Tavares?

16

Thank you, Chairman.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Could you say again what

17

the 400,000 was to update the Solid Waste

18

integration plan?

19
20

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, it is to update the Integrated

Solid Waste Management Plan.

21

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Is that what it is?

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Maybe you could explain the Integrated
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1

Solid Waste Management Plan that need to be

2

update, you know, give us some information,

3

what -- what that is.

4

MR. ARAKAWA:

The plan is basically a blueprint for

5

how the Solid Waste Division should be

6

proceeding in its activities over the next

7

several years.

8

their future,

9

range of areas, such as collections and fees;

Basically, it is a blueprint for
and it's going to cover a wide

10

for instance, the issues of automated

11

collection, whether we should be charging

12

universal verse pay-as-you-throw, how involved

13

should we be getting into waste-to-energy or

14

other types of energy-saving initiatives?

15

the next steps will be as far as automated, what

16

should we do as far as recycling, whether we

17

should further expand our redemption centers or

18

go to curbside or both, or

19

basically the plan, and we want to do a plan,

20

bring it up to the Council, and receive,

21

basically, a blessing from the Council, and then

22

proceed on that basis.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

What

but anyway, that's

Thank you.

And -- and what is interesting in
regards to that, you know, your comment on
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1

universal plan, it would give us an idea

2

because, you know,

3

from the public in regards to going universal

4

pickup for Maui County.

5

help,

6

So thank you for that information.

7

And if that's going to

I think it will answer a lot of questions.

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Molina.
Mr. Mateo.

8
9

I -- I have received comments

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

10

Chairman, thank you.

Mr. Director,

real briefly,

following up

11

on Mr. Pontanilla's question to you, this

12

particular plan is spurred by Department of

13

Health's request that it be done?

14
15
16
17
18

MR. ARAKAWA:

It is a requirement of the Department

of Health that we do an update of the plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Is there a -- a requirement for

a timetable that it get done?
MR. ARAKAWA:

I -- I don't know right offhand.

I

19

know the last plan was done in 1994, and in

20

correspondences with Department of Health, they

21

have mentioned that an update of this plan

22

should be done, but I -- I don't know the exact

23

time frame for the -- when it should have been

24

updated.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Thank you.
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I'm done.

CHAIR KANE:

3

Thank you.

Thank you.
Director, perhaps you can give us just a

4

little bit more information on this update.

5

First,

6

stated it is a requirement from the State

7

Department of Health.

8

reached any sort of thresholds that triggered

9

this requirement,

is it a -- is it a mandate?

Because you

Is it because we have

or -- or is it something at

10

the State level through HRS that requires us to

11

do something every ten years?

12

understand or give us a better idea of why this

13

is being required of us?

14

MR. ARAKAWA:

Can you help us

I -- I don't know if it's a statutory

15

requirement.

I know DOH has mentioned it in

16

their

17

needs to be done.

their correspondences with us, that it

18

I know the other counties also have this

19

Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan in place,

20

and they are required to update it on a periodic

21

basis.

22

it is overdue that we update this plan.

23

CHAIR KANE:

And they have mentioned to us that it --

So specifically to the part of my

24

question where were there any particular

25

triggers that -- that created this required
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Not to my knowledge.
Okay.

Staff, if you can

and just for

4

the Members' general understanding,

5

is a matter that can probably be forwarded.

I think this

6

Mr. Pontanilla, if -- if you don't mind,

7

I think this would be something that we can have

8

a better understanding of, and if we can have

9

the matter sent through County Communication and

10

the Council Chair to

11

that any problem for you?

12
13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

to the Committee.

Is

It's not a problem in

regards to your request.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

Great, thank you.
Yeah.

Thank you.
Members, any further questions?

And I

18

will just recognize you if you have a particular

19

question.

20
21

We have gone through the round.

Seeing none, Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA:

I would like to move on to -- excuse

22

me -- page 16-94.

This is our landfill disposal

23

program, and I can go over some of the

24

highlights of the changes in the Operations

25

Budget there.
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Under the Central Landfill, subobject

2

6022, gasoline, diesel, oil, here we are

3

requesting an increase from 211,000 to $274,300.

4

It's basically a 30 percent increase.

5

Under repairs and maintenance supplies,

6

there is an increase request from $100,000 to

7

$140,000.

8

equipment at the Central Landfill.

9

This is basically for additional

And going a little further down the

10

page, under services, subobject 6122, freight

11

and hauling, there's a proposed increase from

12

264,000 to 346,000.

13

hauling from the Olowalu transfer station to the

14

Central Landfill.

15

with a -- a vendor, private vendor.

16

This is to handle the

It is a contract that we have

And the next two,

janitorial serVlces

17

and maintenance contracts, we are requesting

18

increases from 32,535 to 36,000, and also 96,560

19

to 106,000.

20

Lima 0 Maui to do janitorial services at the

21

landfill, and litter -- and litter control.

22

These are both contracts with Ka

And under Other Services, there's an

23

increase from $1,650,000 to $1,910,000.

24

basically to fund the EKO compost contract,

25

where,

This is

in this case, sewage sludge and green
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waste are used to make compost.

2

Under 6132, Professional Services, there
a request for $200,000, and that's broken

3

lS

4

down into $150,000, which is to do a Central

5

Maui Landfill master plan.

6

actually a mandate from DOH as a result of

7

permit requirements for Central Maui Landfill.

8

And also, $50,000 is to hire a trainer.

9

also required by DOH as part of that same

10

And this plan is

This is

permit.

11

And under subobject 6135, repairs and

12

maintenance, maintenance of buildings, we are

13

requesting an increase from 75,000 to 135,000.

14

This is basically some repairs and maintenance

15

of the landfill.

16

there.

We have additional structures

The entrance facility is now open.

17

MR. TAKAMINE:

Council Chair, also

18

Takamine

19

actually, the entrance facility,

20

have ever been out there,

21

or three structures, with a generator room,

22

operations building; whereas,

23

just had a little -- I think it was about a

24

10-by-20-foot -- square foot with a scale

25

attendant, and everybody else was crammed In

this is Tracy

in addition to that, the -now, if you

is basically about two

in the past, we
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there.

2

So the facility itself has increased in

3

footprint size.

4

maintenance and groundskeeping.

5
6

7
8

9

MR. ARAKAWA:

Okay.

It requires additional

Let me just move on, then.

Under electricity,

6120, we are

requesting an increase from $7,000 to $14,000.
On the next page,

16-95, subobject code

6221, these are under Miscellaneous Other Costs.

10

The increased request is from $750,000 to

11

$1,400,000.

12

pay for cover material at the landfill.

13

This is basically -

basically to

And on the next page, 16-96, under

14

operations for Molokai,

15

subobject code 6112, contractual service, we are

16

requesting an increase from 130,000 to 630,000.

17

And that increase is due to the fact that we

18

have terminated our -- a contract with a

19

previous vendor to remove the scrap metal from

20

the landfill.

21

if you would look under

Those moneys were from Fiscal Year '05,

22

and so those moneys have lapsed.

23

we have to do another bid, go out to bid again,

24

for another vendor to do that processing of the

25

scrap metal.

So basically,
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Under 6139, repairs and maintenance, we

1

2

are requesting $300,000.

3

monitoring that we have to do, monitoring and

4

enhancement that needs to do -- that we need to

5

do at the Ohiapilo Wetlands project on Molokai.

6

And the last thing I want to mention on

7

the next page, 16-97, under Miscellaneous Other

8

Costs, is an increase from $500 to 90,500.

9

That's for cover material at the Lanai Landfill.

10

These are basically

I also want to mention, it just got

11

switched.

12

16-97, under Other Services,

13

$90,000 in Fiscal Year '06, and it shows zero In

14

'07, so that was basically changed to

15

Miscellaneous Other Costs.

16
17

CHAIR KANE:

20
21
22
23
24
25

Okay.

Exhale.

6129, we had

Members, we got some --

some big ones.

18
19

If you look at the subobject code on

I will start with Ms. Johnson.
Ms. Johnson, anything in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I really

I don't have

any .
CHAIR KANE:

Use your microphone?

I am sorry.

Okay.

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

On 16-94, the additional
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1

$100,000, to contract for hauling from Olowalu

2

to the Central Landfill, is -- is

3

reason for the increase of $100,000?

4

actually, it's not quite 100,000.

5

is this landfill being used more, or what?

6

MR. TAKAMINE:

is there a
Or

But I mean,

This is just an estimate that we have

7

put in, with discussions with the current hauler

8

on just an increase in cost to -- that's going

9

to occur due to inflation and gas prlces and so

10
11
12

forth.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Olowalu

Who -- who uses that

what do you call it?

13

MR. TAKAMINE:

Transfer station.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

MR. TAKAMINE:

Transfer station.

User, meaning the public?
Yeah.

It's open to the general public.

I

18

I would assume that everyone in Lahaina -- we

19

have also a redemption center there.

20

recycle center there.

21

residents of Lahaina and Napili area.

22
23

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

We have a

So the people or the

And is there any green waste

there, too?
MR. TAKAMINE:

Yes, we have one bin there that is

dedicated to green waste.

And it's -- it's open

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Ine.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

279

1

only to residential or supposedly residential

2

customers, but we do have commercial vendors

3

trying to get In there, disguising their

4

vehicles, and we try to catch them.

5

they do that, they disrupt our service because

6

it's a limited number of bins there.

7

incidences where,

8

filled to capacity within an hour, and it shut

9

down the entire green waste operation for

10

residents because now we got to haul that

11

that bin all the way to Central Maui Landfill.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But when

And we had

like, the green waste would be

So I mean, are you seeing an

13

increased use of this?

14

doesn't look like there's that much of an

15

increase over the last three years.

16

MR. TAKAMINE:

Yeah,

I mean, do you

it

So

I can't answer that.

I don't

17

know.

18

percentage increase in the last three years.

19

can get back with you on that.

I don't know the numbers in terms of the
I

20

But again, the main reason we put that

21

increase is talking with the current operator,

22

he has told us that they are going to be seeing

23

a drastic increase in operating costs.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Right.

I will yield.

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.
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Mr. Carroll.

2

Ms. Tavares.

3

Mr. Pontani1la.

4

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

5

Thank you, Chair.

Have we ever or has the Department ever

6

thought about or think about utilizing our

7

personnel to haul materials from Olowalu to the

8

landfill area in Central Maui rather than

9

contracting this thing out or -- and what would

10
11

it take to do that?
MR. TAKAMINE:

We haven't -- that -- that I know of,

12

we haven't looked at the County personnel doing

13

that work.

14

Central Maui Landfill, and as you know, we just

15

came into the supplemental budget requesting at

16

least almost a 50 percent increase in my staff

17

there.

18

Currently, that facility falls under

I think at this point in time, we are

19

not looking at assuming those duties because it

20

would be very -- it would be a very labor

21

intensive and trying to coordinate, because we

22

need to -- it's actually staffed out there.

23

They have an individual that's out there

24

full-time.

25

And one of the reasons why it's -- I
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1

don't know if you have ever been out there, but

2

when you look at a bin, you can't take that much

3

quantity in there, because when people throw it

4

in, unless it's thrown in neatly and in a

5

uniform manner, you know, the bins get filled up

6

fast.

7

backhoe.

8

pushes things in, compacts it down.

9

They have an operator out there with a
And then he operates the backhoe,

If we were to assume those duties,

I

10

think we would be looking at needing a backhoe

11

or some kind of hydraulic compacting equipment

12

to get more capacity.

13

trucks and additional personnel.

14

We would have to get more

So maybe in the future,

if our staffing

15

increases, and we get a better hold of operating

16

the Central Maui Landfill, but right now,

17

wouldn't commit trying -- trying to staff that

18

site right -- and trying to maintain it as a

19

County-operated facility.

20

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

I

As we go into more

21

automation, probably, you know, we are looking

22

at -- not we are -- but the possibility of

23

redirecting some manpower into that direction

24

and, you know, doing that work ourselves.

25

know we are not fully automated yet, but at that
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1

time,

2

look at that as a means of utilizing our

3

personnel In doing some of the work that we do.

4

if the Department can consider that or

MR. TAKAMINE:

To answer that,

I would love to do

5

that.

6

as

7

into negotiations with the UPW, and for each

8

phase of automation, we have a separate

9

agreement.

And one of the big issues in those

10

agreements

and that was before my time, but

11

they were all

12

is that no -- no collection system worker, who

13

does the pickups, will be moved or displaced out

14

of the collection section.

15

So in other words,

I think it will take some effort because
as it is now, as we automate, we have gone

it's all in all three of them,

I can't even take

16

this individual and put him in my landfill and

17

operate still in the same Division.

18

keep him,

19

in the collection section.

20

I guess, with work,

And basically,

I have to

some kind of work

I believe it is because

21

they have the uku pau system, which allows them

22

to go home after they finish their

23

their picks or garbage pickups.

24
25

assuming

So I think what we are looking at in
terms of those -- that manpower is to eventually
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1

go to curbside recycling, and utilize them to do

2

green waste, or recycling of bottles, cans, and

3

in that capacity.

4

with the UPW involved.

5

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

6

7

So it's a little complicated

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

8

Mr. Mateo.

9

Okay.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Hokama.
Currently, you have no water, I

11

guess, County water at the Central Maui

12

Landfill, since under utilities, you have

13

everything but water?

14

MR. TAKAMINE:

That is correct.

We -- we have a --

15

it's a 150,000-gallon tank that we need to get

16

filled up.

17

our hand wash -- it's non-potable water for

18

toilets and hand washing, and also the main fire

19

prevention for the facility.

20

It's -- that that supplies water for

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

You know, we heard from

21

testimony on a previous date from someone from,

22

I believe, South Maui regarding the compost, and

23

he had asked,

24

the -- in the rates because he felt he could be

25

good competition and provide the green waste,

I believe, to have some equity in
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another green waste option.

2

Has he approached your Division and

3

seen -- and have you reviewed whether or not you

4

can do -- it could be done better than what we

5

have with EKO?

6

MR. TAKAMINE:

Yes, Councilman Hokama, that is,

I

7

believe, Gunter,

8

has approached us.

9

him before the budget process, and I guess -- I

10

guess his issue is that the cost for someone to

11

dispose of green waste at EKO is a lot cheaper

12

than -- than what he can do, and basically it's

13

taking away business.

14

in fact,

15

I believe his name was, and he
We did have a meeting with

EKO does have a lot of

they have more than enough compost.
From my side, we did propose a budget

16

increase for the EKO composting, but it did not

17

go through the Administration.

18

made there.

So no changes

19

And -- but we have put in our grants

20

funding for this year $75,000 for a grant to

21

have Mr. Gunter process green waste from local

22

residents, on the South Maui side,

23

looking at this as a pilot project.

24

estimating about 600 vehicles a year -- 600

25

vehicles a month.

and we are
And we are

Looking like a two-year
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1

demonstration project, so we can get numbers to

2

find out -- this will help us when we get to the

3

point where we are going to do curbside

4

recycling to see what kind of volumes of green

5

waste is coming out of South Maui.

6

proposing to, you know, at least

7

to -- try to give him about $75,000 to try to do

8

this demonstration project.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So we are
- at least try

Thank you for that information.

I find that helpful.
My other question, gentlemen, regarding

11

12

the Lanai Landfill,

13

we have the settlement amount, and of course

14

maybe two Sundays ago, Maui News wrote about

15

Central Maui Landfill and the Lanai Landfill.

16

Is there anything outstanding that needs to be

17

added to the '07 request for the Lanai Landfill

18

to take care of any of those concerns that the

19

media brought up?

20

MR. TAKAMINE:

I know this year's budget,

In the -- In the '06 Budget, there was

21

a budgeted $81,000 for

- for potential fines --

22

well, actually, it was fines that's stipulated

23

in the settlement agreement, which actually

24

were, because we -- we complied, it's actually

25

half of that,

so $41,000.
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I am currently in the process of -- and

1

2

that's for supplemental environmental project.

3

We are currently in the process of

4

coordinating with DOH to develop that project

5

and try to encumber the funds before the end of

6

the Fiscal Year, so I don't lose it.

7

that,

8

some reason fail to encumber that money, then I

9

may need more funds, but we don't anticipate

10

I do not need any more funds.

If I do
If I for

losing that money at this time.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

Mr. Takamine.

13

area.

14

That's -- that's good news,
I appreciate your efforts in this

In general, what is the cost per ton or

15

how are we being assessed for the cover

16

material, please?

17

of cover material, whether it be very large

18

granulated kind of dirt, or does it need to be a

19

certain grade type of cover material, and can

20

you kind of share some comment, please?

21

MR. TAKAMINE:

And does it matter what kind

I don't know offhand what the cost per

22

ton is.

Right now -- and it depends on where

23

you get it from,

24

the bidder gets the material from.

25

Central Maui, we have a very good working

too, and what -- where -- where
For example,
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1

relationship with Ameron, which is right next

2

door.

3

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

4

MR. TAKAMINE:

5

minimal.

They don't even have to get on the

6

highway.

They come through our back gate and

7

deliver the material.

8
9
10
11

That's right.

So their cost for transportation is

For Molokai, we have an off-site
contractor.
doing it.

In Hana, we actually have Highways
So the costs vary.

In terms of the type of material, it has

12

to be approved by Department of Health.

13

to tell them what type of material we are using.

14

We have

But it's basically dirt, or gravel, we

15

can use dirt or gravel, crushed rock.

16

have -- we are using,

17

the compost material from EKO that is for some

18

reason not able to be sold and is excess, we are

19

getting that basically free whenever we can.

20

All we do -- we have to do is haul it.

21

in fact,

We

compost material,

The cost right now that you saw there,

22

Mr. Arakawa mentioned, that's going up so

23

drastically is because Ameron has indicated to

24

us that their cost is going to go up in the

25

upcomlng Fiscal Year,

so we are just projecting
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a higher bid cost.
In addition, we are, with the new

2

3

landfill, part of the settlement agreement we

4

had, and the violations, was we weren't covering

5

material -- I mean, we were not covering

6

effectively.
It requires

7

on landfills, you need to

8

cover six inches every

9

day.

10

at the end of every

That's a lot of material on daily cover.
When you go intermediate cover,

I

11

believe it's a foot.

12

failing to do it.

13

inch of cover on, or we weren't getting any

14

cover on.

15

And that's where we were

We weren't getting that six

So now we are owe we are complying with

16

the permit.

17

cover.

18

two -- two sets of pictures.

19

photographs in the morning of the landfill, and

20

we take -- three, actually

21

noon, and at

22

day that are on file for immediate inspection

23

with the Department of Health to validate that

24

we have covered every day.

25

We are putting on that six inch of

In fact, we are required now to take
We take

photographs at

photographs at the end of the

So we are taking it very seriously now.
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1

That prevents litter from escaplng, prevents

2

reduces vector, it helps on vector control.

3

we are needing a lot more material just to make

4

sure that we do the job correctly.

5

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you for that, Mr. Takamine.

Last question in this area for me,

6

7

please.

8

first maybe master plan for the Central Maui

9

Landfill with the various phases?

Currently, we -- we don't even have the

We -- we have

10

never done one of those from a conceptual --

11

from the beginning of the site in Phase I?

12

MR. TAKAMINE:

I would have to say no.

I haven't

13

seen one.

14

requirement

15

permit, the current permit that we just

16

received, that we will complete one within

17

believe they gave us a year to complete it.

18

So

And in fact, that's -- it's a
actually,

it's written in our

I

And basically, this master plan lS only

19

for Central Maui.

20

the roadmap on how we are going to phase in each

21

phase because it seems like we -- we developed

22

Phase I and II without really thinking of where

23

Phase IV is going to go and how you are going to

24

access Phase IV.

25

And

and it will give us

So right now, we got some issues, and I
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1

have got to meet with Ameron for

2

next week.

3

the landfill, they are up against

4

quarry is coming right up against the current

5

access road.

6

through.

7

impact my ability to get to Phase I and II to do

8

maintenance because now I won't have access.

9

That will impact EKO's operation because, you

10

probably

The current access road,

if you know
the -- the

They want to continue right on

That's impact

know, on Phase I

that's going to

behind Phase I and II.

11

As Phase IV gets higher, the questions

12

are how do you access Phase V, which is on the

13

other side.

14

So this master plan,

should

should

15

look at the Central Maui facility and tell me

16

for the next 30 years how it's going to phase,

17

where the roads are going to be, where -

18

the green waste compost is going to be.

19

should we move Phase IV to Phase V?

20

have that right now.

21

do one -- one project, and then

22

you know it, it's impacting the second project.

23

where
When

We don't

It's like a piecemeal.

So this is, again,

We

- then before

a requirement from

24

Department of Health, and I -- I

25

think we need it.

frankly,

I

If I don't have that, we run
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into crisis.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I would agree with you.

I am

3

just surprised we had no original conceptual

4

plan of what we wanted at the beginning and, you

5

know, what would be the maximum build-out, when

6

we would have to look at alternative -- either

7

alternative sites or alternative ways of dealing

8

with

9

going

10

MR. TAKAMINE:

with refuse and garbage.

I want to clarify.

And I am

I -- I would

11

assume they had conceptual plans, but not to the

12

details that this master plan will provide.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

And this 200,000 that

14

presently you believe is sufficient, or is this

15

just an initial request?

16

MR. TAKAMINE:

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

MR. TAKAMINE:

19
20

This is an educated guess.
Your best guess estimate?

Best guess we can -- we can come up

with.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Do you have a deadline to submit

21

this master plan to the Department -- State

22

Department of Health, Mr. Takamine?

23

MR. TAKAMINE:

There is a deadline, and I -- I

I

24

think it's not more than a year I need to get it

25

to them.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama, if you can just cite the

5

reference point or the dollar amount that you

6

were talking about,

7

discussion, please.

8
9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

In relation to the

Thank you.

The department of

Health master plan for Central Maui Landfill I

10

believe is on page 16-94, Mr. Chairman, under

11

subaccount 6132, $200,000.

12

CHAIR KANE:

13
14

Thank you very much.
Any further questions, Members, in this

area?
Just a note, Members,

15

if you recall last

16

year,

17

proposal for Interfund Transfer to the Solid

18

Waste Fund was approximately 4.6 million.

19

Council reduced that, primarily with the

20

Equipment bond, by about 1.9 million.

21

approved the budget for the current Fiscal Year

22

to $2.695 million.

23

In Fiscal Year 2006 discussions, the

And then,

The

So we

of course, you folks recall

24

recently, we made about 100,000 -- the 99,000

25

adjustment.

So we are currently at 2.7 subsidy
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to the account.

2

The proposal this year, Members, is

3

$6.4 million.

4

have been discussing, we are kind of going in

5

the wrong direction.

6

some requirements that we are trying to comply

7

with that's creating our issues.

8

the responses from the Division Chief on the

9

questions.

10

Okay.

So we are -- from what we

And as we can see, we have

So, appreciate

Members, we are moving forward.

11

Members, the Schedule C for Landfill Disposal

12

Program items on 16-98, unless you have specific

13

questions, are self-explanatory, Members, unless

14

you need clarification on any of the requests

15

for equipment.

16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

CHAIR KANE:

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

One question, please, Chairman.

Sure, Mr. Hokama.
Your -- your expansion for

19

generation with lights, Mr. Takamine, are you

20

planning to do evening/night -- night work at

21

the landfill?

22

the need for this generations with lights.

23

MR. TAKAMINE:

Or maybe you could explain to us

Yes, those -- that's a request for two

24

generator lights that is similar to what you see

25

at a construction site.

They are portable light
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1

sets with the four light fixtures,

2

diesel generator.

run on a

Basically, when we operate the

3

4

landfill -- see,

in the winner months, Monday,

5

Wednesday, Fridays, we operate from 6:00 to

6

4:00.

7

covering the landfill, it's probably seven

8

o'clock at night.

9

with just basically the headlights of the

10

dozers, and they cannot see the landfill.

11

both dangerous, because they working on slopes,

12

and they can't really see the -- the terrain or

13

the working face of the landfill.

By the time my people are finished

14

They are working in the dark

It's

So basically this is to put lights out

15

there on the landfill after hours, after the

16

public's hours, to

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

to complete their work.

And then my last question, this

18

wood grinder for Molokai,

19

all types of wood material,

20

construction material?

21

MR. TAKAMINE:

$200,000, is it for
including

That is -- that is mainly for -- I

22

don't know if they -- they take construction

23

wood material, but it's -- it's for green waste

24

material disposal on Molokai.

25

I actually asked for a $500,000.
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1

$200,000 that I got will get me a wood grinder,

2

but I don't know if it's going to be sufficient

3

Slze.

4

grinder that

5

undersized, and it's breaking down, and it

6

gets -- when you get those -- what do you call

7

those -- palm fronds,

Right now, the problem with the wood

8

9

that we have out there is

leaves, it gets clogged.

So with $200,000,

I will get a new one,

but I -- I don't know what size I can get.

I

10

predict that it's -- it's still going to be

11

insufficient in size.

12

grind it, we end up landfilling the larger green

13

waste material.

14
15
16

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And when we -- we can't

What do you do with the grinder

material currently, please?
MR. TAKAMINE:

On Molokai,

it's just given away.

17

It's open to the public.

18

and drive away with it.

19

They -- they come up

So when it's down, we get a lot of

20

complaints from the local residents that -- that

21

they can't pick up any mulch.

22

compost it.

23

give it away.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

Yeah, we don't

It just becomes mulch,

Okay.

and we just

Thank you very much for

that.
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1

2

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

3

Just to follow up on that comment

4

regarding the generator lights, part of your

5

comments said when the public gets off the

6

landfill.

7

the public out of the landfill completely with

8

the whole MRF and that whole effort so that we

9

won't have the public in the landfill area at

At what point will we be rerouting

10

all?

11

were working towards, to have them directed

12

redirected outside of the landfill, and then

13

having the equipment utilized outside, on the

14

perimeter, then that stuff being transferred

15

into the landfill without the public's access?

16

Is that -- wasn't that something that we

MR. TAKAMINE:

I guess I am not familiar with what

17

was discussed In the prevlous years, but my

18

understanding of the MRF will not eliminate

19

any -- I mean, will not eliminate the use of the

20

landfill.

21

recycle facility that specifically handles

22

particular -- particular recycle materials, such

23

as cans, bottles, cardboard, newspaper.

24

comes to the MRF, basically, might be co-mingled

25

or it might be already separated.

The -- the MRF will be more of a

So what

But the
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1

landfill point of disposal for residents will

2

always be open.

3

4

CHAIR KANE:

landfill as they currently do?

5
6

And they will drive right onto the

Director -- you have comments, Director?
MR. TAKAMINE:

To

to the entrance facility.

7

we don't have anybody going to the landfill

8

itself, right now.

9

you got to clarify.

10

CHAIR KANE:

We

I guess maybe that's what

Yeah, that's what I -- and forgive me,

11

used the word MRF, and I apologize.

12

whole idea of redirecting the public out of the

13

landfill to the perimeter and then having them

14

dispose of their trash outside, on the

15

perimeter, and then you folks working with

16

getting that stuff onto the landfill for -- for

17

cover.

18

MR. TAKAMINE:

That's correct.

In fact,

But the

that's how

19

it's operating right now.

20

the landfill other than commercial haulers and

21

the large -- large residential trucks.

22

Everything is stopped at the entrance facility

23

disposal bins.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

I

Nobody is allowed on

And so even with that, we are having our

heavy equipment operators operating until the
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dark hours?
MR. TAKAMINE:

That

lS

correct.

Once we stop

3

accepting waste at four o'clock, we still

4

have -- we still have two to three hours of work

5

that they do to finish off the covering of the

6

working face and

7

buttoned up.

8
9

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Also -- okay.

10

- and getting everything

Thank you for the clarification.
Okay.

I am good.

Any -- any final questions on the

11

equipment area, Members, before we move on to

12

collections?

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one quick last one.

Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
Talking about landfill, let's say

16

at the end of the day, it's a very windy day,

17

you need to water down the cover material?

18
19

MR. TAKAMINE:

That is correct.

In fact,

I think I

got a water truck.

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

21

MR. TAKAMINE:

I see a 4,000-gallon water wagon.

We need to water down during the

22

entire day as the operation

23

we do not, all that -- all that litter, all the

24

dirt just flies off the landfill and -- and goes

25

off-site.

lS

progressing.

So it's a continuous process for
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watering.

So it's definitely a requirement.

2

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Any final questions, Members?

Okay.

I

4

want to comment that our Budget Director pretty

5

much followed what we did last year, Members, on

6

transferring the equipment to Equipment bond,

7

and still we have a $6.4 million subsidy.
Mr. Ginoza.

8

9

MR. GINOZA:

Mr. Chairman, I

just want to make

10

clarification that I am using the term Equipment

11

bond, but it is the regular bond.

12
13

CHAIR KANE:

Members, we are moving into

collections.
Mr.

14
15

Okay.

MR. ARAKAWA:

- excuse me, Director Arakawa.

Mr. Chair,

just a correction, on the

16

I was reminded by Mr. Takamine that there was a

17

question earlier about the update on the

18

Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan, and it

19

is required every five years.

20

to mention that for the Committee's information.

21
22
23

So I

just wanted

Move to page 16-102, under residential
collection.
CHAIR KANE:

I am sorry.

So that's a statutory

24

requirement that you are citing, the five-year

25

requirement?
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Yes.

State law requires that.

And the last time it was done was 1994?
Yes.
Thank you.

Okay.

Let's move on.

16-102, residential collections.

I can

just go over the highlights here.

7

Just basically, gas, diesel, fuel

8

increases for the various areas.

9

repairs to that Parks building in the Wailuku

10

baseyard.

11

the specific line items.

12

And also

Let me just go over a few -- a few of

For Wailuku Refuse, under subobject

13

6022, is the gasoline and diesel increase from

14

95,000 to 123,500.

15

It's a 30 percent lncrease.

Under subobject 6135, repairs and

16

maintenance to buildings, we are asking for

17

125,000, and this is to repair the structure

18

that Parks Department has occupied in the

19

Wailuku baseyard for quite some time, and they

20

will be moving out of that baseyard.

21

Waste will be occupying that structure.

22

So Solid

Under -- on that same page, in the

23

bottom, collections, Makawao Refuse, again,

24

gasoline and diesel increase from 35,000 to

25

55,900.
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And finally,

on page 16-103, for

2

Lahaina, again, gasoline and diesel increases

3

from $7,000 to 35,100.

4

that the $7,000 appropriated is basically going

5

to be under funding the program.

6

expecting to use about $27,000 in fuel for '06,

7

and hence the increase, the proposed increase to

8

35,100.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11

We are

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson, you are up first in this

area.

12

Mr. Carroll.

13

Ms. Tavares.

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17

And I want to mention

No.

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you, Chair.

This is not in regards to the items on

18

the Details but rather in the expansion that

19

wasn't included earlier.

20

two supervisors,

21

pickups, are housed at one location.

22

of the problem, having two supervisors there,

23

that there's no backup in regards to -- well,

24

supporting the two supervisors, and hence a lot

25

of customer complaints.

I understand that the

in regards to the residential
And part
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1

So, what is being requested of the

2

Department is a clerk to support those two

3

supervisors, number one, to eliminate customer

4

complaints, and number two is to support the two

5

supervisors at that location.

And Milton'

6

Arakawa can explain, you know,

furthermore on

7

the -- on the request for the need.

8

MR. ARAKAWA:

9

Thank you, Member Pontani11a.
We do have the Wailuku Refuse supervisor

10

and the overall collection supervisor housed at

11

the Wailuku baseyard.

12

you brought it up in the sense that we hope to

13

be moving into the structure that's occupied by

14

Parks.

15

And actually,

I am glad

But one of the issues that we have been

16

facing is basically when people have missed

17

pickups, they call down to the Wailuku baseyard,

18

and many times the supervisors are actually out

19

in the field basically picking up municipal

20

trash,

and so there's no one there to answer the

21

phone.

So they oftentimes get messages, and if

22

they cannot talk to a live person, they end up

23

calling -- basically, they call our office; they

24

don't get satisfaction there, they will call the

25

Mayor's office, and they'll probably end up
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calling the Council.

2

So feel -- probably be better to have

3

someone at the point of contact where they can

4

actually give them the most up-to-date

5

information on when their trash can be picked

6

up.

7

And they also call the Wailuku area to

8

schedule their white goods pickup, and there's

9

currently no one there to answer the phone

10

there.

11

So it would certainly be appreciated if,

12

you know, a clerk could be hired for the Wailuku

13

Refuse station.

14

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

15

Other than that,

16

make.

17

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

I have no more comments to

Thank you.

18

Before I recognize you, Mr. Molina.

19

Director, was that a request that was

20

made that was cut from the proposal that we have

21

before us?

22

MR. ARAKAWA:

Did you make that request?

No, it wasn't as -- it wasn't part of

23

the Administration proposal, but it's just

24

something that we

25

CHAIR KANE:

No, no,

I am asking if that was part of
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your Department's proposal to Administration.

2

MR. ARAKAWA:

3

CHAIR KANE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

5

No,
Okay.

it was not.
Thank you.

Mr. Molina.

Thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Director, the increase in the cost

6

of gas, is that also -- I mean,

7

high fuel cost, that was a consideration.

8

there any,

9

anticipated growth of the island, the

I guess with the
Was

also, thought given to because of the

10

possibility of new routes and new accounts?

11

that also given -- factored into this increase?

12
13
14
15

MR. ARAKAWA:

Was

I think we just applied that straight

30 percent increase basically across the board.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

So that rate of growth

wasn't factored in as well?

16

Okay.

And with regards to the Makawao refuse

17

collection, you know, we have

18

heard concerns from the residents of Upper

19

Ulumalu Road and Alaluana Roads about the refuse

20

collection being stopped because of the

21

horrendous conditions of the road.

22

Council has

Has the Division given any consideration

23

to the purchase of an all-terrain refuse

24

vehicle,

25

You know, this great country, we can send people

if there is such a thing out there?
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1

to the moon;

2

creativity of coming up with a vehicle of that

3

nature.

4

into?

5

MR. TAKAMINE:

I don't know if the country has the

Has that been ever researched or looked

Councilmember Molina,

I do not -- I

6

haven't, and at this point in time,

7

been brought up to me,

8

say no, we haven't -- we haven't looked into it.

9

it hasn't

so I am going to have to

I know that someone -- I think this is

10

an issue where I'm getting -- I got a phone call

11

recently, and I haven't been able to get back to

12

the individual about -- I think this was the one

13

where their serVlce was stopped a while ago

14

and .

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Probably Upper Ulumalu Road.

16

MR. TAKAMINE:

I have left two messages, but

Right.

17

I haven't had the opportunity to investigate it

18

and see what the issues are,

19

your question.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

so I cannot answer

Maybe food for thought.

I

21

mean,

22

consider about -- I mean, probably there's got

23

to be something out there.

24

residents who live there, they pay their taxes

25

just like everybody else, so, you know,

it's something for the Division to

And you know, the
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1

something we can maybe look into as a

2

possibility so ...

3
4

MR. TAKAMINE:

I will definitely get back to that

individual and follow up on it.

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

8

CHAIR KANE:

9

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

10

Okay.

Thank you.

Mr. Mateo.
No.

Mr. Hokama.
Just a few questions.

Thank you,

Chairman.
Mr. Director, did you make comment on

11

12

that 6130, that $20,000 request for printing and

13

binding?

I

just was curious.

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16

16-102.
Yes.

Thank you, Chairman.

You are -- you know, you are increasing

17

your advertising budget request, and then you

18

have this proposal for 20,000 for printing.

19

you maybe share some comments, please?

20

MR. TAKAMINE:

Can

I have annotated in my notes here

21

billing contract, so I would assume that that's

22

tied to our printing and -- and mailing out of

23

bills.

24

billing system.

25

to get back with you on that.

Must be tied to that, the residential
But I cannot be sure.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

And -- and I only ask that

2

because if that was for your billing, you didn't

3

ask for funding for this year, so I am very -- I

4

am just curious, Mr. Takamine.

5

MR. TAKAMINE:

I will have to get back with you.

6

Again, that's all I have In my notes

7

here, and I can't recall exactly what it was

8

for.

9

I just have billing contracts.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

That 125 for the building In the

10
11

baseyard, maybe you can help us.

12

cherry/burgundy-colored building?

13

baby blue building?

14

we're talking about in the baseyard, please?

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

Is that the
Is that the

Which -- which building

That's a dark green building, green, I

16

believe, with white trim across from the -- it's

17

right next to the -- the pumps, the diesel pumps

18

and the gas pumps.

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you very much.

Ms. Johnson.
I know Lance is trying to

22

find it, but last year, I know we had talked

23

about automated collection, and one of the areas

24

of expansion was going to be in West Maui.

25

wanted to find out if you recall where that
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1

proposal ever went.

2

put in some kind of money or some type of a

3

proviso that would have moved in that direction,

4

and I

5

update.

6

Because I think that we did

just wondered if you could give us an

MR. TAKAMINE:

Yes, Counci1member Johnson.

I guess

7

in the '06 Budget, there was budgeted money for

8

equipment for -- I think it was five automated

9

trucks,

10

and I forget how many bins.
We are currently in the process of

11

putting the specs together on those trucks.

12

anticipate that once the bid specs are

13

completed, put out to bid, by the time we get

14

those trucks,

15

see -- might be August of next year,

16

it will be August of -- let's
I believe.

It puts us in a situation -- turns out

17

the bins,

18

trucks come in late, and we cannot get the

19

program started,

20

and have, say,

21

because then I won't have storage for that.

22

We

I cannot purchase the bins

if the

I do not want to purchase bins

30,000 bins sitting around

So it might impact us on when we can

23

purchase those bins.

24

most likely will be having to come back to

25

budget for the bins at a later date.

We might have to -- we
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1

But right now, my supervisor did go out,

2

and they plan to go to Honolulu, and we're

3

researching actually what type of trucks to try

4

to spec out for that area.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

it?

7

MR. TAKAMINE:

Yeah, and this was CIP, was

I -- I believe it was a CIP Equipment

8

bond fund, too.

9

2.-something million.

10

I think it was like

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and the only reason I

11

think it's probably CIP is because if it were

12

anything else,

13

if you have not spec'd it out yet,

14

going to be completed,

it would be expiring shortly, and
it's never

so

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

16

get

17

end of the year.

18

putting the specs together right now with

19

Highways.

20

That -- that's correct.

We need to

we are -- we need to get it done by the

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But we are in the process of

Yeah, because a number of

21

people have asked me, particularly out in the

22

Napili area, and I know that the roads are

23

narrow there.

24

the smaller neighborhoods are going to have

25

you won't be able to use standard equipment

It's very -- you know, some of
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1

there because it would really requlre,

2

quite a small truck.

3

MR. TAKAMINE:

Actually, that will be like part of

4

Phase IV, our phase

5

Upcountry, actually.

6

I guess,

will be Lahaina and

Phase V will be probably trying to fill

7

all these holes, because there's holes like that

8

allover the different areas, determine how we

9

can automate that.

10

And there are -- we do have a smaller

11

truck, but it takes a lot less -- has a lot less

12

capacity.

13

rear-end loaders and make it automated.

14

know, you put -- you put a hydraulic equipment

15

on the back side.

16

Or you can put automated -- take the
You

So there's -- there's a lot of options,

17

but that's part of Phase V is to then try to

18

fill all the little holes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Yeah, because I know

20

that the Napilihau subdivision was one of the

21

areas where we had continual problems and

22

difficulties out in there.

23

do to expedite that,

24

appreciate it.

25

CHAIR KANE:

So anything you can

I know the community would

Thank you.

Mr. Takamine, you said August of next
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1

year.

You're meaning next Fiscal Year, is that

2

correct, or are you meaning August of '07?

3

MR. TAKAMINE:

4

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, I am talking August of '07.
So you were given the funds last July of

5

'05, and you are talking about specs going out

6

or the equipment coming in,

7
8

9

MR. TAKAMINE:

just for clarity?

We are currently putting together the

specs for the vehicles.
CHAIR KANE:

10

MR. TAKAMINE:

11

CHAIR KANE:

And what do you expect by August of '07?
The vehicles to arrive.
Okay.

Okay.

That's what we are

12

25-month turnaround, then, huh?

13

that's what it takes, that's what it takes.

14

we just want to understand, you know

15

MR. TAKAMINE:

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

I mean, if
So

Twenty-five months?
And I say 25 months because we approved

the funding

18

MR. TAKAMINE:

Okay.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MR. TAKAMINE:

21

earlier.

22

go out earlier, but the funds were available

23

back in July.

24

crunch with everything else going on, automation

25

of Wailuku, trying to get all the equipment in

-- July 1st of '05.
We -- we could have gotten out
I don't know the reason why we didn't

I think we were just in a time
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1

and bins in.

2

to manpower shortage, we couldn't get around to

3

it.

4

have gotten it earlier.

5

So I am assuming that -- just due

But if we had started earlier, we could

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

And Committee, recall

6

last year, we put back in the automated.

7

not part of the proposal last year.

8

Ms. Anderson, any questions?

9

Mr. Carroll?

10

Okay.

11

area of collections?

12

Thank you.

Anybody else, Members, in this

Members, there's also a few pieces of

13

of equipment.

14

forklift with trailer as well as office

15

furniture.

16
17

Any questions there?

Four-ton

Okay.

We are moving on.

Members, we are In

the --

18

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

One quick question, Chairman.

Oh, yeah.

Excuse me.

My apologies.

You know,

21

everybody that's moving is asking for new

22

furniture,

23

It was

MR. TAKAMINE:

so nothing is recyclable?
This particular furniture is for the

24

Parks building that we will be obtaining.

25

now, we don't -- we don't have any furniture.
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1

We have only one desk for two supervisors, one

2

computer for two supervisors.

3

chairs for any of our refuse collectors.

4

mean, absolutely no furniture.

5

in the budget.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

8

Park's space?

10
11

MR. TAKAMINE:

So we put this

There's nothing at Parks, at War

Memorial, that is usable,

CHAIR KANE:

I

We do .

7

9

no

We have no

since you're vacating

Exactly.
I -- I don't know.

I don't know what

the furniture situation is.
But I can tell you that we do look for

12
13

recycled furniture,

14

am using for my abandoned vehicle coordinator,

15

lS

16

Mainly because I don't have any funds in my

17

office this year.

because we -- that's what I

we -- we -- we try to get anything we can.

18

But you know,

I don't know what the

19

situation is when they leave the War Memorial

20

complex.

21

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, Mr. Takamine, you know,

22

that was more of a general question to the

23

Budget Director, since we see it everywhere In

24

this budget proposal.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any further questions, Members?

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

1

2

314
Hearing none, Director Arakawa, 16-106?

MR. ARAKAWA:

Yes, Mr. Chair, we can move on to

3

landfill diversion, and let me just direct your

4

attention to alternative programs,

5

the bottom of the page.

6

service, we have $527,216 appropriation in

7

Fiscal Year '06.

8
9

917286, near

Under 6112, contractual

And this was for drop box hauling and
processing.

These are all the drop box and

10

recycling and redemption centers that we have at

11

various points on the island.

12

$56,000 in supplemental moneys in '06.

13

are requesting $680,000 in '07 for this purpose.

14

And under the next line, Other Services,

And we received
And we

15

we are requesting 284,500, and these moneys are

16

to do basically the drop box repair.

17

know, these recycling and redemption centers

18

have been in use for a while, and the drop boxes

19

are In need of some repair.

20

As you

Also, some money is needed for

21

Compu-Swap shipping, and Christmas tree

22

recycling.

23

And on the next page, 16 107, I want to

24

make a correction under subobject 6317, County

25

Grant Subsidy.

Twenty-five thousand dollars was
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1

appropriated in '06, and there's a

2

for $345,000 in '07.

3

that to $175,000.

I

an entry

just want to correct

And basically, the -- those grants would

4
5

go to the South Maui compost facility, which

6

Tracy Takamine had mentioned earlier, and also

7

Public Works recycling grants.

8
9

Seventy-four thousand two fifty to Maui
Recycling Group.

This is basically for compost

10

workshops, coordination of two Compu-Swaps, and

11

additional landfill diversion through the Aloha

12

Shares Network.

13

And Community Work Day

lS

a grant of

14

$15,040 for ongoing collection of computers and

15

paint.

16

$12,000, which is for the reuse of construction

17

materials.

18

And Habitat Restore in the amount of

The reduction that I noted of about

19

$170,000 was due to the fact that we had

20

originally included a Community Work Day grant

21

to deal with white goods hotspots pickup here in

22

this particular line item, but it actually will

23

be included in the abandoned vehicle and white

24

goods program.

25

in that abandoned vehicle program, so it's not

So that amount will be included
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included here.
CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Ginoza, can you please provide us

with a correction page?

4

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Staff, make a note that this page

6

needs to be corrected and that Mr. Ginoza will

7

provide that correction.

8

Any questions, Members, In this area?

9

Mr. Carroll, we are starting off with

10

you.

11

Ms. Tavares.

12

Mr. Pontanilla.

13

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR KANE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

16

No.

Mr. Molina.
One question, Chairman.

Mr. Takamine, the increase for the drop

17

box,

18

the diversion rates?

lS

this in anticipation of an increase in

19

MR. TAKAMINE:

Is that 6112

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

21

MR. TAKAMINE:

Yeah.

-- you are talking about?

22

That's actually an increase in

23

that's an increase in our contractual estimates

24

on hauling and processing of the materials.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

again,

So in other words, more people

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

317

1

are diverting material into the landfill --

2

recycling?

3

MR. TAKAMINE:

I would say some of that, but more --

4

more just inflation costs.

5

directly to the current vendor and they're

6

based on their gas prices, their cost of

7

equipment, and labor rates, they are

8

predicting

9

bid prices.

10

12

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any more questions in this area,

Members?

15
16

Oh, okay.

Thank you, Chairman.

13
14

predicting an increase in their

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

Again, we're talking

Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

17

Just for clarification, Chairman.

I believe the Director and Budget

18

Director mentioned 170,000 for Community Work

19

Day.

20

Beautification Fund, and I

21

their proposal to us regarding the Revolving

22

Fund, their proposed proviso to us is for

23

180,000.

24

to use for budgeting?

25

MR. GINOZA:

That will come from the Highway
just bring up that in

So what is the accurate number for us

The proviso number was basically a
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1

carryover of last year,

2

of the restriction of last year.

3
4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

so I wasn't really sure

But the intent

lS

for 170,

as the Department is proposing it?

5

MR. GINOZA:

Yes.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Any more questions in this area?

Okay.

Thank you.

8

The Chair has one final question.

9

The Other Services,

6129, 284,500 on

10

page 16-106, you talked about drop box repair

11

or -- and/or replacement,

12

you say?

13

clarification.

14

MR. TAKAMINE:

And I am sorry.

is that what I heard
Just for

Council Chair, it's Tracy Takamine.

15

Yes, that -- that is for -- basically, we have

16

all those drop-box sites with these bins, and --

17

and we have a majority

18

maintaining them.

19

holes, the roofs are broken, and they need -- we

20

have an estimate, and I forget offhand what it

21

was.

22

going to be repairing these in the upcoming

23

year.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

- we haven't been

And the majority of them have

I thought I had it with me.

But we are

So a big cost is to repair these bins.
So just -- just real briefly, the vendor

or the contract who deals with picking up, they
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1

are not required In the part of the contract to

2

provide the drop boxes; we are?

3

MR. TAKAMINE:

That is correct.

We own all the

4

equipment, all the drop boxes.

5

responsible for all repairs and any maintenance

6

on the drop boxes.

7

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

We are

Thank you very much.

8

Any final questions, Members?

9

Ms. Tavares.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah,

is there a point in

11

time where you will take a look at whether the

12

County should be providing the services that we

13

are contracting out, like for the drop boxes?

14

know you need a special vehicle to pull those

15

gigantic things, but is there a break point?

16

mean,

17

it's like what,

18

Is that something that you would be looking at

19

in the future?

20

I

I

if it keeps going up every year, you know,

MR. TAKAMINE:

680,000 or something like that.

I would -- I would say to answer that,

21

I am going have a consultant in the Integrated

22

Solid Waste Master Plan probably look at that

23

and give us a recommendation on --

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

MR. TAKAMINE:

Okay.

-- on -- get a cost-benefit analysis
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on whether we --

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MR. TAKAMINE:

Right.

or if we can do it and what the

4

impacts would be.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, I look -- I look

6

forward to that.

7

very full at this time, and, you know, it's one

8

more thing.

9

it in their report,

10
11

terrific.
CHAIR KANE:

12

I know you have your plate

But if the consultants can include

Yeah.

I think that would be

Thank you.

Any further questions, Members?
Finally, in diversion program, we have

13

the grant revenue, Members.

14

questions in this area?

15

some discussion In this area already.

16

some notes that we talked about something,

17

but -- are there any additional questions in

18

this area on 16-108 and 16-109, Members?

19

Okay.

Are there any

I believe we did have

Seeing none.

I have

Mr. Takamine and

20

Director Arakawa, thank you very much for your

21

patience and your -- your ability to stay with

22

us this long, through the day and the evening.

23

MR. ARAKAWA:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

Thank you very much.
Members, we are gOlng to just call for a

brief recess.

Okay.

We won't go too long.
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We will come back at five to

1

about ten minutes.

2

8:00, and then we will pick with Parks.
And preferably, we would like to start

3
4

off with your Golf Fund and PALS program, guys,

5

so we can get them In and out as quick as

6

possible.
Okay.

7

8

Members, Committee stands in

recess until 7:55.

(Gavel. )

RECESS:

7:45 p.m.

10

RECONVENE:

8:01 p.m.

11

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.) Okay, Members, we are

9

12

reconvened.

13

Department of Parks.

14

into the Golf Fund, first, Members.

15

direct your attention to your Details, 11-52.

16

And I will get you to the program page in just a

17

moment.

18

Thank you.

With us now we have the

We are going to get right
If you can

But in the meantime, we have our Deputy

19

Parks Director with us here this evening,

20

Mr. John Buck.

21

Mr. Buck, if you can provide us with any

22

comments at this time, and introduce our --

23

excuse me -- our golf course superintendent.

24
25

MR. BUCK:

Thank you, Chairman Kane.
I really don't have any comments as far
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1

as -- In regards to the golf course.

2

leave that comments and all answers to questions

3

to our Golf Course Superintendent, Ron Kubo.

4

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

5
6
7

8
9
10
11

I will

Good evening, Mr. Kubo.
MR. KUBO:

Thank you.

Good evening, Mr. Chair.

Good

evening, Members of the Council.
CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Kubo, you have any opening remarks

for us this evening before we ask questions of
your -- of your Division?
MR. KUBO:

The only thing I just -- I wanted to point

12

out was that for the golf course equipment, what

13

we have as page 11-57, and subobject 7031 is

14

computer equipment.

15

This is to upgrade our computer system

16

at the operations, up at the starter's office.

17

Right now, the computer is not able to handle

18

all the

19

course, so it -- just bogging down the system.

20

And the system currently is five years old.

21

the load that we have at the golf

Also, subobject 7037, that's for golf

22

course equipment, for a golf cart for the

23

operations clerk and marshal, which is $8,000.

24
25

And we also do need a lot more equipment
for the golf course, the maintenance equipment,
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1

and we would like to request Equipment Bond for

2

that.

3

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Kubo, is there anything more

4

specific you wanted to add to that final comment

5

you made?

6

for additional equipment and then putting it

7

into bond?

8

MR. KUBO:

9

CHAIR KANE:

10
11

Yes.

I am sorry.

You are making a request

Is that what you said?

I am sorry.

Yes, Mr. Chair.

Okay.

Do you have a breakdown of the

equipment that you need and the dollar amount?
MR. KUBO:

The breakdown of equipment would be a

12

pickup truck.

13

need of a skid loader, a new skid loader.

14

skid loader right now

15

that's 30,000.

16

greens mower for $30,000.

17

need a Verticutter -- Verticut reels that we

18

attach to our fairway mowers so that we can

19

Verticut our fairways, which we have never done.

20

And what this does is that it makes the turf

21

tighter, much more dense, so we wouldn't have as

22

much weed growing through the grass.

23

Says 27,000.

lS

We also need

out of service.

in
Our
And

We're also in need of another
And the

we also

We had -- the previous superintendent

24

did have a Verticutter, which was a pull-behind

25

Verticutter, that they pulled behind on a
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1

tractor, but they just utilized it for about --

2

about two times, and it just corroded.

3

up on the

4

it sat there for years, and it was never used.

5

So we have never had a -- use of the

6

Verticutter.

7

It was

where the sand bin was, and it --

But in order to maintain a better stand

8

of turf, we need this not just on the fairways

9

but in the roughs.

10

And the cost of that was

11,000.
And the other equipment was two

11

12

medium-duty cart -- utility carts.

Our carts

13

are constantly being used by the

by the

14

groundskeepers, and with all the environment

15

down there, the salt air, it corrodes pretty

16

fast.

17

need of more carts for our grounds keeper to use.

18

And that would be 17,000 for that.

So it wears out a lot, and we are in bad

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21

MR. KUBO:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MR. KUBO:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

MR. KUBO:

Each?

For the two, or for -- or each?
Right, 17,000.
For the two?
For both, yeah.
Okay.

Anything else?

That -- that's it.
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3

6

325

Yes, I will.
Okay.
I -

I don't have it with me right now,

but I will present -- give it to the Council.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Or if you can pass it to the

Budget Director through -MR. KUBO:

Yes.

CHAIR KANE:

through the Deputy or to the --

11

through channels, we would like to get that.

12

Members, before I open the floor for

13

questions, in light of your comments about the

14

pull-behind Verticutter getting corroded because

15

it was left out, are you going to have the

16

necessary space requirements or storage for all

17

equipment that you are requesting?

18

MR. KUBO:

Yes.

In fact, the construction of the new

19

maintenance building should be coming up within

20

the next couple of months,

21

facility -- finally the facility to store our

22

equipment indoors, out of the environment, where

23

we can, you know, keep it clean and where it

24

will last a little longer.

25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

so we would have the

Members, we are open for
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Thank you.

What is your projected revenue for the
2007 year?
MR. KUBO:

For 2007?

Approximately 1. -- well,

for the -- for the green fees, 1.3 million.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

For everything, your whole

your total expected revenues.
MR. KUBO:

The total would be 1.8.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

One point eight?

11

budget request is 1.9?

12

make up the difference?

13

MR. KUBO:

And your

How are you going to

That -- probably through trying to get

14

more revenue.

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

just

So you are not asking for a

General Fund supplement?

17

MR. KUBO:

No.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

And as I understand

19

it, the Debt Service for this bond equipment

20

will not actually take effect until, what, six

21

months, Mr. Budget Director?

22
23
24
25

MR. GINOZA:

Any interest would be paid six months

after the bond is issued.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So we may not be

looking at any costs this year?
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1

MR. GINOZA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

MR. GINOZA:

4
5

That's correct.

If the --

I mean this Fiscal Year.

-- bond is issued after the first of

the year, then there's not going to be any.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

So your Debt Service

6

on page 18-56, I am going to just assume that

7

the Debt Service increase is due to the

8

maintenance building bond?

9
10
11

MR. GINOZA:

I would assume so because that's

allocated as part of the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

12

round.

13

CHAIR KANE:

14

Okay.

That's all for this

Thank you.
Just for clarification, because I know,

15

Member Tavares, you asked about transfer into

16

the Bond Fund, the Mayor's proposal shows, on

17

No.4 of page 3, under Countywide costs, there's

18

a supplemental transfer to the Golf Fund of

19

$540,879.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

In the Program Budget?

In the ordinance.
Oh, I am sorry.

23

don't have my ordinance with me.

24

amount again, sir?

25

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, I
What was that

Five hundred forty thousand eight
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1

hundred and seventy-nine.

2

have any inclusion of the equipment, which

3

separate, but anyway -- because that's not part

4

of the proposal.

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

CHAIR KANE:

7
8

Yep.

And that would not
lS

Thank you.

Mr. Pontanilla, questions in this

area?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

9

Yeah.

In regards to your revenue, other than

10

the green fees,

11

from the operations of the restaurant as well as

12

the pro shop?

13

MR. KUBO:

do you get any more revenues

Yes, we have revenue from the pro shop and

14

the restaurant, according to the contracts,

15

which is another almost 400,000.

16

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

17
18

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

19
20

Thank you.

Mr. Molina.
Mr. Mateo, anything here?

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

Thank -- thank you, Chairman.

Mr. Superintendent, the add-on

22

equipment,

is this just now you are adding it

23

on, or had it initially been submitted and

24

not

25

or -- or tell me how this came about?

not added on to your equipment list,
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Yes,

I did submit it for the budget, but

it wasn't added on to the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And the only other item

4

that is equipment-related in terms of the golf

5

course is just that golf cart that

6

put on?

7

MR. KUBO:

8

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

9

that was

Right.
Okay.

So in your submission,

were these listed as priorities for you?

10

MR. KUBO:

Yes.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Mr. Director, then -- I

12

am sorry -- Deputy, would you have had any

13

participation in

14

prioritizing the golf course's equipment

15

request?

16

MR. BUCK:

in the selection of

Thank you, Mr. Mateo.

I am not really

17

sure.

18

request, what was eventually submitted to us

19

through the Division.

I would have to look at the overall

20

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

21

MR. BUCK:

Okay.

I can answer that question, and I could

22

probably get it to you tomorrow morning if

23

there's a rush for it.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

I am

I am done.
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CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

2
3

Mr. Hokama, questions in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

The -- the one that kind of stood

4

out, Mr. Kubo,

5

great fluctuation In your water expenses.

6

you give us some comment?

7

MR. KUBO:

Yes.

is on 11-55, there seems to be a
Can

The reason for that was I think it

8

was for the past -- previous five years, our

9

charges for the water was way less than what

10

they were supposed to be because the Board of

11

Water Supply charged us,

12

mean,

13

were one decimal point over.

instead of one -- I

instead of ten, they charged us one.

14

They

See, we were -- so we were being billed

15

way less than -- way less than what it was

16

supposed to be for five years.

17

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

18

MR. KUBO:

Okay.

And they finally

Let me .
they finally found the

19

mistake.

20

paying way -- a lot less than we were supposed

21

to be.

22
23
24
25

They finally caught on that we were

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So now they're asking you to make

up their error of the past five years and .
MR. KUBO:

But we -- we had to pay for the -- the

difference that we were supposed to be paying
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1

for.

2

think it was $9,000 a year, which should have

3

been a lot more.

4

So, the budget, then,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I think, was -- I

So what did the Water Department

5

inform you?

You have a payment schedule like

6

they give the other users?

7

on their part, not on the golf course part?

8

MR. KUBO:

No.

9

MR. BUCK:

I don't know all the

But this is an error

Councilmember

10

Hokama,

11

cut a check for the past month that was due.

12

And I don't have the details how we did it, you

13

know, how much it was, but they had requested us

14

to pay for it, the mistake, the undercharging.

15

I don't know all the details, but we did

Had to do something with the metered --

16

the

17

something.

18
19
20

MR. KUBO:

I think a decimal point on the meter or
But, yeah.

Okay.

But it's been paid.

But if the meter read 1,000, we

were charged 100.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

No,

I understand that.

But they

21

~losed

22

just trying to understand how they're going to

23

do this -- this -- that will be Mr. Ginoza and

24

his associate's problems on the rebooking of

25

things that are five years old.

their previous five-year books, so I am

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

332

1

Okay.

2

I guess Water Department should never

3

Thank you for that.

surprise me anymore, Mr. Chairman.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson, questions in this area?
I -- I really would like some

6

kind of an explanation because that doesn't make

7

sense to me, and if we could try and get

8

something, if nothing else, from the Water

9

Department.

That is unbelievable, how -- you

10

know, and because it's a County Department, that

11

really seems unfair because your budget

12

have budgeted for the last several years based

13

on that amount.

14

amount.

15

We have approved it on that

Anyway ...
We are going to be getting, Mr. Chair,

16

to rates and fees,

17

course fees at -- next week?

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

right.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

so that would be the golf

Actually, tomorrow.

20

23

you

Oh, tomorrow.

Okay.

All

Thank you.
Ms. Anderson, questions in this area?
Mr. Kubo, how old is the

pickup truck that you are replacing?
MR. KUBO:

The pickup truck is 16 years old.

1990.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. KUBO:

3

It's still running, yeah.

CHAIR KANE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

MR. KUBO:

One more time, Ms. Anderson.

Pardon?

And -- and the skid loader?

Oh, the skid loader is -- oh,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MR. KUBO:

And the greens mower?

Greens mower, eight years old.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

When -- when you submit

11

these requests, and they don't get in your

12

budget, are you given a reason?

13

find out like we do?

14

I

think it's 12 or 13 years old.

8

10

Barely, but

it's still running.

4

7

And the skid loader?

MR. KUBO:

Or you just

Well, when -- when our Department went

15

through the budget with the -- with all of the

16

supervisors, and the -- I was notified then

17

that -- that all that I had on the budget for

18

equipment was the -- the golf cart and the

19

computer upgrade.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But they don't give you a

21

reason why the other -- other things weren't put

22

in?

23

MR. KUBO:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

No.
Well,

I want to commend you

for a really tight budget because, you know,
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1

it's pretty flat.

2

increased, really, are things out of necessity,

3

as far as electricity and water.

4

even reduced some things.

5

to be commended for holding really tight on your

6

budget.

7

MR. KUBO:

8

CHAIR KANE:

The only things that you have

Thank you.
Mr. Carroll, any questions?
Okay.

Members.

10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman,

12

I think you are

Thank you.

9

11

So,

And you have

just quickly, a

follow-up.
CHAIR KANE:

One second, I just -- I think I had one,

13

so I

14

that spot, and then I will recognize you, Mr. --

15

Mr. Hokama.

16

just wanted to make sure that I didn't lose

The -- Mr. Kubo,

I am going to ask

17

you -- I got to ask the question, okay, because

18

we've been told that it's happening in other

19

Departments.

20

Have you been told that -- to come here

21

and ask us for the equipment even though they

22

said you cannot have the equipment, but go ask

23

the Council?

24

25

MR. KUBO:

No, but we did last year.

We had an

Equipment Bond last year.
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Okay.

Okay.

Mr. Hokama, you had the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Kubo, you know,

4

I -- I think -- as

5

being one of the golfers on the Council,

6

appreciate what you went through.

7

refresh our mind, how long did the course wait

8

to have this maintenance building rebuilt?

9

Eight years?

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

MR. KUBO:

12
13

I can

Can you just

No, more like 20.

How long has it been since we have been --

since they started
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Since we knocked down that old

14

maintenance building, and of course we had

15

issues come up, and we kept funding the

16

building, and it got lapsed.

17
18

MR. KUBO:

I think they knocked the building down

about nine years ago.

19

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

20

MR. KUBO:

Nine years.

But they are working on -- on the

21

maintenance building for about the last 15

22

years,

I think.

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

During my time.

And I

just share for the Members

that, you know, don't go to the golf course
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1

maybe as much as Mr. Pontanilla and I, but the

2

equipment has been trying to be maintained and

3

covered as best they could, with an outside

4

environment.

5

needs to be commended that they got that much

6

life out of what was provided with them, with

7

the conditions of the salt spray and the soil.

8

9

So thank you for your

you and your

crew's good work, Mr. Kubo.

10

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

11

MR. KUBO:

12

CHAIR KANE:

13
14

And I think Mr. Kubo and his staff

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Any further questions, Members?
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Is this the area where the

15

revenues would come in from the operations of

16

the clubhouse?

17

MR. KUBO:

What was the question again?

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

you know,

Is this the area

19

like,

in other words, the -- the items that we

20

are going through,

21

look at the income that's received from the

22

clubhouse that will go to pay for your

23

operations?

24

MR. KUBO:

25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

is this where we would also

Yes.
I

just wondered,

lS

the
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1

because I know that in the past, there was

2

tremendous problems with the operations and

3

everything, but is the current vendor, whoever

4

is in there, are they paying and is everything

5

up to snuff as far as their payments go?

6

MR. KUBO:

Yes, they have been.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And it's helping in

8

terms of the revenue that you are receiving to

9

sustain the remainder of the golf course

10

operations?

11

MR. KUBO:

Yes, it has, yeah.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any final questions in this area?

14

Hearing none, Mr. Kubo, thank you very

15

much.

16

again; get that list put together for us on the

17

equipment.

18

MR. KUBO:

We appreciate you, and please, if you can

Yes, Mr. Chair.

19
20
21

Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you,
Members.
CHAIR KANE:

22
23

Thank you.
Members, we will call our PALS

administrator.

24

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

25

CHAIR KANE:

Our PALS pal.

Our PALS pal.
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1

Members,

I would like to direct your

2

attention to page 11-47 of your Details, is

3

where the program begins with your A Accounts

4

excuse me -- A Account.

5

Budget, we are going to be at 13-20.
Mr. Buck,

6

And on your Program

if you can introduce the folks

7

next to you for the Committee and for the

8

record, please.

9

MR. BUCK:

Thank you, Chair Kane and the rest of the

10

Committee Members.

11

our Chief of Recreation and Support Services,

12

Tamara Horcajo, and our coordinator for the PALS

13

Department.

14

programs, but one of his main ones is the PALS,

15

and that's Allen Atkinson -- I am sorry.

16

there's another Atkinson, but I thought I got

17

the wrong

there's another Atkinson I deal

18

with, and

and -- it's late.

19

I would like to introduce

He is actually coordinator for many

No,

I will let them introduce any major

20

changes they have in their operations for the

21

PALS program.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MS. HORCAJO:

Any comments at this time, Ms. Horcajo?
Thank you very much, Council Members,

24

and thank you for being here so late and for

25

supporting the PALS program over the years.
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1

know that you are all supporters of our families

2

in Maui County that take advantage of our

3

program, and so to begin with,

4

that.

I will just say

5

I will give a brief description, and if

6

you have specific questions, Allen has prepared

7

the budget and done a great job at that, so he

8

can answer any specifics that I don't cover.

9

This year, the PALS program is having

10

some challenges and we are moving with the DOE

11

to accommodate the year-round schedule, so we

12

will be shifting our program somewhat.

13

number of days of the program will not be

14

changing, but we will be altering our schedule

15

to align ourselves with the Department of

16

Education.

17

The

So our request this year, though,

18

however, in the A Account, as you will see, we

19

have $183,000 increase.

20

of that is for full-time existing staff raises,

21

and the additional 170,000 is for raises for our

22

seasonal staff.

23

Thirteen thousand plus

What necessitated this increase was

24

because of the Federal standard for the minimum

25

wage law increase, which began this year,
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1

January 1st.

We currently pay our staff less

2

than the minimum wage, and it goes up as of

3

July -- January 1st to 6.75 an hour.

4

again,

5

hour.

it raises January 1st,

And then

'07 to 7.25 an

So, in order to accommodate the basic

6

7

increases for our recreation aides, we needed to

8

increase our request; however, we have also

9

increased our request as well for our seasonal

10

people.

11

supportive with us, and they have been underpaid

12

for many years.

13

2003, was the first increase they had received

14

in the 15 years of the program.

15

asking for an increase.

16

As you know, they have been very

They did receive an increase in

So we are again

We have accommodated our increase to

17

follow,

18

increases, which is to reward the existing

19

personnel who are with us and to have them stay

20

longer.

21

that,

22

of the staff outlined, we can give you that.

23

similar to the union, HGEA, step

So there is a diagram of that 170,000

if you need more specific details for all

We do hire over -- well, between three

24

and four hundred seasonal staff annually.

25

that's what that A Account accommodates.
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Members, any questions in the A Account?

2

Ms.

you know, and we will just start.

3

Ms.

Ms. Anderson.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

three and four hundred people?

7

MS. HORCAJO:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

MS. HORCAJO:

10
11
12

Thank you.

Ms. Horcajo, you -- you hire between

5
6

Okay.

Yes, we do.
Seasonal people?

Uh-huh.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And have you had any

problems lately?
MS. HORCAJO:

Yes,

it's more and more difficult.

13

That is another reason why we see that there is

14

a need for us to increase our -- our hourly wage

15

for our seasonal staff.

16

It's -- the competition out there is

17

great, and we do want quality people, and we

18

want to keep our kids safe, and that is

19

definitely another reason why we are requesting

20

assistance.

21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And are these normally high

school students, or college students?
MS. HORCAJO:

We have a range of staff,

from our site

24

coordinators, who mostly work at the schools,

25

who are educational assistants at -- at DOE, who
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want to pick up work during their --

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MS. HORCAJO:

Summer breaks.

-- summer and off times,

and -- and the

4

range, because we have site coordinators, we

5

have recreation leaders, we have directors, we

6

have aides.

7

qualified personnel down to

8

one of the few organizations that do accommodate

9

16-year-olds, and in some cases that is our

10

So it goes everywhere from very
we do

we are

aides, usually the 16 to 18s.
We do have partnerships with Maui

11

12

Community College, also, that we are

13

encouraging, and those are usually the lower pay

14

scales, those with no experience.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

And then I see under

16

your specialists, you have 18 specialists, which

17

are 2.4 equivalent,

18

equivalent.

19

$40,000 if, you know, you had to do all these

20

salary increases?

21

MS. HORCAJO:

full

ime,

I guess,

How come there's a reduction of

Thank you.

The reduction here

22

indicates the swimming specialists that we moved

23

from the PALS program to the Aquatics Division

24

because our -- they were basically lifeguards.

25

They are lifeguards that are picked up during
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1

the summer to accommodate the increased numbers

2

at the pools and at the beaches.
So we moved those positions out into

3

4

Aquatics because they can better accommodate the

5

training and the scheduling for those positions.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

CHAIR KANE:

8

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Any more questions in this area, on the

A Account?

9

Ms. Horcajo, maybe if you can help us

10

with a better understanding of, because the DOE

11

is going year-round, a lot of your seasonal

12

workers who are able to be here for the full

13

three-month period or that

14

now that's being shortened, and because you said

15

that there's an equal number of days that would

16

be provided for that program, a lot of those

17

kids aren't going to be on the DOE.

18

some of those seasonals are kind of going on,

19

and they won't be able to come back to fulfill

20

those three-week pockets and four-week pockets.

21

How are you dealing with that?

22

MS. HORCAJO:

23

CHAIR KANE:

24
25

Thank you.

the summer period,

I mean,

It -- it will

If you can pull that microphone closer

to you, please.
MS. HORCAJO:

I am sorry.

Thank you for the question
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1

because that is going to be a challenge for us.

2

We had -- trying to work with DOE to stagger

3

their schedules to better accommodate PALS, but

4

it didn't work out that way for the families.

5

We do hire quite a few students that

6

come back during the summer months.

7

looking at the June through July,

8

program.

9

the college students that are coming back as

10

We are

six weeks

And again, we are picking up a lot of

well.

11

We haven't quite run into it yet because

12

we are going to be running or hoping to run six

13

weeks summer, three weeks Christmas, two weeks

14

In the spring, to align ourselves with DOE.

And

15

we haven't hit the Christmas and spring yet.

We

16

are hoping that we will be able to fill with

17

qualified people.

18

If we cannot, we will have to look at

19

some kind of caps or something to accommodate

20

safety for the kids.

21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Any other questions in this area

before we move on into the B Account?
Go ahead -- I am sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Ms. Tavares.

I have an overall question.

I have been hunting, and please point it out if
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1

I am missing it in either the Program Budget or

2

the Details -- well, it wouldn't be in the

3

Details -- but how many children are you

4

serving?

5

registrations for PALS?

6

MS. HORCAJO:

How many kids register, unduplicated

Unduplicated registrations, about

7

three -- over 3,000.

8

Lanai, so it's a little under 3,000, I guess,

9

unduplicated count.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

MS. HORCAJO:

12

between

We just started service on

Under 3,000?

Because it gets a little confusing

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

14

MS. HORCAJO:

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, that's why I say

-- summer and inter session.
-- that's why I asked it

16

asked unduplicated, but I know some of them

17

repeat during the --

18

MS. HORCAJO:

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20
21

Right, that's correct.
inter session and the --

and the summer, but .
MS. HORCAJO:

And as soon as we implement our new

22

RecWare program, which will keep a database, we

23

will be able to keep better counts.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

You know, that used to be a

piece of information reported in the Program
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1

Budget, and I notice it's not in there now.

2

is it not -- I mean, it's

3

all this money, and what are we spending it on?

4

If you only had 20 kids, we would be in an

5

uproar.

6

okay, you know, we know there's a lot of kids in

7

PALS.

So

you know, we spend

But you know, some of us kind of like,

8

MS. HORCAJO:

Right.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

But I think that number

10

should be reported, and probably by the

11

sesslons, you know, so that you get the

12

duplicated kids also, because it

13

difference.

14

inter session, and a child in the summer

15

session.

16

both.

it makes a

You know, that's a child in the

You still need staff to accommodate

17

MS. HORCAJO:

Right.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

So I -- I do realize that.

19

But I think it would be kind of important, to

20

me.

21

people on the Meals on Wheels program.

22

this money; if they don't tell us how many meals

23

they are serving, you know, we don't have an

24

idea of is this a good expenditure or not?

25

think somewhere, the number has to be woven into

You know,

it's like these people that
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the program budget part of the program.

2

MS. HORCAJO:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

Budget.

5

sorry.

6

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.
For that part of the Program

I can't talk straight tonight.

I am

No, I know when we moved from the

7

program measures to performance measures, it

8

isn't shown in the Budget Detail.

9

fact, keep those numbers.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

interesting.

12
13

14
15

MS. HORCAJO:

But we do, in

Yeah, that would be

And I think Allen wanted to say

something.
CHAIR KANE:

And I am sorry, if you can please just

identify yourself for the record.

16

MR. ATKINSON:

17

program.

Allen Atkinson.

Thank you.

I work with the PALS

18

And the unduplicated numbers also means

19

that it's only counting one string summer, even

20

though they are paying two or three times by the

21

month.

22

child, one time --

So that's -- that's just counting one

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24

MR. ATKINSON:

25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Right.

-- for attendance.
Right.
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So there's been some confusion on how

2

we keep the numbers.

3

that straight, also.

4

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

5
6

So I am trying to keep

Right.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay, Members.

Members,

just for the

7

sake of time,

8

pretty good blip that we can have an explanation

9

by Ms. Horcajo, on page 11-49.

in the B Account, there's one

10

seems to be flat.

11

under Miscellaneous Other Costs,

12

$100 to $52,975.

13

comments to that, Ms. Horcajo.

14
15

MS. HORCAJO:

Everything else

But the one that sticks out,
6221, goes from

If you can provide some

Thank you.
This increase in the B Account is to

16

accommodate the -- to align ourselves so that we

17

are legally collecting funds on a daily basis

18

during the PALS program for our program and

19

activity fees.

20

Without moneys allotted in our budget,

21

we would be unable -- or we will be unable to

22

continue taking our youth to Ulalena, Maui Ocean

23

Center, mOVles, or educational activities.

24
25

Unfortunately,

in the past, we have been

taking -- accommodating the families at the
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1

site.

2

collect funds.

3

a rotating fund where we can take funding and

4

put it in a rotating fund for special field

5

trips, activity fees, maybe a special drama

6

production that we do.

7

pay for that.

8
9
10

The ordinance does not allow us to
And at this time, we do not have

This B Account funding would accommodate
us to take kids on an excursion without having
the rotating fee.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

16

Questions.

Ms. Tavares.
I will just follow up on that

same question.

14
15

Right now, the parents

So that means somewhere else, you are
reflecting that same amount as revenue?
MS. HORCAJO:

In the fee,

rates and fees, we are

17

recommending an increase in our daily

18

fees for the PALS program.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

Okay.

or the

For the daily?

So then, that means you are not

21

going to charge kids for any extra activities,

22

then?

23

24
25

MS. HORCAJO:

Currently, the -- the proposed rate

change will be from $2 a day to $3 a day.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And that will cover
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everything?
MS. HORCAJO:

Yes.

Well,

it -- it will offset this

fee.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Offset that

I mean, the

5

whole point was because you weren't supposed to

6

be collecting.

7

the only way we could do it before --

We all did this because it was

8

MS. HORCAJO:

Right.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

-- collected the fees for,

10

like, the bus transportation or the admission

11

for whatever it was, and then we just did it

12

like that way.

13

MS. HORCAJO:

Yeah, you just do it --

14

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

MS. HORCAJO:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And then this way --

-- every activity.
-- you reflect it in, out --

17

in and out in your budget?

18

for?

19

MS. HORCAJO:

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

That's what this is

That's correct.
Okay.

Thank you.

Any other questions in this area,

Members, on the B Account?
We have the grant revenue area, the

23
24

150,000.

Perhaps you can just briefly touch on

25

this, either -- anyone of you?

Ms. Horcajo,
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Thank you.

I will let Allen -- since

3

he writes these grants and accommodates the

4

reports,

5

this.

I will have Allen Atkinson discuss

6

MR. ATKINSON:

This is the summer food service

7

program.

8

in-and-out account, where the County has been

9

kind enough to front us the money to pay for the

And basically,

it's an -- an

10

food service.

11

Federal government, and re -- and reimburse that

12

account back.

13

We get the money back from the

In the past, we have needed -- actually,

14

the reality is in the past years it's cost us

15

about 150,

16

finding less of our sites qualify for the

17

Federal food service grant.

18

only have eight sites that qualify,

19

actually need less money in order to pay for the

20

food and then get reimbursed back.

21

CHAIR KANE:

22
23
24
25

$160,000 to provide for that.

We are

This year, we will
so we will

Members, questions?
Mr. Hokama,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

followed by Ms. Anderson.

What -- what is the main reason

for the reduction in the sites?
MR. ATKINSON:

In order to qualify -- there's three
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1

different ways to qualify.

2

school has 50 percent of the children on free or

3

reduced lunch.

4

way is by census data.

5

application, which means we keep track of the

6

kids that are at the site, and if 50 percent of

7

the kids at the site, regardless of the other

8

two criteria, meet, then we can do some extra

9

paperwork and qualify the site that way.

10

One is that the

That's the easiest way.

Second

The third way is by

The State has switched their paperwork

11

from the schools' deciding who lS on free or

12

reduced lunch to the State office in Honolulu,

13

and that's because of some Federal audits that

14

they had.

15

numbers out to numbers of children that qualify.

16

17
18

And that's kind of readjusted all the

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So how many sites did qualify

before this reduction to eight sites?
MR. ATKINSON:

If I remember right,

19

see.

20

but about three or four sites.

21
22

I think 13.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

it was all but -- all

Thank you for your

explanation.

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

I mean,

it was -- let's

Ms. Anderson, question?
Yeah.

When you say census,

you mean there has to be a certain percentage of
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low income people in that area?
MR. ATKINSON:

Right.

For example, we have a site

3

this summer, Hale Makana 0 Waiale, and that --

4

the school that that site falls under does not

5

qualify, but if I look at the census track, it

6

does qualify.

7

site through the census track, but not through

8

the school.

9

So we were able to qualify that

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And then why doesn't the

10

the school doesn't qualify because they are

11

they aren't 50 percent or more kids on free or

12

reduced .

13
14
15

MR. ATKINSON:

They have less than 50 percent of the

children on free or reduced lunch.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And so, then, the program

16

picks up the difference between the eight sites

17

that now qualify?

18

MR. ATKINSON:

No, we won't be serving lunches.

The

19

only -- we only can serve lunches at the sites

20

that qualify through the Federal program.

21

will only be serving breakfast and lunch at

22

those eight sites.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

So we

So what happens to the kids

at the other five sites?
MR. ATKINSON:

Actually, at all the other sites, it
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1

would be just like the sites that have never had

2

the Federal service program

3

program.

4

breakfast before they come and provide lunch.

5
6

Their parents will need to feed them

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

MR. ATKINSON:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

So how many total sites do

you have all together?

7

9

- food service

Fourteen.
Oh, so you only had one site

that didn't qualify previously
MR. ATKINSON:

Actually, I take that back.

Fourteen

11

on Maui, and 19 sites -- I am sorry; I am

12

counting them up, here -- 19 sites.

13

had -- in the past -- it's easier -- it's easier

14

to name the ones that did not qualify.

15

year, the ones that did not qualify was Lanai,

16

Kula, Haiku, Pukalani, lao, and I think that's

17

it.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. ATKINSON:

20

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

Any more questions in this area,

Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR KANE:

25

Okay.

Okay.

22

24

Last

Oh, Lahaina.

18

21

So we

No, thank you.

Hearing none, thank you very much.

appreciate your presence, Mr. Atkinson.
MR. ATKINSON:

Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, the Chair is aware of

2

the time,

3

he prepared to proceed with under the programs

4

that are listed on 11-1 of your Details?

5

have Administration, Aquatics, Park Maintenance,

6

Planning Development, and on the next page,

7

Recreational Support Services programs.

10
11

We

Direct -- Deputy, are you prepared to

8
9

so I can ask first the Deputy, what is

let us know where we can proceed for this
evening?
MR. BUCK:

I -- I

I have -- my question I guess we

12

are going to do the rest -- what we don't do

13

tonight, we will do tomorrow?

14

are getting at?

15
16
17

CHAIR KANE:

Is that what we

So you are prepared to move forward with

all of them?
MR. BUCK:

I would like to start off with Recreation

18

and Support Services because Tamara is here, and

19

we can start with there, and then we can -- if

20

we still have time, we can go through the rest.

21

We can basically do them all, but let's,

22

Tamara is here,

23

in case we have to break.

24
25

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

since

I would rather start with that

Members, before we proceed,

I am

going to ask where you folks want to be, and
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1

this is where we are at right now.

2

on Recreation Support Services program, and if

3

you'd like, we can either adjourn for the

4

evening and then come back tomorrow.

5

defer the Parks Department until after we

6

figure

7

as the certification document, so we understand

8

where we are at.

9

We can take

We will

we discuss the rates and fees as well

And then the preference would be to,

10

once we complete that discussion, we can bring

11

back Parks for the final programs for

12

discussion, keeping in mind that tomorrow night

13

is also a night that we can go, and we still

14

have -- if you folks would like to get into a

15

discussion -

16

of the Mayor.

17

Departments that we have scheduled to come

18

forward.

Office of Management, and Office
Those are the two final

19

What is the pleasure of the Committee?

20

Ms. Johnson, comments?

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because I have a commitment

22

in West Maui that I have committed to for quite

23

some time now,

24

likely to participate in the Parks discussion,

25

you know.

I will not be able, more than

So--
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1

CHAIR KANE:

For tonight, are you talking about?

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

For tomorrow, when they come

3

back,

4

this evening.

5

with now -- that's why I have stayed because I

6

felt that Parks was really -- because that's

7

within my purview of my Committee.

8

to have an opportunity, but I will defer to

9

other Members.

10
11

So,

is not dealt with

I mean, the more we can deal

I would like

I am not going to hold other

Members up because of my schedule.
CHAIR KANE:

12
13

for whatever, you know,

Okay.

Members, any comments?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

I would like to see us do

14

Recreation Support Service since the Chief is

15

here.

16

CHAIR KANE:

Yes.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

At least get that part of it

18

done, then see where we are at when we are done

19

with that.

20

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Well, the Chair's intent is to at

21

least take on that -- that Division.

The

22

question is -- the Deputy has already indicated

23

that we can continue with other programs

24

tonight, but again,

25

the Chair agreed to go to nine o'clock and then

it comes down to, you know,
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1

after that,

2

Committee and give me your recommendation.

3
4

5
6

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

9

Yeah,

Services and adjourn,
CHAIR KANE:

7
8

it's up to you folks to guide the

I go Recreation Support

start fresh tomorrow.

Members, any other comments?
Mr. Mateo,

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

comment?

I am flexible.

I'm ready to

go.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Mr. Hokama, any comments?
Well, we're going to have to

12

decide how you want to -- how we want to work

13

late, Chairman, you know.

14

eat up time that we have dedicated for decision

15

making, and I would hate to have Members put in

16

a difficult situation with less time to make

17

those major decisions.

18

here to work.

19

To me, we're going to

And so,

for me,

I am

And I can -- but I would say that I am

20

very sensitive to the Members that need to

21

travel a lot farther than me to get my rest.

22

So -- and I can appreciate,

23

Mr. Mateo,

24

also.

25

with me, Chairman.

and I'm,

like

flexible for their consideration

But, you want to go midnight, that's fine
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Okay.

I will state my intention.

I am

2

here as long as all of you want to be here,

3

okay.

4

know -- at your will, Members.

5

let us know where we are going, and we will

6

just

you know what, so we will take on

7

this

this program right now, and then we will

8

cross the bridge when we get to it.

9

don't we just jump right in.

10

So,

I am here at your -- at your, you
So we -- just

So why

Members, if I can direct your attention,

11

please, to page, on your Details

12

Recreation is on page 11-26 of your Details, and

13

on your Program, it's 13-17.

14

excuse me.

Ms. Horcajo, would you like to provide

15

any comments in the A or -- and/or Band/or

16

C Accounts in their program area?

17

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you very much, Chairman Kane and

18

Council Members,

19

for my Deputy, John Buck, for allowing me to

20

continue here.

21

succinct and try and answer the questions as

22

quickly as possible.

23

for staying this evening and

I will try and be very brief and

As you folks know that my Division is

24

very large and encompasses the daily operations

25

of Parks management as well as the recreation
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

360

1

programs.

2

the Department do fall into this Division, so

3

therefore, once you get through this,

4

be easier.

5

So, the majority of the requests from

it should

The first A Account, expansion program,

6

noted on 11-26, is the inclusion recreation

7

specialist, and I

8

overview that the word "inclusion" is the new

9

buzzword for ADA therapeutic recreation

will briefly give you an

10

specialist, and basically, this position is

11

requested here as a result of the Wilson Okimoto

12

transition plan that was initiated through the

13

Skaff case with the County of Maui.

14

a recommendation that the transition plan had

15

made in more than one location in the plan.

16

we definitely feel that it is needed in our

17

Division.

18

I

And this is

So

would like to say not only that, but

19

as a Department member and a County member,

20

think we all need to know that we do need the

21

expertise In this area as well,

22

welcomed.

23

I

so it will be

And the request here for one body is --

24

this body will be wearing two hats.

25

lS

The request

for the staff member to not only provide
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1

direct service to our population, not only those

2

identified with specialty areas, but it could

3

also be our elderly population or -- that's why

4

the word inclusion, includes all people in our

5

community.

6

but service to our staff as well in terms of

7

training.

8

to appropriately accommodate members of our

9

community in our existing programs, not only in

Not only providing direct service

Our staff does need assistance in how

10

our recreation programs but our maintenance

11

programs as well at the parks.

12
13

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Horcajo, and I

forgive me for

interrupting.

14

MS. HORCAJO:

15

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
If -- Mr. Buck, if you can recall, did

16

we already have this discussion regarding the

17

expansion positions, and if so, then,

18

Ms. Horcajo, perhaps we can dispense with the

19

discussion of expansion positions, and we will

20

get right into if there's anything in particular

21

that you would like to note within your

22

within your areas of the A Account that you feel

23

need to be mentioned other than we understand

24

that there's raises, and we understand those

25

types of things.
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Primarily, you can

1

without objection,

2

Members -- you can get right into your B Account

3

requests to give us any indications or spikes in

4

various areas where -- other than a flat budget,

5

if you have areas where there's been increases

6

of significance that you can describe to us,

7

that I think will help us move along quite

8

nicely.

9

MR. BUCK:

Yes, Mr. Chair, you -- we did discuss the

10

expansion positions under the A Account during

11

the time we were talking about A

12

talking about the A.

13

inclusion specialist, the conversion of

14

part-time clerk typist to full-time, addition,

15

half time.

16

South, BMR in South, and I think it was a

17

half-time position for building maintenance

18

repair in Hana.

19

expansion positions already.

20

21

CHAIR KANE:

when we were

That included the

Some park caretaker positions in

Okay.

So we did discuss those

Thank you.

So, Members, other than the requests

22

that we have been making pretty consistently on

23

the level of vacancies within each of the

24

sections, if there's any -- if you would like to

25

note for us any areas, as an example, in Central
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1

Maui Parks, under your caretakers and recreation

2

assistant area, or in East Maui, etc.,

3

can note, perhaps,

4

amount of vacancies, we would like to know that

5

type of information as well, Mr. Buck.

6

MR. BUCK:

if you

if you have a significant

As far as the park caretakers,

I think why

7

we are having some challenges in the filling of

8

positions is the half timers that have been

9

assigned to West Maui.

And a lot of it,

10

unfortunately, has to do with the low

11

unemployment rate, but unfortunately

12

to say this, but those who have been applying or

13

showed interest are -- have not been passing the

14

drug test.

15

CHAIR KANE:

16

MR. BUCK:

Yeah.

I hate

Okay.

And then also, we do have some vacancies

17

in all of the districts as far as part-time

18

recreation aides.

19

are having with this is,

20

pretty low compared to some of the other jobs

21

that are out there for part-time.

22

if it does not -- I mean,

23

leave and some vacation benefits, but there's no

24

medical.

25

And I think the problem we
one, that the pay is

And second,

you do get some sick

We are re -- we are looking this over,
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1

and then we may corne In next year to maybe help

2

us with this is maybe to convert this to at

3

least half time so there is some medical

4

benefits, but that's not a topic of discussion

5

this year.

6

CHAIR KANE:

7

Okay.

Thank you.

Members, let's open it up for questions

8

on the A Account, if you have any particular

9

questions in this area,

and then we can move on

10

into the B Account, and let Ms. Horcajo get into

11

that area.

Yes, Mr. Hokama.

12
13

Any questions here?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Just one quick question.

This is what we got from Public Works

14
15

earlier in the day, and this is regarding your

16

proposed expansions for Clerk Typist III.

17

believe the comment we got from Public Works

18

Department was that DPS had recommended they go

19

for a Clerk III because many couldn't pass the

20

typing skills test,

21

Typist III.

I believe,

I

for Clerk

Has DPS informed you of a similar

22
23

situation, asked you to consider to change from

24

Clerk Typist III to a Clerk III?

25

MR. BUCK:

We have had this discussion,

you know,
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1

with a couple of -- or one vacancy that we have

2

in the Director's office right now.

3

you know -- we had some movement around, some

4

promotions.

Somebody,

Unfortunately, one of the reasons why we

5
6

have not gone in that direction, a lot of our

7

forms still requires to have some typing

8

ability, so we are still looking at Clerk

9

Typist Ills because there is

that is one of

10

the directions that we could go towards is just

11

going to a Clerk III versus a clerk typist, but

12

just from our experiences in our Department, we

13

still have a lot of old-fashioned forms that

14

still need to be typed.

15

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

16
17

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.
Any further questions in this area,

18
19

Okay.

Members?
Seeing none, Ms. Horcajo, if we can Jump

20

21

right into the B Account, starting on 11-36 of

22

the Details.

23

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.

The B Account for all

24

districts shows increases of 5 percent in the

25

sewer rate, 5 percent in the water rate,
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1

15 percent for electric, and a 30 percent

2

increase in gas expenses.

3

five districts across the board.

4

Let's see.

And that's in all

The significant change, if I

5

can generalize and maybe bring things to a

6

close,

7

B budget account,

8

dollars, basically, moving money around from the

9

6132 Professional Services account and

if you look at the bottom line of my
which is 450-plus thousand

10

distributing that money throughout my B budget

11

account, which will account for an increase in

12

the youth -- the development program, which is

13

for our youth services program, which is for our

14

National Alliance for Youth Sports.

15

certifying our coaches so that they are covered

16

with liability insurance.

17

want me to -- let's see -- thank you.

18

That shows that increase there.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MS. HORCAJO:

21

Under Other Costs,

We are

And that's -- do you
11 37.

is that it?

Right, with the 6365 in that line item,

for Development Services.

22

CHAIR KANE:

23

MS. HORCAJO:

Okay.
Those are the main changes,

I believe,

24

in my B Account, unless you have specific

25

questions.
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CHAIR KANE:

Members, throughout, it is -

other than

2

the 5, 5, 15, and 30 percent increases, it's

3

flat.

4

MS. HORCAJO:

5

CHAIR KANE:

6

MR. BUCK:

Right.
Okay, Members.

If I may, Chairman Kane, one of the

7

increases that we are showing is in 915152, on

8

11-41, for 6112, contractual services.

9

CHAIR KANE:

10

MR. BUCK:

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MR. BUCK:

23
Page 11-41.
Thank you.
And that's an increase of -- from 771,980

13

to 791,980, a 3 percent increase in Ka Lima.

14

They request

15

business has gone up, they have requested a

16

3 percent increase.

17

of the changes that should be noted.

18

CHAIR KANE:

19

MR. BUCK:

20
21

because the cost of doing

And it's the

that's one

That's a 20,000 increase?
Approximately 20,000.

So 3 percent

it

comes out to about a 3 percent increase.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, shall we give you a

22

moment just to -- again, if you want to peruse

23

anything in particular.

24
25

Ms. Johnson, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

My question would be just
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1

with regard to the Consent Decree that we had,

2

or the ADA program accessibility and a lot of

3

our operations, you know, we don't have to

4

provide it in every program, but maintaining a

5

flat budget for the most part,

6

enable us to accomplish what we have to

7

accomplish or what you have to accomplish in

8

order to move forward with some of the

9

modifications in our programs?

10

is that going to

Or do you need

income?
Because basically our recommendations

11

12

out of our Committee were that we need to

13

comply, we need to move forward with that and

14

support it.

15

MS. HORCAJO:

So do you have any comment, Tamara?

Thank you very much, Councilmember,

16

because we also want to be sure that we are

17

staffed appropriately in that area as well as

18

others, and we believe that with the movement of

19

the money that we moved from Professional

20

Services, we are able to do that.

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR KANE:

23
24
25

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Any further questions, Members, up and

through 11-44, from 11-36?
Ms. Anderson, you have your hand up?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

3
4

Yeah.

Ms. Horcajo, does Ka Lima do any work
In -

in the West Maui Parks?

MS. HORCAJO:

No, they do not.

They concentrate the

5

majority of their work in the Central and South

6

areas,

7

only.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Because we are being asked

8

to add three park caretakers to South Maui.

9

will that affect the Ka Lima contract?

10

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.

How

We are hoping that the

11

three additional workers,

12

with our Administration, the union,

13

Lima, that we will be able to move Ka Lima 0

14

Maui from our highly used beach park areas,

15

mainly the Kamaoles as well as Kalama Park, to

16

the more inland parks, perhaps the less used

17

parks.

18

in working together
and with Ka

We have not entered into consultation

19

with them at this time yet, but we are working

20

on looking at our numbers and aligning hours of

21

service so that we are able to trade that out

22

if -- if all parties agree.

23

would be a benefit to our community and our

24

visitors and safety for our families at the

25

beach parks if we can better staff those beach

We do think it
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parks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

that.

4

it.

Thank you very much for

South Maui people will really appreciate
Thank you.

5

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama.

6

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman,

just a question on page

7

11 40 at the bottom, please.

8

Ms. Horcajo could just share some comment with

9

the -- under services, those two, code 6129 and

10

Maybe Mr. Buck or

6132, please.

11

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Regarding Other Services, and the

13

other subaccount would have been the

14

Professional Services.

15
16

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you very much.
The 6129, Other Services, as you can

17

see, has increased 110,000.

18

was taken from that 6132.

19

that's part of the movement of the funds.

20

And that 110,000
As you will see,

The 6129 has accommodated the repair and

21

maintenance program mainly for our playgrounds.

22

We have cleanings and playground upgrade repair

23

and maintenance program as well as our table and

24

chairs operations.

25

We are moving some additional funding
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1

into this account,

I believe $10,000, to

2

accommodate the inclusion specialist program,

3

which will allow us to also hire assistants,

4

professional services in, like, specialty sports

5

or specialty training areas.
We do have a breakout of what those

6

7

funds exactly will be for,

8

that forwarded to your office.

9
10

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

No,

if you would like

I think -- I am

satisfied with the explanation you just gave us.

11

MS. HORCAJO:

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Mateo, followed by Ms. Johnson.

15

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman, thank you very much.

16

Those contracts you have for,

17

Lima, on South Maui and Central District, you

18

have got contracts for other similar

19

organizations in other districts?

20

MS. HORCAJO:

like, Ka

We do have the Molokai Occupational

21

Center, who does rehabilitation, has a contract

22

with us on Molokai.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

24

MS. HORCAJO:

25

Are those the only two?

Under that specific line item here on

page 11-41, yes, they are the only two.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

1

372

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Then, how are they

how are

2

they assessed or evaluated in terms of the job

3

that they are doing?

4

MS. HORCAJO:

We currently maintain a contract with

5

both MOC, Molokai Occupational, and Ka Lima,

6

which stipulates the services that are to be

7

provided, and our maintenance supervisors are

8

required to do weekly checks of the services

9

provided.

We also have a citation system that

10

alerts the vendor, the contractor, if we don't

11

think their service is up to par.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And that supervisor is a

13

full-time County employee supervisor that goes

14

out and monitor the work that had been performed

15

in the parks?

16

MS. HORCAJO:

That's correct.

It is our parks

17

maintenance supervisor on Molokai or in the

18

district where the service is provided.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22

Thank you.

I am done.

Thank you.
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, on page 11-39, and this

23

would be for West Maui parks, contractual

24

service, 6112.

25

45,000; and then this year, 58,000.

In '05, it was 92,155; in '06,
And so can
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1

you just glve a little idea of why that's

2

fluctuating.

3

MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.

I can.

That's for our

4

wonderful Maui Invitational.

5

line item was put in specifically for that, that

6

program.

7

Basically, that

It was decreased because of all the

8

support we were getting in-house and now we see

9

that we do need that assistance again.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And do you get any

11

contributions whatsoever from Maui Invitational

12

to help support that program?

13

MS. HORCAJO:

As far as the Parks Department,

I

14

believe they are one of the stellar partners

15

that we have in providing programs.

16

truly support their activity and the community

17

as well as the venue itself in assisting our

18

maintenance staff in providing support

19

throughout their event.
Okay.

They do

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

But I am looking more

21

at monetary.

22

the air-conditioning.

23

other things.

24

that they do contribute a great deal, but I

25

wanted to kind of understand that -- the $58,000

I know we -- I know we paid for

But I

I know there are some
just, you know,

I recognize
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1

that we are expending, if that's exclusively for

2

their Maui Invitational program, what would we

3

be receiving back in terms of in kind?

4

MR. BUCK:

I can probably answer that.

That 58,000

5

is not just for the Maui Invitational.

6

one of the reasons why the increase, because

7

there's less and less our staff can do or, you

8

know, using workline because of all the other

9

projects going on.

10

That's

So we had to increase it.

Maui Invitational in the past has helped

11

with,

12

the floor -- the gym floor and, you know,

13

other things.

14

there is -- is -- is -- was the onus of us

15

putting in the air-conditioning in the

16

gym.

17

I think, with some of the repainting of
some

Having the Maui Invitational

in the

And I am -- from my understanding,

18

talking with Jeff Anderson, the West District

19

supervisor, they are looking at -- at one time,

20

when I first started with the County 20 years

21

ago, they used to have conventions that would

22

take place in the -- in the gymnasium because it

23

can hold, you know, three -- 3,000, in

24

theater-type seating, that he is now getting

25

calls from some of the people in the visitor
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1

industry to do -- start bringing back some of

2

the conventions back to the Civic Center because

3

it now is air conditioned.

4

And we are seeing more and more

5

activities taking place at the Civic Center, and

6

because -- and we see more things happening at

7

the Civic Center.

8

has, you know, has allowed us to really

9

concentrate on putting some funding and

Just having the event there

10

upgrading it.

11

direct dollars to the County, but I think an

12

indirect, the benefits that the facility will be

13

providing to not only the community -- they have

14

an excellent facility now, but they also get to

15

see some outstanding basketball and some other

16

programs, and also the possibility of more

17

convention business taking place on the West

18

Side using that as a venue for,

19

or convention.

20

already.

21

But I think we will see, not the

And there's been some talks

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

So this 58,000 is for

22

all,

23

exclusively Maui Invitational?

24
25

say, a seminar

including Maui Invitational, not just

MS. HORCAJO:

I would like to apologize, if I can,

because it does include all contractual services
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within the district.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

MS. HORCAJO:

4

Okay.

the --

Yeah

I -- the increase was to help support,

but you are correct in that.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

MS. HORCAJO:

Okay.

And if you look.

East District is

7

47,000; Central, 40,000 In contract services,

8

and it is the services.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah,

I

just wanted to

make sure --

11

MS. HORCAJO:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

Okay.

I apologize.
because I thought it was

kind of a lot for just one event.

14

MS. HORCAJO:

Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And then,

I think you -- you

16

might have covered this, but anyway, on 11-41,

17

the rec staff, I think there was a movement, and

18

you said something about the $175,000.

19

just looking at the overall Fiscal Year '06 was

20

451,130.

21

on 6/30/07 is 410,730.

24
25

And then Fiscal Year request is six --

So that is less, and where -- where,

22
23

But I am

again, was that money moving to?
MS. HORCAJO:

Thank you.

That is reflected in the

6132.
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090 Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

377

1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

MS. HORCAJO:

Okay.

That was reduced.

And that line

3

item -- let me find it specifically, so I can

4

quote the correct amount.

5
6

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It's under services, right.

6132 was 175,000, which was now reduced to zero.
MS. HORCAJO:

That is correct.

And that line item

8

was included in our budget last Fiscal Year for

9

the Environmental Assessment.

10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

11

MS. HORCAJO:

Okay.

And we no longer are -- since that

12

project has been completed, we wanted to

13

transfer those funds to other areas where they

14

are needed.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

16

MS. HORCAJO:

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

MS. HORCAJO:

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Correct.
Was it with the ORAP?

With the ORAP, that is correct.
And I look forward to

receiving that report.

22

MS. HORCAJO:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

CHAIR KANE:

25

And that was for the

EA for .

17

21

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you.

Any more questions, Members, B Account?
Okay.

Members, we have an equipment
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1

request under Recreation and Support Services,

2

on page 11-45 and 11 46,

3

some expansion vehicles, self-explanatory pages.

4

Any specific requests for clarification on the

5

requests?
Hearing none, Members, we are done with

6

7
8

9

several replacements,

Recreation and Support Services.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Chairman,

just one quick one,

please.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Mr. Hokama.

11

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

12

bleachers,

13

aquatic, Kihei aquatic program, Mr. Buck?

14

MR. BUCK:

No.

I

Page 11-46, those tow-behind
just am assuming that's for the

We get a lot of requests for,

when we

15

have special events, to be moving the

16

bleachers

17

forklift.

18

are being -- after a while, they start getting

19

destroyed.

20

requests, and more and more special events every

21

year, we are doing more and more.

22

bleachers around,

and we are using

What is happening is -

is that they

And we are getting a lot of

So we are looking at getting these

23

tow-behind, which is a ten-row, and they are

24

either 180, 260, or we are looking at,

25

the 260 capacity, and getting two of them.

I think,
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One of the things that we are also

1

2

looking at in the future is doing a -- working

3

with the Maui Symphony doing the Concert in the

4

Park series, where we can just take these

5

bleachers and set up a little venue.

6

And in the future requests, probably

7

next year, we will be looking for a portable

8

stage that lS

9

trailer, but you unfold it, and it is a stage.

that folds.

It's like a

10

Because we are also getting a lot of requests

11

from our maintenance staff for all these special

12

events to be building stages in the various

13

districts.

14

And what our plan is is that the

15

tow-behind only takes one guy with a truck.

16

goes over and pulls it up,

17

just pushes a button,

18

now, you need a -- you need a forklift guy and a

19

couple of guys to guide it through, down the

20

streets.

21

say, if we have a big event in one

22

district to take extra bleachers up and that

23

without hauling them in the back of a truck or

24

something.

25

He

and the he needs

it's hydraulic; whereas,

And we do not have the capability,
another

So this is just to, hopefully, to
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1

provide more services as we increase the number

2

of requests for our Department, but also try to

3

decrease the usage of manpower in the future.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

You have -- since this is an

5

expansion, you have the space to store it

6

properly to get some good life out of the

7

equipment?

8
9

MR. BUCK:

Well, we will probably be storing it at

one of our facilities.

Because of the amount of

10

requests that we get, it will probably be moving

11

on a constant basis, so there probably wouldn't

12

be in storage that long.

13

probably be stored at the football stadium with

14

a tarp over the top of it, if they are not being

15

used.

16

too long, because we got a lot of requests.

17

But I don't see them sitting in one spot

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So the request is -- use for a

18

fee?

19

Costing us $60,000.

20

MR. BUCK:

If we did, that would

They are able to use it for a fee?

It's costing us, you know,

I mean,

just to

21

replace the bleachers in the past or just to

22

increase the need of bleachers, you know.

23

the increased needs in -- as our programs go, we

24

don't have the bleachers available.

25

out and buy -- actually, what we should do is
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1

buy a lot more bleachers for more of our fields,

2

but then we come with the off seasons, where you

3

might not be using those bleachers.

4

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Maybe I made a wrong assumption.

5

I was thinking when you said that, you know,

6

had a lot of requests, this is not outside of

7

the Department's requests?

8

about departmental requests for the use of --

9

MR. BUCK:

We -- we get tons.

11

something going on.

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13
14

You are just talking

For the use of our facilities,

10

right.

Every weekend, there's

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:

Let's expand a little bit on that,

and

15

then the -- then the more overriding question

16

back to,

17

you

I think, Member Johnson's area.
First, on that, because of the

18

convention discussion and the higher use and

19

request for Lahaina Civic Center, are we being

20

put in positions of having to waive fees for the

21

use of the facility to get some return back on

22

the money that we are putting in?

23

Only because there's been situations

24

where we have gone into contracts where we have

25

waived -- we have waived the fees because we
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1

felt it was an attractive party, if you will,

2

for lack of another word.

3

that position in this particular case at the

4

Lahaina Civic Center?

5

MR. BUCK:

No,

I

Are we being put in

don't -- I don't -- I

really don't

6

think so because I think those who are making

7

the request or using it are doing it based on

8

the fee structure as per ordinance.

9

I

have had -- and I think it's going to

10

be a topic of discussion In Ms. Johnson's

11

Committee in the future,

12

people who are taking advantages of the system,

13

where a for-profit entity will use a non-profit

14

status, work with a non-profit to get by the lot

15

lower fees.

16

lS

that there are

And we have received some communications

17

where some of the non-profits groups have

18

actually have been ripped off by these

19

for-profit entities.

20

knows which one I

21

had this discussion before.

And Councilmember Johnson

am referring to, and we have

22

Unless it is a big activity,

23

have only -- I think a few, very few that we

24

have had where we have had contractual things

25

going on.

But usually,

like we

if somebody is using the
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1

facility, they pay whatever

2

ordinance.

whatever is by

We don't waive that -- that much.

Again, you brought up that we do have

3

4

several events that are contractual, but besides

5

that, they do pay, but I think there's -- I

6

personally

7

think some people are going through the system,

8

are abusing the system.

it is a personal feeling, that I

You know, we have non-profits that are

9
10

trying to do fundraisers.

So we do have that

11

one set fee that's a lower fee than someone with

12

a commercial entity because, you know, the

13

more -- the more funding they can do or more

14

money they can raise, it's less they would have

15

to ask for grants later on.
But I kind of have a problem where we

16
17

see where a for-profit entity will come in and

18

work with a nonprofit and give them -- and I

19

think it's something that we need to discuss.
But as far as the guidelines and

20

21

ordinance, they are paying their fair share but

22

taking abuse of the system.

23

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Sounds like an interesting

24

discussion in the Parks Committee so we can

25

close some loopholes for those apparent abuses
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that are occurrlng.

2

And the other question on the

on the

3

tow-behind bleachers, to be more specific, the

4

needs for these to be moved around, and we have

5

had the discussion, remember, Members, to get

6

bleachers in different areas.

7

But are they for County-related

8

functions that are either sponsored by or

9

or -- or co-sponsored, thank you, or are these

10

functions that you are referring to things that

11

for-profit entities are renting the park space

12

to use for a function?

13

know, HHSAA or -- or for whatever reasons.

14

those issues that are included in your comments?

15

MR. BUCK:

Or even a State, you
Are

A lot of our requests are from groups that

16

the County co-sponsors, and usually a lot of the

17

non-profit or the DOE or the various schools.

18

If

19

bleachers,

20

do -- we try not to take any of our equipment

21

outside of a County park property because it

22

would just -- we just physically can't do it, do

23

all the requests for -- to go outside our Parks

24

property.

25

there is a rental fee for
if it's a for-profit,

but usually we

We have worked with other Departments,
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1

if they are doing something special, non-County

2

property, but that's working with the

3

Department -- with another Department.

4

lot of these requests are either co-sponsored by

5

the County and taking place on County property.

6

CHAIR KANE:

But a

I heard you say "try" not to take the

7

equipment off of County property to be used on

8

non-County property.

9

there's some level of discretion that you folks

Does that mean that

10

use to decide whether or not equipment can be

11

used off of property and for some other

12

function?

13

MR. BUCK:

I -- I am going to leave that -- I will

14

leave that to -- I will leave that to -- the

15

request comes a lot from the Recreation

16

Division, so I will leave it to Tamara.

17
18
19
20
21

CHAIR KANE:

Ms. Horcajo, are you prepared to

respond?
MS. HORCAJO:

I think so.

I think I might be a

little less tired, here.
The need for bleachers in our park

22

system is great.

We have the Hawaii Cup,

for

23

example, that has youth from allover the State

24

coming to play on many of our fields.

25

of our soccer fields don't have bleachers,

And many
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1

period.

2

a specific field where there isn't currently

3

bleachers, then we will move them in to

4

accommodate the crowds.

5

6

CHAIR KANE:

So,

if there's a big game scheduled at

Let me -- let me narrow it down, then,

so you know where you going with this.

7

Let's talk about are there issue -- are

8

there functions what are non-sport related that

9

are used for private purposes on public parks

10

and that you would use these bleachers to

11

accommodate, you know, an event that's a

12

non-sporting event?

13

MS. HORCAJO:

Chairman, the two that I can think of

14

that we have assisted would be the Paia reunion,

15

which was held at Paia school, we moved some

16

bleachers there.

17

accommodate the Lahainaluna reunion that just

18

occurred.

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

MS. HORCAJO:

21
22

And I believe we also tried to

Okay.
Those are the two events that we did,

think, try and support with bleachers.
CHAIR KANE:

Very good.

Okay.

No,

23

your response,

24

Outside of the sporting event

25

MS. HORCAJO:

and I appreciate

and just helps to bring clarity.

Right.
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CHAIR KANE:

-- I think all of us want to support

2

the kids and all that, but just so we understand

3

the parameters of the use of the -- of the

4

equipment and the facility.

5

question was asked.

6

MS. HORCAJO:

That's why the

That's the type of events that I

7

believe John was referring to.

8

numerous requests for May Day assistance, and we

9

cannot always accommodate that.

10

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you.

11
12

Members, any final questions in this
area?

13
14

And we have had

Hearing none, Ms. Horcajo, you can have
dinner now.

15

MS. HORCAJO:

16

CHAIR KANE:

Thank you all very much.
Okay, Members.

Good luck.

The Chair is ready to

17

move on.

18

requested maybe we don't go moving on.

19

I know some of you, you know,

Mr. Buck, who are you prepared to bring

20

forward as far as the program is concerned, or

21

can you handle it on your own at this point in

22

time?

23

MR. BUCK:

I was planning to take care of the rest of

24

the -- the programs, basically just due --

25

because of the staff not being available, on
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vacation or personal emergencies or being sick.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Members, without objections, why

3

don't we just move through,

4

Administration.

5

Members, you can find on 11-5 of your Details.

6

And let's take a swing at it, and then we will

7

take a recess, and then we will decide where we

8

are going, Members.

9

MR. BUCK:

start

Administration program,

Mr. Chair,

I would like to make one

10

comment.

11

as positions and some fundings.

12

what was called a volunteer action program, and

13

the previous Administration made a decision to

14

basically eliminate that program; however, we

15

have kept the staffing that was part of that

16

program, and we moved around different places.

17

There was some movement around, as far
We used to have

And if we look on 11-4, we have created

18

a new program.

19

And the Volunteer Action Coordinator, what's her

20

previous title and we are still working on her

21

new title,

22

and training.

23

position allocated for last year for the safety

24

officer.

25

It's called safety and training.

is going to be heading that safety
And there was an expansion

So there is some changes in some of the
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1

funding as we go down in regards to that.

2

there's a decrease, that's because -

3

lncrease,

4

funding came from,

5

into the safety and training.

6

CHAIR KANE:

or

from over last year, that's where the

Mr. Buck,

from volunteer action went

just to clarify, you said

7

something about a program started from the

8

previous Administration.

9

in its fourth year,

10
11

So if

This Administration is

so can you clarify what your

comments are, please.
MR. BUCK:

The -- there -- we had -- we had some

12

positions that were under their own program,

13

what was called volunteer action program, which

14

was

15

under the previous Administration.

16

- basically, the program was eliminated

The last couple of years, we have been

17

working at moving some of the staff around to

18

better service the Department.

19

year, with the expansion position of the safety

20

officer, we created the volunteer

21

and training, which is on page 11-4, under A

22

position, A Account,

23

number, who used to be the old Volunteer Action

24

Coordinator.

25

915029,

And for this

that safety

is the new program

She is going to be heading the safety
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1

and training program.

2

the title change.

3

address what she is actually doing now, but

4

she's been doing this type of work for the last

5

several years is the training

6

training in various issues which are required by

7

Federal law, and also coordinating the safety

8

safety training that we are providing to our

9

staff.

10

And that's just more to

both the

I hope that clarified it.

11

CHAIR KANE:

12

MR. BUCK:

13

We are still working on

Okay.

Continue into the B Account.

B Account.

Under 915017, 11 15, there was

really no increase.

14

On page 11-6, we,

I think, discuss under

15

grants that 915023, workline program, because

16

the

17

not going to be able to supply that extra

18

workline that was In last year's budget, we

19

reduced that, that amount.

20

one line, because they were unable to provide

21

for next year due to staff shortages.

22

the training -- I mean, the prison was

That was a cost of

On page 11-7, you have a total of

23

$15,000, which is 915029, which is the safety

24

and training section.

25

out of the old volunteer action program.

The funding for that came
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Okay.
Or community services, I am sorry.

3

was 15,000 allocated last year for 915021.

4

was dropped to zero.

5

915029.

6

Administration.

7

CHAIR KANE:

That

And created 15,000 for

That's the -- one of the big changes in

Okay.

Members, any questions here?

You know, we see the Maui Coastal Land

8
9

There

Trust request.

I think that was briefly

10

discussed already, so we know where that is as

11

far as the request.

12

As well as the Lahaina Restoration

13

Foundation, any additional comments there,

14

Mr. -- Mr. Buck?

15
16
17

MR. BUCK:

No, we discussed that last time when we

were talking about grants.
CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

And then the skate park

18

management -- Ms. Johnson, I know, I think you

19

had a question there, if I am not mistaken?

20

am sorry.

21
22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

yes, I did, from last

time --

23

CHAIR KANE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

Yes

I

Yes.
-- because my concern is that

the cost has escalated to a point where, I know
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1

we were not paylng YMCA enough, and I have my

2

own personal opinion about the contract having

3

remained where it was, but that's another story.

4

The

the thing that I am trying to

5

understand, though, is that it's so high.

6

we underpaying YMCA that much?

7

MR. BUCK:

In answer to your question, yes.

Were

YMCA and

8

the Boys and Girls Club were being underpaid.

9

think the -- the -- working closely with the

I

10

Boys and Girls Club, they gave us a -- more of a

11

better estimate of what it was costing.

12

But I agree, that was one of the

13

challenges the YMCA was having was they were

14

getting peanuts for the amount of

15

responsibilities they had.

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And -- and because I

17

investigated on my own,

18

one thing that YMCA was able to do is because

19

they had established a track record, and they

20

also had a very supportive Board, plus they were

21

subsidizing with their own money from their own

22

programs, that's why they were actually able to

23

deliver those services.

24
25

I really think that the

Because Boys and Girls Club doesn't have
those same kinds of resources, and they're more
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

BF 4/19/06

393

1

heavily dependent on the County for grant money,

2

to me, the one rub that I have about this whole

3

thing is that we are paying, through a grant to

4

Boys and Girls Club, and they are turning

5

around, and then we are giving it in another

6

area.

7

whatsoever.

8

MR. BUCK:

9

And that makes absolutely no sense to me

Appreciate your comments.
I will -- one thing I will say with the

10

YMCA, they did a lot of -- they were

11

supplementing their income with a lot of camps

12

and special events taking place at the

13

skateboard parks.

14

were doing to be able to help them offset some

15

of their expenses.

16

That was one thing that they

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, and you know,

I just

17

you know, it's just like robbing Peter to pay

18

Paul.

And for me, it just doesn't sit really

19

well.

But, you know,

20

Mr. Buck.

21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR KANE:

it's not your fault,

Thank you.

Thank you.
Mr. Mateo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Mr. Buck, on 11-7, the skate park
management, the 112,000 shown -- shown there,
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1

what is the scope of the 112,000?

2

it's going to provide skate park repair,

3

enhancement, or whatever,

4

How many skate parks?

5

MR. BUCK:

It's going

for how many parks?

Well, we originally had

with two in

6

mind, but I think there's a -- a call for taking

7

a look at West Side and also Molokai, so we

8

would probably to have re-work the scope of the

9

programs.

10

But that's -- for right now, we are just

11

looking at the two because they are the ones

12

being really monitored a lot.

13

The one in South,

for whatever reasons,

14

we are having some issues down there,

15

are spending

16

spending a lot of time down there; hopefully,

17

that they will make some inroads soon.

18

some attitude change -- some changes in -- I

19

don't want to say attitude, but they need to

20

make some adjustments as far as,

21

those people who are using it.

22

good kids down there, but we have been having

23

some problems with a few,

24

quite difficult for the Boys and Girls Club at

25

this time.

so they

the Boys and Girls Club is

There's

I guess, with
There's a lot of

and it's making it
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

So, but the -- the

2

Department is also looking at additional and

3

more than just the two parks at this particular

4

point, so it is -- you are still flexible enough

5

In -- in spending these funds for,

6

parks that are not among the two that would

7

be -- you recognize as .

8
9

MR. BUCK:

say, skate

I really don't want to answer without

putting my foot in my mouth.
yeah,

No, but, you know,

10

but -

I mean, we are looking at the two,

11

but there if there's a need, we would have to go

12

back and see if we can make some adjustments for

13

the other two sites.

14

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

15

MR. BUCK:

Thank you very much, Mr. Buck.

But I also think in the future when we do

16

skateboard parks, we are going to look at

17

building parks that won't require monitoring.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

20

21

CHAIR KANE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

Hallelujah.

Okay.

Mr. Molina, thank you.

Mr. Buck,

Thank you.
just following up on Member

24

Mateo's questions as far as other sites, over at

25

Kalama School, that used to be a skate park, any
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1

future consideration to reopening that?

2

I know you guys have now building materials

3

sitting in that place and all kinds of other

4

odds and ends.

5

the Parks plans anymore to reopen that up as a

6

skate park?

7

MR. BUCK:

Because

Is that pretty much not part of

Not at this point.

If there is a -- say,

8

a call for it, we would have to look at a CIP

9

funding for that because we did have a

10

skateboard park there.

It was being monitored.

11

But it was also made out of wood,

12

got destroyed real fast.

so it kind of

13

And when it -- it's behind closed gates,

14

because you don't have a monitor there, the kids

15

wait until, basically, after hours to jump the

16

fence and they just go -- whatever needs to be

17

done.

18

But as I said before, i f we are going to

19

go into new areas for skateboard parks, we are

20

going to be doing them where they are concrete

21

and they are not going to be over the four foot,

22

whatever the height limit is, and so we don't

23

have to monitor.

24

park's open, and then closed -- when the park

25

closes for the evening, then the whole thing is

They will be open when the
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closed.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

Chair.

4

CHAIR KANE:

5

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you,

Any further questions in this area,

Members?

6
7

397

We are in admin.
Mr. Hokama.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

I just was curious, Mr. Buck, on

8

the utilities, you don't have any subaccount for

9

electricity.

Is that just a -- you know,

10

assuming your offices and whatnot at War

11

Memorial Complex and where your CIP coordinators

12

and whatnot doing their plans, all using lights.

13

Is it being charged somewhere else in your

14

Department?

15

MR. BUCK:

Yeah.

The whole War Memorial Complex

16

comes under Central Maui District, the gym.

17

Everything is kind of on one meter.

18

Director's office, and the CIP office, and the

19

new Aquatics office, and eventually the

20

Recreation office, the new recreation office,

21

will all be on that complex under one meter.

22

it will all come under Central Maui District.

23

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So the

So

And I can -- so why would we --

24

why is the Department then choosing to break out

25

water by each Division instead of doing it all
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under Central Maui Park?
MR. BUCK:

Each Division, if they have water,

is

3

probably because there's a meter that's charged

4

to their program or their location,

5

maintenance, even though the maintenance office

6

is at War Memorial, they do have -- the water

7

that's used at Kapaniwai is charged to that

8

Division.

9

like

Aquatics.

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

So Admin has their own water

10

meter, and then Planning and Development has

11

their own water meter?

12

MR. BUCK:

No.

13

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Again, you know, Chairman,

I

14

can -- I am happy to move on and let Mr. Buck be

15

able to respond either during the recess or

16

later in the meeting.

17

CHAIR KANE:

18
19
20

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any further questions, Members, in this
area?
Hearing none, Members, the Chair is

21

going to call for a very brief recess, and at

22

that time,

23

have staff touch base with you on whether we go

24

ahead and just adjourn for the evening and start

25

fresh again tomorrow.

I will either touch base with you or

So I am going to just
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1

take a brief recess.

2

and we will come right back.

3

Five-minute recess.

4

RECESS:

9:40 p.m.

5

RECONVENE:

9:45 p.m.

6

CHAIR KANE:

(Gavel.)

We will take five minutes,
Okay, Members?

(Gavel.)

Okay, Members, we are

7

reconvened.

8

the planning and development program, where we

9

have equivalent personnel of seven, and a total

Members, let's go ahead and take on

10

FY '07 request of $395,000, rounded off.

11

I can please direct your attention to .

12

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

13

CHAIR KANE:

11 24, Chairman.

Thank you.

14

your Details.

15

there.

So if

11-24.

Members, 11-24 of

And 11-25 would be your B Account

This is a flat budget, Members.

16

Any questions under the A or B?

17

And there is -- there is no C Account on

18

this particular Division.

19

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

20

CHAIR KANE:

21
22

No.

Any questions?
Ms. Johnson.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yeah, my -- my only question

23

would be

and I don't know if you can answer

24

it, John

would be because so many times, you

25

know, and particularly I will just use Napili
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1

Park as an example, because it seems to take so

2

long to move forward with some of our projects

3

and the design, and the community often lodges

4

complaints about the length of time that it

5

takes.

6

flat budget if we have more projects coming into

7

the mix and we need support staff to monitor

8

what's going on?

9

MR. BUCK:

Is this a realistic budget maintaining a

I'm really glad you asked that question.

10

I am going to be very delicate in what I have to

11

say because I don't want to really offend a lot

12

of people, okay.

13

It has been a challenge on some of these

14

projects.

15

had is filling the positions.

16

One of the challenges that we have

There has been some misunderstanding as

17

far as -- I really don't want to get into

18

detail, but we had not filled a couple of

19

positions just because of some misunderstanding

20

as far as pay grades and things like that.

21

think we have solved that problem,

22

hopefully that we will be fully staffed.

23

are,

24

short.

25

sick and another one who -- he's getting better

I

so we're
We

like, two positions -- two staff members
And we do have one that's been pretty
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1

now.

2

hopefully that's going to maybe reduce some of

3

the problems.

4

He's been sick, too.

So we are

The other issue that we have is, and why

5

it takes so long to do a project, is we may be

6

ready to go, but just the process that we have

7

to go through,

8

needs -- wants to do a project, takes a very

9

long time.

10

just like any other person who

And that's just the

we have to go through.

that's what

So it does take a while.

And one of the problems that we are

11

12

facing right now is because,

13

that we have to go through, it -- it ties up a

14

lot of time even in the conceptual phases doing

15

the

16

getting permits and things like that.

17

process takes a long time.

18

delicate on how I say this.

19
20

21

just the process

with the consultant work and things,

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Just the

I am being very

I -- I know, because I -- I

am familiar with some of the issues.
And, Mr. Chair,

I think one of the

22

difficulties -- and I will say it,

if Mr. Buck

23

is too polite to say it

24

difficulties we seem to be having is that the

25

scrutiny seems inconsistent with what is being

one of the
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given -- and specifically by Planning.

2

It's very difficult to move a lot of the

3

projects forward because when other much more

4

intensive projects just seem to sail on through,

5

poor little Parks comes with what I consider

6

minor, minor projects, and they are put through

7

unbelievable hoops.

8

that -- you know, and it is not just our Parks

9

Department, it's other Departments.

And that is a complaint

So I know that Planning -- and I don't

10
11

know what the solution would be.

12

really concerns me because it

13

financial resources and a lot of human resources

14

just to monitor all these things.

15

know what the solution is, but I appreciate

16

that, Mr. Buck.

lS

But this
taking a lot of

So I don't

Do you still believe that with the

17
18

funding that you have in this area, with a flat

19

budget, though, that you are going to be able to

20

improve on the quality,

21

constraint, or are we still facing the same

22

issues with regard to,

23

forward?

24
25

MR. BUCK:

let's say,

or the time

I guess, moving projects

I think we -- like I said, we have had

some challenges in -- in -- as far as the
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1

think we have two vacancies right now, but one

2

is -- is -- somebody is temporarily assigned in

3

that position.

4

have got things worked out where we will be able

5

to move ahead to fill those positions.

6

are some people in some other Departments or

7

even some other agencies who have expressed

8

interests in coming into our Department and

9

working those positions.

I think we have -- I think we

There

So hopefully, that -- if we get those

10
11

positions filled,

our staff time, they would

12

have

13

work on per person so they would be able to

14

maybe ex -- expedite their end of it.

15

But again, as I said,

our staff would have less projects to

16

polite.

17

has not been with our staff.

Our experiences on some of the delays

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

19

CHAIR KANE:

20

21
22

I want to be very

Thank you very much.

Any questions in this area, Members?
Hearing none, Members, we will go ahead

and wrap it up here for this evening.
And Mr. Buck, we will have staff in

23

touch with you.

The intention will most likely

24

be that you folks will be in the afternoon, but

25

we are not quite sure when because we intend to
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1

take up rates,

2

certification tomorrow, Members, starting off

3

with that, and then we will get back to -- we

4

will finish up with Parks, Aquatics as well as

5

their -- I believe it's Maintenance, yeah,

6

Maintenance Program, Parks Maintenance Program.

7

We will wrap them up, and then we will see where

8

we are at with respects to the Office of the

9

Mayor and Office of Management.

10
11

real property tax

Members, any questions or comments at
this time?

12
13

fees,

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

Are we going

14

to see the Division Chiefs tomorrow for Parks,

15

Maintenance and Aquatics?

16

CHAIR KANE:

Good question.

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

And are we going to see the

18

Parks Director any time soon, or

19

or something?

20
21

MR. BUCK:

lS

he out sick

I cannot answer for the Director.
The

the Division Chief for Aquatics

22

is a family emergency.

23

hospital in the Mainland.

24

who is TA'ing in the Division head, but I -- I

25

am probably more prepared to give that.

Her son's back in the
We have an individual
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1

And as far as Park Maintenance, I could

2

have Mr. Miyazono come in; however, there's not

3

really a big spike or any,

4

his budget.

5

here,

6

cover his Division

really, changes in

If you -- if you desire to have him

I can have him come, but I was prepared to

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

MR. BUCK:

Okay.

too because there's not really that

9

much in regards to any spikes in his budget.

10

think we just maybe moved some stuff around.

11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Okay.

I

I have some concerns

12

in Aquatics, so I was wondering who was going to

13

cover that.

14

CHAIR KANE:

Okay.

Thank you.
Thank you.

15

Any other questions or comments?

16

And I recognize that Ms. Johnson will

17

not be able to be here tomorrow.

So, members,

18

we'll -- staff will assist her.

19

will be e-mailing some questions, Ms. Johnson,

20

so we will go ahead and assist you with that.

I think she

21

Staff, assist Member Johnson with that.

22

Any other questions or comments,

23

Members?

24
25

I want to thank you folks for hanging in
there.

We are going to go until tomorrow,
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probably in the night, tomorrow night.

2

Couple of things, Members,

I wanted to

3

inform you of.

Your -- your proposals,

I want

4

to make sure that you folks understand the best

5

way that's going to make it easier for you folks

6

as well as for staff to help put things

7

together.

8

you folks follow the format of the budget bill

9

that's proposed by the Mayor and the sequence,

Primarily, we want to make sure that

10

the sequential approach that they have given.

11

If you can do that,

12

simpler for all of us to have the application.

13
14

it will make it a lot

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

15

right?

16

CHAIR KANE:

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

CHAIR KANE:

That's the Budget Ordinance,

That's correct.

Okay.

The Budget Ordinance.

Thank you.

And that will,

again, help the

19

staff in doing the comparisons, and that way we

20

don't be looking allover the place.

21

One of the other issues,

if you are

22

going to make an addition or deletion, and it

23

appears to have the majority of the Members'

24

support, we will try to include it in the

25

Chair's proposal, and the same thing like last
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1

year.

2

disagrees with it, we will put it there, because

3

we just want to try and get, you know, as smooth

4

sailing through the discussion of decision

5

making as possible.

6
7

Okay, members.

Even if the Chair

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes.

So there will be one --

8

one proposal, then, that will contain

9

everybody's subproposals?

10
11

CHAIR KANE:

Yeah, we will just make a starting

point, you know.

12

And again, although it will be shown as

13

the, quote, Chair's proposal, there may be some

14

things that I don't agree with, but are still

15

there, and I may agree with that may not be

16

there at some cases, so I

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

spreadsheet?

19

CHAIR KANE:

Exactly.

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

CHAIR KANE:

But we don't have that big

Yeah.
Okay.

So we can start with a starting point,

22

and then we will have our discussions as we go

23

through and try to go through consensus stuff,

24

and then we will kind of narrow it down to the

25

things that we may have to have more discussion
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and debate to finalize.

2

One more item, Members.

3

We encourage you that it be balanced by

4

both lncreases and decreases.

5

just try to do the add part and not take out on

6

the delete part.

7

would really help us in trying to get your

8

folks' proposals incorporated into the -- into

9

the first proposal, the starting point.

10
11

Again,

Mr. Hokama,
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay.

So don't

keep that in mind, that

I know you had a question.

Chairman,

if we have more cuts

12

than adds, that wouldn't be a problem either,

13

right?

14

CHAIR KANE:

Absolutely not.

And in fact,

I will

15

tell you, Members,

16

Chair's intent is to come out with a net

17

reduction in a proposal.

18

proposal will most likely have a net reduction

19

in the overall proposed budget for Fiscal Year

20

'07.

21

that -- that page, we'd really appreciate that

22

as well.

23

discussions, we will figure out where we end up

24

in the end.

25

I will tell you that the

Okay.

The Chair's

And if you folks can do that and go along

And then we will,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

again, through

Thank you, Chairman.
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Any other questions?

2

Those are the three major things.

3

will repeat it again tomorrow because I know the

4

more time we spend finishing up with

5

Departments, it is the less time for you folks

6

to finalize your proposals, so we are trying to

7

get to the end, here, so we can give you folks

8

time.

9

I

I know some of you may want to get

10

additional time beyond the Friday afternoon, but

11

that, again, also makes it difficult because

12

when we come out with the major proposal, we

13

have a process that we have to do to develop

14

the -- the justification for why we are at where

15

we are at.

16

own processes, so work with us.

17

So there's -- we have -- we have our

If you need to get some things in, make

18

sure that it is the major things by the

19

deadline, and then the smaller things we can

20

always work with as we are going through,

21

Members.

22

things by

23

4:30 deadline.

24

in other words.

25

sweat the small stuff.

So don't get hung up on the little
to be getting in by next -- by the
Make sure the big stuff gets in,
The small stuff -- yeah, don't
We will work -- we will
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1

work together on the small stuff, Members.

2

Okay.
Any, agaln, final comments before we

3
4

adjourn?

5
6

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.

(excused:

7

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE:

Hearing none, thanks, Members.

MA)

8

9
10
11

meeting for April 19th, is adjourned.
ADJOURN:

This
(Gavel.)

9:57 p.m.

12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
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1

2

I, CHARI L. POSSELL, Certified Shorthand

3

Reporter,

4

that the proceedings were taken down by me in

5

machine shorthand and were thereafter reduced to

6

typewriting under my supervision; that the

7

foregoing represents, to the best of my ability,

8

a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

9

had in the foregoing matter.

10

State of Hawaii, do hereby certify

I further certify that I am not attorney

11

for any of the parties hereto,

12

concerned with the cause.

13

nor in any way
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